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ProSiebenSat.1 Group: Key figures 2007
20071 20064 Change

Euro m Euro m

Revenues 2,702.5 2,095.1 29%

Recurring EBITDA2 661.9 485.6 36%

EBITDA 521.3 482.9 8%

EBIT 384.3 442.8 -13%

Financial loss -135.5 -57.5 -136%

Profit before taxes 248.8 385.3 -35%

Consolidated net profit 89.4 240.7 -63%

Underlying net income3 272.8 243.9 12%

Earnings per share of preferred stock (in EUR) 0.42 1.11 -62%

Underlying earnings per share of preferred stock (in EUR) 1.26 1.12 13%

Cash flow from operating activities 1,593.6 1.272.0 25%

Cash flow from investing activities -3,269.0 -979.6 - / -

Free cash-flow -1,675.4 292.4 - / - 

12/31/20071 12/31/2006 Change

Total assets 5,998.8 1,932.1 210%

Shareholders´ equity 1,062.3 1,240.5 -14%

Equity ratio 18% 64% -72%

Programming assets 1,317.7 1,056.3 25%

Net financial debt 3,328.4 121.8 - / -

1  Consolidation of SBS Broadcasting Group since July 2007, figures for 2006 are not adjusted 
2 Recurring EBITDA: EBITDA before non-recurring items 
3 Adjusted consolidated net profit: Consolidated net profit before effects of purchase price allocation and (2007 only) FCO fine
4 Prior-year figures adjusted to reflect recognition of PSP as a discontinued operation

Our Mission Statement

The power of television

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is a leading pan-european media company. We provide
modern people with first-class entertainment and comprehensive information
– whenever they need it, wherever they are.

Our Mission Statement

The power of television

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is a leading pan-European media company. 
We offer today‘s audience first-class entertainment and up-to-date information – 
whenever they need it, wherever they are.
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2007 was marked by a decisive strategic event for the Group: our acquisition of the SBS 
Broadcasting Group. 

The transaction is a major step forward for a number of reasons:

It has enhanced our overall growth potential. We expect revenue, cash flow and 
margins to benefit from our broader scope and ongoing integration efforts. 

We are now a truly multi-national broadcasting group, present in 13 European 
countries. Our broader reach will allow the Group to rollout winning ideas across 
our enhanced footprint and deliver new economies of scale.

By harnessing the Group’s talent pool and creativity across markets, we will de-
velop successful programs efficiently - and distribute these to multiple channels 
in multiple countries.

The transaction makes it possible to realize our vision as a leading pan-European 
broadcasting Group: to offer our audiences best in class entertainment and infor-
mation – whenever they need it, wherever they are. 

The world of media is changing at an unprecedented pace.  The promises of “digitaliza-
tion” and “new media” are quickly becoming realities that touch our viewers’ lives.  Chan-
nel distribution is increasingly going digital.  Whether via cable, satellite or antenna, di-
gital distribution is creating new opportunities to launch channels and reach target audi-
ences.  Alongside this, online media are revolutionizing the way we process images and 
information.  “On demand” and “interactive” are not trends, we are now experiencing a 
paradigm shift which will have a long-term effect on the way we think about content, au-
dience and competition. 

Seizing these opportunities demands a clear strategy to achieve and expand a market 
leading position:

Stay focused on our core business. This means producing and broadcasting market-lea-
ding content. At the time of the SBS deal I said “distribution may be king, but content is 
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Guillaume de posch, CEO proSiebenSat.1 Media AG

Dear Shareholders,
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King Kong.”  This has not changed. Successful TV programs attract large enthusiastic 
audiences, and we believe our strong position in TV provides a launching pad for growth 
in the online and on-demand markets.  Shows like “The Next Uri Geller” and “Germany’s 
Next Top Model” are two examples of shows that capture and retain an audience across 
the Group’s entire spectrum of traditional and new media outlets.

Be a leader in the online world. We must make our content available to our viewers and 
advertising partners across all platforms – TV, online, mobile, video-on-demand. We re-
cognize that the list of competitors is growing.  Apple, Google, Yahoo!, and MySpace are 
a few of the new entrants.  Waiting to see what happens is unacceptable. We need to ag-
gressively build on our leadership role in TV and establish new platforms and services to 
reach our audience.  Our investments in My Video, maxdome, lokalisten and others re-
flect the Group’s commitment to do just that.  With 17 million unique users in Germany, 
we are a top 3 player in the online display market. We intend to strengthen that position, 
not just in Germany, but internationally as well.

Embrace and leverage digital distribution. New forms of distribution provide opportuni-
ties to expand our brands and grow our portfolio of channels. We want to lead this chan-
ge across the Group’s geographic footprint. With a core asset base of more than 50 chan-
nels, we believe the Group is uniquely positioned to flourish in a digital environment.

A strategy, however, is little more than words on a page without the tools to deliver. We 
have the resources to realise our strategy: a solid business model and healthy cash flow; 
strong and committed shareholders; and 6,000 talented and dedicated colleagues fo-
cused on creating, producing and airing the hits that keep our viewers coming back – to 
all of our platforms.

Finally, allow me to share a personal belief with you: Europe‘s standing in the global me-
dia landscape is continuing to increase. Momentum is building in creative development, 
production, distribution, online media and interactivity.  There are only two media groups 
with a strong multinational presence in Europe. We are one of the two.  And we are the 
only one that owns and operates all of its channels. We have a unique opportunity to lead 
and to capitalize on the ongoing consolidation of the European media sector. 

let’s seize it!

Guillaume de posch
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Members of the Executive Board

Guillaume de Posch
CEO

Areas of responsibility: Group Con-
tent, German TV, Corporate

Born in 1958. Studied business admi-
nistration. Began career in 1984 at 
Tractebel S.A., rising to Vice president 
Far East in the Engineering Division, 
based in hong Kong. In 1990 joined 
McKinsey & Company in Belgium, be-
fore moving to luxembourg in 1993 to 
join broadcaster Compagnie luxem-
bourgeoise de Télédiffusion (now the 
RTl Group). In 1997 appointed Vice-
General Manager and programming 
Director at French pay TV company 
TpS. Member of the Executive Board 
of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG since Sep-
tember 2003; CEO since June 2004.

Patrick Tillieux
COO

Areas of responsibility: Group Opera-
tions, International Free TV, Internati-
onal pay TV, Radio, print

Born in 1957. Studied business ma-
nagement and construction enginee-
ring; began his career at the Bouygues 
Group, which operates worldwide in 
construction, power and transport 
services and telecommunications/me-
dia. Transfer to the media sector: va-
rious management positions, inclu-
ding at TF1, Eurosport and RTl. Joined 
SBS in 1999. Appointed acting CEO of 
the SBS Broadcasting Group in March 
2006. Member of the Executive Board 
of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG since July 
2007.

Lothar Lanz
CFO

Areas of responsibility: Group Control-
ling, Finance/Investor Relations, legal 
Affairs, human Resources, Regulatory 
Affairs, Administration

Born in 1948. Completed studies in 
business administration, then joined 
an accounting and tax consulting firm 
as an auditing assistant. Joined Baye-
rische hypotheken- und Wechselbank 
AG in 1977. In 1991 appointed to the 
managing board of hSB hYpO Ser-
vice-Bank AG. In 1996 became a mem-
ber of the managing board of Nassau-
ische Sparkasse Wiesbaden. Moved to 
proSieben Media AG as CFO the same 
year. CFO of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG 
since October 2000.

REpORTS FROM EXECUTIVE AND SUpERVISORY BOARD_ThE EXECUTIVE BOARD
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Peter Christmann
SAlES & MARKETING

Areas of responsibility: Sales in Ger-
many, Austria, Switzerland; Internati-
onal Sales

Born in 1964. Studied communications 
and business administration, then joi-
ned publitel in Munich (TV marketing 
company of the station Tele 5 at the 
time). Various management positions 
with marketing companies, including 
as sales manager at publitalia ’80 in 
Milan and publipolska in Warsaw. Be-
came managing director of Media-
Gruppe München in November 1999. 
Managing director of SevenOne Media 
since its founding in 2000. Member of 
the Executive Board of proSiebenSat.1 
Media AG since January 2004.

Dr. Marcus Englert
NEW MEDIA

Areas of responsibility: New Media & 
Diversification, Transaction TV, Busi-
ness Development

Born in 1965. A trained physicist. Ear-
ned doctorate at the CERN Europe-
an nuclear research institute. Recei-
ved MBA in 1996 at the INSEAD Euro-
pean business institute. From 1994 to 
1998 consultant with Boston Consul-
ting Group in Munich. Managing Direc-
tor of proSieben Digital Media since 
1998. From 2000 to 2001 member of 
the executive board at Kirch New Me-
dia AG. Since then, managing director 
of SevenOne Intermedia; also Director 
for Diversification at proSiebenSat.1 
since 2004. Member of the Executive 
Board of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG sin-
ce August 2006.
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During 2007 the Supervisory Board performed the duties incumbent upon it under the 
law, the articles of incorporation, its own rules of procedure, and the German Corporate 
Governance Code. Within that context the Supervisory Board took a detailed interest in 
the Company’s affairs, and supervised and advised the Executive Board on an ongoing 
basis. 

Supervising and advising the Executive Board

In performing its supervisory duties, the Supervisory Board essentially makes use of a 
reporting system designed to its specifications, as well as a list of actions that cannot be 
taken without the prior consent of the Supervisory Board or one of its committees. This 
approach ensures that the Supervisory Board is kept fully informed of the Company’s 
affairs with regular, timely reports, and is always included in decisions of particular im-
portance. 

The core of the reporting system is a monthly written report prepared by the Executi-
ve Board. In addition to detailed figures on the business position and financial condition 
of proSiebenSat.1 Group, the report also includes a current analysis of the early warning 
indicators that are continuously recorded and analyzed as part of the risk management 
system. The central financial management parameters in the Group-wide controlling and 
planning system are EBITDA prior to exceptional effects (“recurring” EBITDA), recurring 
EBITDA margin, and free cash flow. The Executive Board also reports in detail at the pe-
riodic meetings of the Supervisory Board, at which the Supervisory Board and the Exe-
cutive Board discuss business performance, planning and corporate strategy at regular 
intervals. Wherever necessary, in addition to its monthly reports the Executive Board 
also reports to the Supervisory Board about current events or projects in the intervals 
between meetings. For actions that the Executive Board must submit for the Supervisory 
Board’s approval, in addition to its oral explanations the Executive Board also prepares 
written background materials for resolutions, providing the necessary information for a 
decision by the Supervisory Board. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board was also con-
stantly in contact with the Executive Board, and was thus kept up to date on the business 
picture and important projects. he then informed the Supervisory Board about such mat-
ters on a regular basis. Apart from the documentation provided to the Supervisory Board 
in the course of the Executive Board’s reporting activities, there was no need for the Su-
pervisory Board to examine the Company’s books and other records during the year. 

Decisions of the Supervisory Board and its committees are made at meetings attended 
by the members in person, via conference calls, or, whenever necessary, by written cor-
respondence in the intervals between meetings. During the year, the Supervisory Board 
and its committees made decisions outside personal meetings in a total of ten cases.
 
Supervisory Board meetings

The Supervisory Board held four regularly scheduled meetings and three extraordinary 
meetings during the year. Two of the extraordinary meetings were held by conference 
call. A key matter for action by the Supervisory Board was the full acquisition of the SBS 
Broadcasting Group during the year, which was agreed upon by a contract dated June 
26/27 and subsequently consummated on July 3, 2007. The deliberations of the Super-
visory Board were also concerned with the acquisition of equity interests in various com-
panies in the Diversification segment, and the founding of a new television channel in 
Austria. The Supervisory Board additionally dealt with several exceptional matters. The-
se included the statutorily required reasoned opinion on the voluntary public tender of-
fer of January 30, 2007, from lavena holding 4 Gmbh to the holders of common and 
preferred stock of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG, as well as a nationwide proceeding by the 
German Federal Cartel Office of media agencies and companies marketing advertising 
time. The proceeding, which also came to involve the marketing of proSiebenSat.1 Group 
advertising time by Group subsidiary SevenOne Media Gmbh, concluded in November 
2007 with a fine.

REpORTS FROM EXECUTIVE AND SUpERVISORY BOARD_SUpERVISORY BOARD REpORT
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In March 2007, by a vote taken by correspondence, the Supervisory Board reconstituted 
itself, electing Götz Mäuser as its new Chairman and lord Clive hollick as its Vice-Chair-
man, reorganizing its standing committees, and adopting various amendments to its own 
rules of procedure and those for the Executive Board. previously, in connection with a 
change in the majority shareholder of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG as a consequence of the 
replacement of German Media holding l.p. by lavena holding 4 Gmbh as the new majo-
rity shareholder, twelve members of the Supervisory Board had resigned effective Mar-
ch 6, 2007, including the former Chairman, haim Saban, and the Vice-Chairman, Adam 
Chesnoff. On March 7, 2007, the former members of the Supervisory Board were re-
placed by twelve new members appointed by court. 

After the reconstitution of the Supervisory Board, the Board held its financial review 
meeting for fiscal year 2006 on March 28, 2007. Besides addressing the financial state-
ments for fiscal year 2006, at this meeting the Supervisory Board approved the Corpo-
rate Governance Report from the Executive Board and Supervisory Board, and the Decla-
ration of Compliance with the recommendations of the German Corporate Governance 
Code for fiscal year 2006. Other topics of discussion included reviewing the efficiency of 
the Supervisory Board’s work, long-term succession planning for management, and the 
regularly scheduled review of compensation for the Executive Board. At this meeting the 
Supervisory Board also decided to establish a limited-term committee, the Independent 
Directors’ Committee, to which it transferred responsibility for the Board’s resolutions 
on the acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group. 

The Board’s meeting on June 28, 2007, addressed a variety of operations matters, along 
with the receipt of a detailed report from the Executive Board and the Chairman of the 
Independent Directors’ Committee on the acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group, for 
which the contract had been signed the day before. 

An additional meeting of the Supervisory Board was held on July 17, 2007, following 
the 2007 annual shareholders’ meeting, to reconstitute the Board after the election of 
twelve new members at the shareholders’ meeting. At this meeting, the previous Board 
Chairman, Götz Mäuser, and Vice-Chairman, lord Clive hollick, were confirmed in office, 
and new members were appointed to both of the Board’s standing committees. 

An extraordinary Supervisory Board meeting scheduled as a telephone conference for 
July 26, 2007 served to continue the meeting of July 17, 2007. The discussions during 
this meeting focused on the reports of the Executive Board regarding various operating 
topics as well as on the ongoing integration on the SBS Broadcasting Group.

Two extraordinary meetings of the Board were held on September 18 and 24, 2007, at 
which the Supervisory Board dealt primarily with the investigative proceedings by the 
German Federal Cartel Office, already mentioned above. 

The final Supervisory Board meeting of the year was held on December 19. This meeting 
focused on the discussion and adoption of the long-term plan for 2008 through 2012, as 
well as a final report from the Executive Board on the conclusion of the proceeding by 
the Federal Cartel Office in November, resulting in a fine that was accepted by the Com-
pany. In addition, the Executive Board informed the Supervisory Board about a number 
of compliance-related measures which are currently in the process of being implemen-
ted on a Group-wide basis.

Because of scheduling conflicts, Supervisory Board members Dr. Mathias Döpfner, Jo-
hannes huth, Thomas Krenz and harry Sloan were unable to attend more than half of the 
meetings of the Supervisory Board. 



The work of the Committees

The Supervisory Board had two standing committees during the year, the presiding Com-
mittee and the Audit and Finance Committee. Their memberships were reorganized at 
the reconstitution of the Supervisory Board in March 2007. 
 
Since its membership was reorganized in March 2007, the presiding Committee has con-
sisted  in 2007 of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board and three 
additional members. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board jointly 
chair the committee. The committee’s brief is to prepare and coordinate meetings of the 
Supervisory Board; it also serves as a personnel committee. It additionally deals with ac-
quisitions of programming rights and other matters of particular business significance 
that are subject to its consent. Finally, under an expansion of its duties as resolved duri-
ng the year under review, the presiding Committee performs the duties of a nominating 
committee as provided under Item 5.3.3 of the German Corporate Governance Code, in 
the version of June 2007. The presiding Committee met four times in 2007, and adopted 
resolutions by written correspondence eight times. It dealt primarily with the remune-
ration of the Executive Board and other personnel matters, as well as the acquisition of 
programming rights.

Since its membership was reorganized in March 2007, the Audit and Finance Committee 
has had six members in 2007. Its membership was reorganized in July 2007 again. Its 
Chairman is appointed by the Supervisory Board, and under the rules of procedure this 
individual must be a member of the Supervisory Board with experience in accounting 
and internal controlling. The Audit and Finance Committee particularly deals with mat-
ters of accounting and risk management, compliance, the requisite independence of the 
independent auditor, engaging the independent auditor’s services, identifying points of 
emphasis for audits, and agreeing on fees with the independent auditor. Additionally, its 
consent is also required for certain management measures. The committee held five re-
gularly scheduled meetings and two extraordinary meetings in 2007.

There were also two temporary committees during the year, the Reasoned Opinion Com-
mittee and the Independent Directors’ Committee. 

The Reasoned Opinion Committee was in existence from January 24 through Februa-
ry 6, 2007, and had the duty of preparing the Supervisory Board’s reasoned opinion on 
the voluntary public tender offer of January 30, 2007, from lavena holding 4 Gmbh to 
the holders of common and preferred stock of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG. The committee, 
composed of three members of the Supervisory Board who were independent from the 
then-majority shareholder, German Media partners l.p., was established to avert poten-
tial conflicts of interest in the preparation of the Supervisory Board’s reasoned opinion 
on the tender offer. Such conflicts of interest might have arisen in the case of Supervi-
sory Board members who also represented or were shareholders of German Media part-
ners l.p., since the tender offer was made in association with lavena holding 4 Gmbh’s 
acquisition of the interest held by German Media partners l.p. in proSiebenSat.1 Media 
AG. The committee met twice in the performance of its duties. 

The Independent Directors’ Committee was in existence from March 28 through July 3, 
2007, and represented the Supervisory Board as a whole in deciding whether to consent 
to proSiebenSat.1 Media AG’s acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group, as well as asso-
ciated matters. This committee as well was established to avert potential conflicts of in-
terest within the Supervisory Board in dealing with the pending transaction. It took prac-
tical account of the fact that lavena holding 4 Gmbh (the majority shareholder of pro-
SiebenSat.1 Media AG) and the former majority shareholder of SBS Broadcasting Group 
are both investment companies controlled by funds advised by Kohlberg Kravis Roberts 
& Co. l.p. (KKR) and permira Beteiligungsberatung Gmbh (permira) respectively. Accor-
dingly, the committee was composed of three members of the Supervisory Board who 
were independent from KKR and permira. It met eight times during its existence.

10 REpORTS FROM EXECUTIVE AND SUpERVISORY BOARD_SUpERVISORY BOARD REpORT
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The Supervisory Board was informed about the committees’ work regularly and in full, 
at its plenary sessions.

Conflicts of interest 

To avert potential conflicts of interest in adopting the reasoned opinion of the Supervi-
sory Board on the voluntary tender offer from lavena holding 4 Gmbh to the sharehol-
ders of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG, and in the decision on the acquisition of the SBS Broad-
casting Group, a committee of independent Board members was formed in each case. 
Otherwise no conflicts of interest arose in the Supervisory Board during the year.

Corporate governance and Declaration of Compliance

Corporate management and oversight at proSiebenSat.1 Media AG is guided by the prin-
ciples of the German Corporate Governance Code. In their Corporate Governance Re-
port, which is published as part of this Annual Report, the Executive Board and Super-
visory Board report in detail on corporate governance at proSiebenSat.1 Media AG, in 
accordance with Item 3.10 of the German Corporate Governance Code. That Corporate 
Governance Report also includes the current Declaration of Compliance from the Execu-
tive Board and Supervisory Board for fiscal year 2007 pursuant to Section 161 of the Ger-
man Stock Corporations Act (AktG). The Declaration of Compliance is kept permanently 
available to shareholders on the Company’s Web site. 

In keeping with the recommendation of Item 5.6 of the German Corporate Governance 
Code, the Supervisory Board also conducts regular efficiency reviews. For fiscal year 
2007, this review was conducted as a self-evaluation at the financial review meeting on 
March 28, 2008. The major points of examination included the Supervisory Board’s view 
of its own mission, the organization of its activities, the independence of its members, 
the handling of potential conflicts of interest, and the composition of its committees. 

Audit of the AG and Group financial statements

The 2007 financial statements of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG and the consolidated finan-
cial statements of the Group, together with the management reports for proSiebenSat.1 
Media AG and the Group, were audited by the Munich office of KpMG Deutsche Treuhand-
Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, which issued an unre-
stricted audit opinion in both cases. The audit gave particular attention to the process 
of preparing the consolidated financial statements, the definition of the scope of conso-
lidation, the correctness of the preparation of the single-entity annual financial state-
ments included in the consolidated financial statements, the consolidation of capital and 
particularly the first consolidation and purchase price allocation for the SBS Group, the 
computation and impairment testing of goodwill, computation of deferred taxes, the cor-
rectness of the preparation of the information in the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements with regard to the first application of IFRS 7 and the definition of related par-
ties, the plausibility of projected figures in the consolidated management report, and a 
review of the correctness of the preparation of the consolidated cash flow statement and 
the consolidated segment report.  As required by law, the consolidated financial state-
ments were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS). The independent auditor has confirmed that the Executive Board maintains an ef-
fective risk management system, as required by law. The Supervisory Board thoroughly 
reviewed these documents. All documents relating to the financial statements, as well as 
the KpMG audit reports, were made available to the members of the Supervisory Board 
in good time. These documents were discussed in detail, in the presence of the auditor, 
first within the Audit and Finance Committee and then at the financial review meeting of 
the Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board has noted with approval the results of the 
auditor’s examination of the financial statements, and for its own part, following its own 
examination, also finds no cause for objection. The Supervisory Board approved the pa-
rent company financial statements and the consolidated financial statements prepared 
by the Executive Board and audited by the auditor, as well as the management reports 
for both the parent company and the consolidated Group. The annual financial state-
ments were thereby adopted. We have furthermore reviewed and concur with the Execu-
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tive Board’s proposal for the allocation of profits. In its capacity as auditor of the finan-
cial statements, KpMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschafts-
prüfungsgesellschaft also reviewed the report of the Executive Board on relationships 
with affiliated enterprises during fiscal year 2007. The auditor’s examination revealed no 
cause for objection. The auditor has issued the following unrestricted opinion: 

“Based on the results of our audit, performed in accordance with our professional duties, 
we confirm that 
1. The factual information in the report is accurate,
2. In the legal transactions mentioned in the report, the consideration paid by the Com- 
    pany was not disproportionately high, or else any disadvantage was compensated.”

The Supervisory Board’s own review of the report likewise revealed no cause for objec-
tion. The Supervisory Board therefore concurs with the results of the auditor’s review. In 
accordance with the final results of its own examination, the Supervisory Board has no 
objections to the declaration of the Executive Board at the conclusion of the report on 
relationships with affiliated businesses. 

Members of the Boards

The following changes took place in the composition of the Executive Board during the 
year: After the acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group was consummated, the struc-
ture of the Executive Board was revised to better fit the expanded Group. Effective July 
23, 2007, patrick Tillieux, formerly acting Chief Executive Officer of the SBS Broadca-
sting Group, was appointed to the Executive Board of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG as Chief 
Operating Officer. he joined the formerly four-member board chaired by Guillaume de 
posch, and is in charge of the new management segment for International TV, Radio, 
print and Group Operations. 

A further change is pending during the course of 2008. CFO lothar lanz, the Executive 
Board member in charge of finance, legal affairs and human resources at proSiebenSat.1 
Media AG, mutually agreed with the Supervisory Board in January 2008 that he would 
be leaving the Company soon. Mr. lanz, whose contract would normally have expired 
in June 2009, will remain in office until a successor has been found, presumably in the 
summer of 2008.

The composition of the Supervisory Board changed as follows during the year: Follow-
ing the consummation of the share purchase agreement between German Media part-
ners l.p.  and lavena holding 4 Gmbh, for the latter’s acquisition of an indirect majori-
ty interest in proSiebenSat.1 Media AG, twelve members of the Supervisory Board resi-
gned from the Board, effective March 6, 2007: haim Saban (Chairman of the Supervisory 
Board), Adam Chesnoff (Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board), John Connaughton, 
Albert Dobron, patrick healy, Ynon Kreiz, Seth laury, Stephen pagliuca, Brian powers, 
Arieh Saban, Scott Sperling and Joshua Steiner. In their place, on March 7, 2007, the 
Munich District Court appointed the following individuals as new members of the Super-
visory Board, to serve until the end of the next shareholders’ meeting: Götz Mäuser, a 
partner at permira Beteiligungsberatung Gmbh; lord Clive hollick, a partner at Kohlberg 
Kravis Roberts & Co.; Robin Bell-Jones, a principal at permira Advisors llp; philipp Frei-
se, a principal at Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co.; Ulrich Gasse, an investment professio-
nal at permira Beteiligungsberatung Gmbh; Reinhard Gorenflos, a partner at Kohlberg 
Kravis Roberts & Co.; Johannes huth, a partner at Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. and 
head of operations for Europe; Thomas Krenz, a partner at permira Beteiligungsbera-
tung Gmbh and head of operations for Germany; Christian Neuss, a principal at permira 
Beteiligungsberatung Gmbh; Silke Scheiber, a principal at Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co.; 
harry Sloan, Chairman und CEO of Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer-Inc.; and prof. Dr. harald Wie-
dmann, Of Counsel at Gleiss lutz hootz hirsch partnerschaftsgesellschafts von Rechts-
anwälten, Steuerberatern. The Supervisory Board then elected Götz Mäuser as its Chair-
man and lord Clive hollick as its Vice-Chairman.

REpORTS FROM EXECUTIVE AND SUpERVISORY BOARD_SUpERVISORY BOARD REpORT
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Because the court’s appointments were for a limited term, the annual shareholders’ mee-
ting on July 17, 2007 was required to fill twelve seats on the Supervisory Board in a sup-
plementary election. The meeting then reelected Götz Mäuser, lord Clive hollick, Ro-
bin Bell-Jones, philipp Freise, Johannes huth, Thomas Krenz, harry Sloan and prof. Dr. 
harald Wiedmann to the seats they had already filled as court-appointed members sin-
ce March 7, 2007.  Marinus Maria petrus van lent, president International of Telegraaf 
Media Groep, N.V.; heinz-Joachim Neubürger, Managing Director and Senior Advisor at 
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. ltd.; Adrianus Johannes Swartjes, Chairman of the Board 
of Telegraaf Media Groep N.V.; and Katrin Wehr-Seiter, a principal at permira Beteili-
gungsberatung Gmbh, were elected as new members of the Supervisory Board. Follow-
ing the shareholders’ meeting, the Supervisory Board reconfirmed Götz Mäuser and lord 
Clive hollick in their offices as the Board’s Chairman and Vice-Chairman.

The following additional changes in the Supervisory Board occurred after the end of the 
reporting period: In connection with the sale of Axel Springer AG’s indirect holding in the 
Company to a subsidiary of lavena holding 4 Gmbh, which took effect on January 15, 
2008, Dr. Mathias Döpfner and Christian Nienhaus resigned from their seats on the Su-
pervisory Board of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG as of that same date.  

On behalf of the Supervisory Board, I would like to thank the members of the Executive 
Board, all members of management, and all the employees of the proSiebenSat.1 Group 
for their achievements and their personal dedication.

Unterföhring, March 2008
On behalf of the Supervisory Board 
Götz Mäuser
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Götz Mäuser
Chairman
(since March 7, 2007)
partner, permira Beteiligungsberatung Gmbh

Lord Clive Hollick
Vice-Chairman
(since March 7, 2007)
partner, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co.

Members of the Supervisory Board at December 31, 2007

Robin Bell-Jones 
(since March 7, 2007)
principal, permira Advisors llp

Philipp Freise
(since March 7, 2007)
principal, Kohlberg Kravis 
Roberts & Co. ltd.

Johannes P. Huth
(since March 7, 2007)
partner and head of Europe, 
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. ltd.

Thomas Krenz
(since March 7, 2007)
partner, permira Beteiligungsberatung Gmbh

Harry E. Sloan
(since March 7, 2007)
Chairman of Board of Directors and Chief Exe-
cutive Officer, MGM holdings, Inc.

Prof. Dr. Harald Wiedmann
(since March 7, 2007)
Of Counsel, Gleiss lutz hootz hirsch 
Commercial partnership company of
lawyers and tax accountants

Heinz-Joachim Neubürger
(since July 17, 2007)
Managing Director and Senior Advisor, 
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. ltd.

Adrianus J. Swartjes
(since July 17, 2007)
Chief Executive Officer of Telegraaf Media Groep N.V.

Marinus M. P. van Lent
(since July 17, 2007)
president International, Telegraaf Media Groep N.V.

Katrin Wehr-Seiter
(since July 17, 2007)
principal, permira Beteiligungsberatung Gmbh
 
Dr. Mathias Döpfner
(whole fiscal year – withdrew at January 15, 2008) 
Chief Executive Officer of Axel Springer AG

Greg Dyke
(whole fiscal year)  
Consultant

Christian Nienhaus
(whole fiscal year – withdrew at January 15, 2008) 
Former Managing Director, BIlD Newspaper Group

More detailed information about the composition of the Supervisory Board is included 
in the notes.  Notes

REpORTS FROM EXECUTIVE AND SUpERVISORY BOARD_ThE SUpERVISORY BOARD
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Management’s proposed allocation of profits

At the annual shareholders’ meeting, the Executive Board of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG 
will recommend a dividend payment on common and preferred stock. Out of the distri-
butable net profit of EUR 3.106 billion, the Board will propose to pay a dividend of EUR 
1.23 per no-par common share and EUR 1.25 per no-par preferred share. This is equiva-
lent to a total distribution of EUR 271.3 million, or a payout ratio of 99.5 percent of the 
year’s underlying net income of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG. Referred to the price of EUR 
16.39 per preferred share on December 31, 2007, this is equivalent to a dividend yield of 
7.63 percent.

Corporate Governance Report

Corporate governance refers to the way in which a company is managed and supervised. 
The German Corporate Governance Code has drawn upon nationally and international-
ly recognized standards for managing and overseeing companies listed on the stock ex-
change. 

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG are staunch 
advocates of the German Corporate Governance Code. The Code’s objectives are con-
sistent with our own objective of reassuring investors, clients, employees and the pu-
blic at large that their trust in us is well-deserved, and of constantly enhancing the per-
formance of the proSiebenSat.1 Group. The principal prerequisites here are transparent 
communications with the capital market, responsible corporate management and a well-
developed compliance structure, as well as smooth cooperation between the Executive 
Board and the Supervisory Board. These essential requirements for good corporate go-
vernance are explained in further detail below. 

Active, transparent communication with the capital market

We inform shareholders, investors and analysts comprehensively about material new 
development in operations and management, and generally make such new information 
available to media representatives and the public at large at the same time. In so doing, 
to take due account of the international interest generated in our company, we also re-
lease this information in English. To guarantee the greatest possible transparency and 
make sure that information is released promptly both in Germany and elsewhere, we par-
ticularly make use of the Internet as a communications channel.

We publish all relevant information about the Company’s situation and major business 
developments on our Web site at www.prosiebensat1.com. Current stock price charts, 
analyses, annual reports, interim reports, and presentations are also available for down-
load there at any time. The Corporate Governance section of the Web site offers an up-
to-date overview of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG’s own implementation of the Corporate 
Governance Code, along with an archive of the management’s Declarations of Compli-
ance from past years and the Company’s articles of incorporation. Special pages are also 
posted for the annual shareholders’ meeting. Before the date of the Annual Sharehol-
ders´ Meeting, the invitation to the meeting notifies shareholders about the individual  
agenda items and the resolutions that the Executive Board and Supervisory Board will 
be submitting for approval. The comments of the CEO and the results of votes are also 
posted on the Company’s Web site after the meeting.

Four times a year, as part of the Company’s annual and quarterly financial reporting, ma-
nagement discusses the Company’s business performance, its financial position and its 
current results of operations. The financial calendar announces the dates of these pu-
blications well in advance, along with other important dates such as the date of the annu-
al shareholders’ meeting. The calendar can be downloaded from our Web site, and is also 
published in our financial reports. All matters potentially relating to insider transactions 
are also publicized in ad hoc disclosures as they occur, and are made available immedia-
tely on our website. A list of all ad hoc press releases for a given year is available on the 
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Company’s Web site in the “Annual Document” required under Section 10 of Germany’s 
Securities prospectus Act (Wertpapierprospektgesetz). As soon as they are received, 
proSiebenSat.1 Media AG also publishes directors’ dealings disclosures under Section 15a 
of the German Securities Trading Act (WphG), and reports of equity holdings under Sec-
tions 21 and 25 of that Act.

proSiebenSat.1 Media AG welcomes the implementation of the new European Transpar-
ency Directive as German law. It requires mandatory publications to be distributed via 
electronic media throughout Europe. For purposes of fair communication, the switch to 
electronic channels of publication as of the beginning of 2007 has facilitated access to 
corporate data, and ensures that all investors and interested parties in all countries are 
notified simultaneously.

Corporate management and compliance structure

Each year, the Executive Board and Supervisory Board issue a Declaration of Compliance 
in which they state that the recommendations of the current version of the German Cor-
porate Governance Code have been adopted, and explain any exceptions. These Decla-
rations of Compliance are kept permanently available to shareholders on the Company’s 
Web site. The current Declaration of Compliance for fiscal year 2007 is included as part 
of this Corporate Governance Report. Once again this year, the Executive Board and Su-
pervisory Board of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG aimed to refine corporate governance pro-
cedures further, and to implement the terms of the Code in a value-enhancing way. The  
emphasis was on revising the compliance structure to better fit the new conditions within 
an internationally organized Group, and on training the responsible Company officers in 
the various countries where we operate. 

The compliance officer is in charge of implementing the principles of corporate gover-
nance, monitoring compliance with the requirements of law, and documenting these pro-
cesses. The officer’s duties also include keeping up to date on changes in the laws, and 
tracking the relevant public discussions. 

Cooperation between the Executive Board and Supervisory Board

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board work together closely for the Company’s be-
nefit. The Executive Board informs the Supervisory Board regularly, promptly and com-
prehensively on all relevant matters of strategy, planning, business performance, net as-
sets, financial position and results of operations, and risk management. All transactions 
and decisions that are of fundamental importance to the Corporation are handled in clo-
se coordination with the Supervisory Board. Between meetings, the Executive Board also 
keeps the Supervisory Board informed about current projects and plans through detailed 
written reports. Efficient cooperation between these boards is governed by the Executi-
ve Board’s by-laws. The requirements that these by-laws impose on the Executive Board 
conform to the requirements of the German Corporate Governance Code, and in particu-
lar include binding provisions regarding the Executive Board’s obligations to inform and 
report to the Supervisory Board. The Executive Board’s by-laws also specify that major 
business transactions are subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board. Further in-
formation on cooperation between the Executive Board and Supervisory Board is provi-
ded in the Report of the Supervisory Board.

Compensation of the Executive Board

Details of the system of compensation including the stock options plan for members of 
the Executive Board at proSiebenSat.1 Media AG are explained in the section on “le-
gal Environment” in the Management Report . Under a resolution of the 2006 annual 
shareholders’ meeting, the Company is exempted from the statutory requirement to dis-
close the compensation of the individual members of the Executive Board. however, the 
Executive Board and the Supervisory Board have decided to voluntarily disclose the com-
pensation paid by the Company to the individual members of the Executive Board last fis-
cal year. The following table gives an individualized breakdown of this compensation.

 Legal environment
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Compensation of the Supervisory Board

Details of the compensation of the Supervisory Board are provided in the section on “le-
gal Environment” in the Management Report.  A list of the individual compensation 
paid to current and former members of the Supervisory Board during the 2007 appears 
in the Notes to the financial statements. 

Directors’ dealings in fiscal year 2007

During the year, management personnel and parties related to them reported to pro-
SiebenSat.1 Media AG, in compliance with Sec. 15a of the German Securities Trading Act 
(WphG), the following transactions in Company stock or financial instruments relating to 
Company stock. The transactions were published on the Internet as soon as the reports 
were received.

 Last name,

 first name

 Reason for 

 notice

 Purchase/

 Sale

 Date/ 

 Place

 Units  Price  Total

 transaction

 Christmann,

 peter

 Member of

 management

 Sale  June 27, 2007,

 Xetra/Frankfurt

 1,700  EUR 29.24  EUR 49,708.00

 lanz,

 Susanne

 Related to 

 management

 Sale  June 29, 2007,

 Xetra/Frankfurt

 750  EUR 29.42  EUR 22,065.78

 De posch,

 Guillaume

 Member of

 management

 purchase  November 30, 2007,

 Xetra/Frankfurt

 5,000  EUR 17.63  EUR 88,150.00

 Wiedmann,

 prof. Dr.

 harald

 Member of

 management

 purchase  November 30, 2007,

 Xetra/Frankfurt

 2,500  EUR 18.45  EUR 46,125.00

 EUR k Annual salary Other compen-
sation(5)

Total Pensions

 Fixed  
 compo- 
 nent

 Bonus 2006  
 (paid in 2007)

 Perquisites(2) Accrued pension
provision(3)

 Annual payment
2007(4)

 Guillaume  
 de posch

 
 1,000

 
 1,150

 
 7 2,157  516  62

 lothar 
 lanz

 
 690

 
 690  10 1,390  1,108  126

 peter 
 Christmann

 
 650

 
 575  8 1,233  239  47

 Dr. Marcus 
 Englert

 
 350

 
 350  8 708  48   9

 patrick 
 Tillieux(1)

 
 495

 
 0  - 495  -  -

 Total  3,185  2,765  33 5,983  1,911  244

(1)  6 month basis/member of the Executive Board since July 2007 
(2) contains noncash benefits from use of company car, insurance, and relocation grants if the individual must relocate   
(3) not including entitlements from the individual’s own additional payments (at 12/31/2007)
(4) entitlement on retirement/disability not including entitlements from the individual’s own additional payments (at 12/31/2007)
(5) additional one-time cash settlement for stock options in 2007 totaling EUR 8,999 k (Guillaume der posch: EUR 3,442 k, lothar lanz: 
     EUR 2,754 k, peter Christmann: EUR 2,371 k, Dr. Marcus Englert: EUR 432 k)

Note: no new stock options have been issued in 2007

 Legal environment

 Notes
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Shareholdings of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board

As of December 31, 2007, members of the Executive Board held a total of 13,000 shares 
of preferred stock of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG, and a total of 665,000 options under the 
proSiebenSat.1 Media AG stock option plan (the long-Term Incentive plan), each of which 
options confers the right to purchase one share of preferred stock of proSiebenSat.1 Me-
dia AG if the exercise conditions are satisfied.

As of December 31, 2007, members of the Supervisory Board held 2,500 shares of prefe-
rred stock of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG.

Declaration of Compliance of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board of Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Media AG in accordance of Section 161 of the German Stock Corpo-
rations Act (AktG) 

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board declare that with the following exceptions, 
during fiscal year 2007 proSiebenSat.1 Media AG complied, and continues to comply, 
with the recommendations of the Government Commission on the German Corporate 
Governance Code in the version of June 12, 2006, and, as of its date of validity, the ver-
sion of June 14, 2007:

The Executive Board decided that not all documents that were to be made available at 
the annual shareholders’ meeting of the Company in July 2007 would be published on 
the Company’s Web site as well (Item 2.3.1). Because of the volume of the documents 
and reports in connection with various inter-company agreements with subsidiaries, 
only the invitation to the annual shareholders’ meeting and the Annual Report, inclu-
ding the documentation it contains regarding the annual financial statements, were 
made available on the Company’s Web site. All documents made available at the share-
holders’ meeting were sent to the shareholders on request, promptly and at no char-
ge.  

The Executive Board of the Company has not appointed a proxy to exercise the share-
holders’ voting rights as directed (Item 2.3.3). There is no need for such a proxy at pre-
sent because of the current shareholder structure and the limited number of voting 
shareholders. 

The D&O insurance policies the Company has taken for the Executive Board and the 
Supervisory Board do not provide for a deductible (Item 3.8), since agreeing to a de-
ductible would not materially reduce the insurance premiums. Furthermore, by virtue 
of their offices, the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board are already acting re-
sponsibly and in the Company’s best interest. They do not regard a deductible as an ef-
fective way of enhancing board members’ motivation or sense of responsibility.

The stock option plan first approved at the annual shareholders’ meeting in May 2005, 
as part of the authorization to acquire treasury stock, and most recently renewed by 
resolution of the meeting of July 2007, provides only for incentive targets relating to 
the trading price of the Company’s stock. Additional comparison parameters relating 
to corporate key figures (Item 4.2.3) were not included, since due to the particular con-
ditions of the German TV advertising market no comparable German or foreign com-
panies can be identified.

As in previous years, during fiscal 2007 there was no age limit for nominees proposed 
by the Supervisory Board for seats on that board (Item 5.4.1). however, the Superviso-
ry Board has implemented an age limit of 70 years from 2008 onwards.

REpORTS FROM EXECUTIVE & SUpERVISORY BOARD_CORpORATE GOVERNANCE REpORT
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Under an amendment made to the articles of incorporation under a resolution of the 
shareholders’ meeting on July 17, 2007, members of the Supervisory Board will no lon-
ger receive a results-based component of their compensation, beginning with fiscal 
year 2007 (Item 5.4.7). The variable component of compensation, which lapses as of 
fiscal year 2007, will be replaced by a higher fixed compensation. The Company belie-
ves a fair fixed compensation is better suited to the function of the Supervisory Board, 
which is to provide oversight irrespective of profit to the Company. 

Because of the extensive accounting work to be done for the first consolidation of the 
SBS Group, which was acquired in July 2007, by exception to the Company’s usual 
practice the semiannual report for 2007 and the report on the third quarter of 2007 
were not released until after the time limits recommended in the Corporate Gover-
nance Code (Item 7.1.2). however, the releases did comply with the time limits required 
by law.

Subject to the exceptions stated above, proSiebenSat.1 Media AG intends in the future 
to continue complying with the recommendations of the Government Commission on the 
German Corporate Governance Code in the version of June 14, 2007.

March 2008

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board of proSiebenSat.1 Media AG
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overall assessment of the business situation  
Fiscal 2007 was a success both operationally and strategically. Last year’s acqui-
sition of the sbs broadcasting group was the most important strategic step in our 
corporate history. it turned prosiebensat.1 from a national media group into a pan-
european one. the prosiebensat.1 group now operates in 13 european countries. as 
a european group, we can operate with significantly greater independence from the 
cyclic fluctuations of individual markets. 

the acquisition of the sbs broadcasting group brought vigorous revenue growth. 
the welcome increase in revenues in the advertising-financed television business 
was driven primarily by the dynamism in the former sbs markets. at the same time, 
in fiscal 2007 the group continued to pursue its diversification strategy, and gene-
rated additional growth from new lines of business on an international scale. Howe-
ver, the group’s profit performance was influenced by a variety of exceptional ef-
fects from the first consolidation of sbs and the financing of that transaction, as 
well as an antitrust fine.
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The Group Acquisitions

March 

Lavena Holding 4 GmbH is new majority shareholder

on december 14, 2006, Lavena Holding 4 gmbH, a holding company 

controlled by funds advised by KKr and permira, had signed a share 

purchase agreement with german media partners L.p. to acquire the ma-

jority interest in prosiebensat.1 media ag. the sale is consummated on 

march 6. because of the change in ownership structure, the membership 

of the supervisory board of the prosiebensat.1 group also changes.

May

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG wins declaratory judgment

prosiebensat.1 media ag wins a victory in the declaratory judgment pro-

ceedings initiated after the merger of prosieben media ag and sat.1 Hol-

ding gmbH to form today’s company. after the merger, several former 

preferred shareholders of prosieben media ag had applied to the court 

for a review of the exchange ratio, and to set a figure for an additional 

cash payment. 

July

2007 Annual Meeting

this year’s annual meeting of prosiebensat.1 media ag is held in mu-

nich on July 17. management’s proposed resolutions carry unanimously. 

among other motions, the meeting approves the dividend proposal and 

the supplementary nominees for election to the supervisory board.

Patrick Tillieux is appointed to the Executive Board of 

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG

on July 23, patrick tillieux, formerly acting chief executive officer of 

the sbs broadcasting group, is  appointed to the executive board of pro-

siebensat.1 media ag. He joins the formerly four-member board, and as 

chief operating officer is in charge of the new management segment for 

international tV, radio, print and group operations.

August

Bond issue retired early

prosiebensat.1 media ag retires all of a eur 150 million bond issue ear-

ly as of august 1. the bond, issued in may 2004, had a five-year maturity 

and a fixed yield of 6.25 percent.

September

New ProSiebenSat.1 Group intranet goes online

the prosiebensat.1 group’s new intranet goes online in september, with 

numerous new functions. the intranet relaunch represents an important 

step toward integrating prosiebensat.1 and sbs, and links up some 6,000 

employees in 13 countries.

October

Proceedings before Federal Cartel Office end – New discount model

introduced

germany’s Federal cartel office terminates its proceedings against the 

prosiebensat.1 group and its marketing company, sevenone media, in re-

turn for payment of a fine. immediately after the termination of the pro-

ceedings, sevenone media presents a new discount and fee model.

February

ProSiebenSat.1 Group acquires stake in solute GmbH

continuing its expansion on the internet, the prosiebensat.1 group ac-

quires a majority interest in solute gmbH. solute operates billiger.de, one 

of germany’s leading price comparison portals on the internet. 

July

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG acquires SBS Broadcasting Group

on June 27, 2007, prosiebensat.1 media ag signs a share purchase ag-

reement to acquire the sbs broadcasting group. the sale is consumma-

ted on July 3. the merger creates a leading pan-european media group, 

with 26 free tV stations, 24 pay tV channels, and 22 radio networks in 13 

countries of northern, western and eastern europe.

Group acquires all of MyVideo

in July the prosiebensat.1 group acquires more of magic internet Holding 

gmbH, increasing its interest to a full 100 percent of the company. magic 

internet Holding operates myVideo, the largest german-speaking video 

community on the internet.

Acquisition of Austrian free TV station PULS TV

in July the prosiebensat.1 group acquires austrian free tV station puLs 

tV. the complete acquisition of the Vienna metropolitan area station ex-

pands the group’s commitment in the free tV business in austria.

August

Majority interest in wer-weiss-was.de

continuing its expansion on the internet, the prosiebensat.1 group ac-

quires a majority interest in the wer-weiss-was advice platform. this ex-

pert information service is germany’s leading portal for knowledge sha-

ring on the internet.

Fiscal 2007 at a Glance

patrick tillieux, coo

our european footprint
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July

The Voice overtakes MTV in Finland

Finnish music channel the Voice continues to expand its reach: as of 

July the station reaches more viewers than competitor mtV, making the 

Voice the most popular music channel in Finland.

August

forsa survey shows ProSieben the most popular station in the 14-to-49 

demo

a forsa survey shows that prosieben is indispensable for german viewers 

between the ages of 14 and 49. if they could get only one station, the ma-

jority of them would choose prosieben.

September

Free TV station FEM launched in Norway

new tV station Fem makes its debut in norway in early september. it 

has a predominantly female target audience, and is the prosiebensat.1 

group’s third free tV station in norway, alongside tVnorge and the 

Voice.

December 

N24 looks back on a successful year 

n24 increases its advertising revenues significantly in fiscal 2007. With 

a 1.1 percent audience share, the news channel is well ahead of its prin-

cipal competitor, n-tv, among the key demographic of 14 to 49 year old 

viewers. n24 also overtakes its cologne competitor in gross advertising 

revenues.   

Free TV Diversification

June

Sat.1 Comedy and kabel eins classics celebrate first anniversary

a year after their debut, the prosiebensat.1 group’s digital pay tV chan-

nels, sat.1 comedy and kabel eins classics, have become established suc-

cesses in the market. both channels went on the air on June 1, 2006, and 

by now the two have a reach of about one million subscribers.

September

Veronica Magazine sets a record

Veronica magazine, a broadcast schedule periodical, expands its lead in 

the dutch magazine market, earning a record 26.2 percent market share 

in the segment for schedule magazines in the third quarter.

October 

ProSiebenSat.1 Group expands video-on-demand portal maxdome

the prosiebensat.1 group acquires a new rights package from nbc uni-

versal television for its maxdome video-on-demand portal. the portal, 

launched in July 2006, has more than 10,000 titles and is germany’s lar-

gest online video library.

SevenOne International begins marketing programs from former SBS 

stations 

sevenone international presents more than 50 new programs at the mip-

com film and tV trade show in cannes. For the first time, the prosieben-

sat.1 group’s programming sales company also represents films, shows 

and series from the group’s new european tV stations.

December

SevenOne Interactive is market leader with young target group

With 17.5 million unique users, sevenone interactive ranks third among 

germany’s online marketers (agoF/internet facts 2007-iii). Within the 

young key demographic, prosiebensat.1 is in first place. 

desperate Housewives

maxdome
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The ProSiebenSat.1 Group

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG acquires SBS Broadcasting Group:

Launch of a pan-European TV corporation           
in June 2007, prosiebensat.1 media ag acquired all of the sbs broadcasting group. the 
share purchase agreement was signed on June 27 and was consummated on July 3. sin-
ce then, the group has been a presence in 13 european countries. in addition to its pre-
vious activities in germany, austria and switzerland, the corporation now also operates 
in belgium, bulgaria, denmark, Finland, greece, the netherlands, norway, romania, swe-
den and Hungary. sbs is a perfect fit for prosiebensat.1 not just geographically, but also 
in terms of corporate culture and strategic focus.

Reporting structure adapted to new operations 
since July 2007, the sbs broadcasting group is included in the prosiebensat.1 group’s 
consolidated financial statements. as part of the first consolidation of sbs, the prosie-
bensat.1 group has also restructured its segments. in addition to segments for Free tV in 
german-speaking europe and Free tV international, a diversification segment has been 
set up.  in simplified terms, the new reporting structure looks as follows:

the four german stations sat.1, prosieben, kabel eins and n24 have been consolidated 
into the Free tV in german-speaking europe segment. this segment also includes the 
sat.1 regional companies, the marketing company sevenone media, and the group’s 
subsidiaries in austria and switzerland.
the Free tV international segment includes advertising-financed tV channels in the 
netherlands, belgium, denmark, Finland, norway, sweden, romania, bulgaria and Hun-
gary.
the diversification segment includes all subsidiaries that rely indirectly or not at all on 
conventional tV advertising to generate their revenues. the group’s diversification ac-
tivities range from transaction tV, pay tV, multimedia, the internet, merchandising and 
radio to related print products.   

Expansion of the Executive Board
after the transaction was consummated, the structure of the executive board was ex-
panded to fit the larger group. on July 23, patrick tillieux, formerly acting chief exe-
cutive officer of the sbs broadcasting group, was appointed to the executive board of 
prosiebensat.1 media ag. He joins the formerly four-member board chaired by guillau-
me de posch, and as chief operating officer will be in charge of the new management 
segment for international tV, radio, print and group operations. as ceo, guillaume de 
posch will be in charge of the group content, german tV and corporate areas. Lothar 
Lanz, as chief Financial officer, will be in charge of group controlling, Finance/investor 
relations, Legal affairs, Human resources, regulatory affairs and administration. as 
the board member in charge of sales & marketing, peter christmann is responsible for 
sales in germany, austria and switzerland, and also for international sales. the board 
member for new media, dr. marcus englert, is in charge of new media & diversification, 
transaction tV and business development. this expanded management structure will 
provide an organizational basis for the rapid integration of the two groups, and for im-
plementing strategic objectives.

Strategic focus

by focusing on its core competences, the group is concentrating on enhancing its profi-
tability and consolidating its strong market positions. the group quickly went to work so-
lidifying its new position as a pan-european tV corporation, and has adapted its strategy 
to its expanded growth opportunities. the strategy has three aims:

 Explanations of reporting structure

 The perfect fit 

Positioning as a “content powerhouse”

in Europe
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Strengthening the core business in free TV – Concentration on the core 
competence content 
the prosiebensat.1 group is europe’s only genuine family of broadcasting chan-
nels. the group gains advantages from its stations’ complementary programming 
and the broad bandwidth of their target audiences. expanding the core business 
in free tV is the most important strategic objective. this strategy is based on at-
tractive content. 
Diversifying and expanding in new media
attractive content and strong brands in tV are also foundational for expanding the va-
lue chain and diversifying sources of revenue. the group’s motto, “the power of tele-
vision,” continues to represent an agenda for the future. First-class entertainment and 
up-to-the-minute information – whenever the consumer wants them, and wherever the 
consumer goes. putting content and brands to work in multiple ways gives the group 
additional leverage on its resources, and to earn additional revenue.
Creating a leading technological platform
in the past few months, the group has reviewed a variety of options for setting up the 
european group so that it can make use of the latest technological platform. innovative 
broadcasting techniques enhance the free tV stations’ performance while also giving 
the group an additional competitive lead. the goal is to make n24 europe’s most up-
to-date news station, and to establish it as a multimedia news brand. For that purpose, 
n24 is to be founded on an entirely new technical platform in which tV and multimedia 
are even more strongly integrated than before.

Business activities and market position

the prosiebensat.1 group is a leading pan-european media corporation. the group ope-
rates 26 free tV stations, 24 pay tV channels and 22 radio networks in 13 european 
countries. the corporation’s core business is free tV, financed through advertising. its 
tV programming reaches more than 200 million viewers. in addition to classic distribu-
tion channels, the prosiebensat.1 group also relies on innovative technologies and new 
media.

its station brands sat.1, prosieben, kabel eins and n24 make it the largest commercial 
free tV corporation in germany. the group also has strong market positions in free tV 
in its other countries: in the netherlands with Veronica, net 5 and sbs 6, in belgium with 
Vt4 and ViJFtv, in sweden with Kanal 5 and Kanal 9, in norway with tV norge, Fem and 
the Voice tV, in Finland with the Voice tV, in denmark with Kanal 4, Kanal 5, sbs net 
and the Voice tV, in Hungary with tV2, in bulgaria with the Voice tV, and in romania 
with prima tV and Kiss tV. its c more/canal+ service has made prosiebensat.1 the mar-
ket leader in premium pay tV in northern europe. the company also operates one of 
europe’s largest radio networks. in prosiebensat.1 networld, the group offers germany’s 
second-largest online network. maxdome, germany’s largest video-on-demand portal, as 
well as interests in innovative internet services like myVideo and lokalisten, are among 
the activities with which the group has increasingly been diversifying its sources of re-
venue.

Strong brands across the European footprint

  
 Nordic region
 no.1 premium pay tV provider in the nordic region
 no.2 commercial Free tV operator in norway and sweden
 no.2 radio operator in nordic region
 no.3 commercial Free tV operator in denmark

  
 CEE
 no.2 radio operator in cee
 no.2 commercial Free tV operator in Hungary
 no.3 commercial Free tV operator in romania

  
 Netherlands/Belgium
 no.1 print tV magazine
 no.2 Free tV operator

  
German-speaking region
no.1 Free tV provider in germany, austria and  
  switzerland
no.1 mobile tV provider in germany
no.1 video-on-demand portal in germany
no.1 call tV operator in germany
no.2 online network in germany
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the group’s activities are pooled under prosiebensat.1 media ag. the company, which is 
listed on the mdaX, is headquartered in the munich suburb of unterföhring. the prosie-
bensat.1 group has some 6,000 employees throughout europe.

Management System and Oversight Functions

Management functions, legal and organizational structure of the Group        

prosiebensat.1 media ag is a german stock corporation, an aktiengesellschaft. german 
corporate law prescribes a dual management system, with a clear separation between 
the managing body and the supervisory body. the company’s managing body is its exe-
cutive board, which is overseen and advised by the supervisory board. the basic rules 
for managing prosiebensat.1 media ag are set forth in its articles of incorporation. in fis-
cal 2007, the executive board had four members initially, and later five. under the arti-
cles of incorporation, the supervisory board has 15 members. a responsible corporate 
governance policy for the creation of long-term value is basic to the company‘s business 
politics. at prosiebensat.1 corporate governance stands for openness and transparen-
cy, concern for shareholder interests, and efficient cooperation between the executive 
board and supervisory board. 

Think locally, act globally: 
Effective organizational structures thanks to “companies within the Company”
the pan-european media group, headquartered in the munich suburb of unterföhring, is 
managed centrally. as the group’s ultimate parent company, prosiebensat.1 media ag 
centrally manages key functions that affect multiple segments, such as programming ac-
quisitions, accounting, controlling, corporate planning, human resources, finance, inve-
stor relations, legal affairs and corporate communications. at the same time, the indivi-
dual subsidiaries in their various countries have a large degree of autonomy. With this 
arrangement, decisions can be made quickly, and the subsidiaries can respond flexibly 
to the needs of their target audiences and markets. as part of the integration process, 
a holding company was set up during fiscal 2007 for the german-language free tV ac-
tivities. german Free tV Holding gmbH pools the companies that run free tV activities 
in germany, austria and switzerland as a parallel to the international holding compa-
ny. this includes not only the stations prosieben, sat.1, kabel eins and n24 in germa-
ny, which were previously held directly by prosiebensat.1 media ag, but also sat.1 pri-
vatrundfunk und programmgesellschaft mbH Österreich and sat.1 schweiz ag. the list 
of shareholdings in the notes to the Financial statements provides further information 
about company locations and the group’s organizational structure. 

The internal management system

Management by objectives: A goal-oriented management system

the staff and management of the prosiebensat.1 group are managed under the princi-
ple of management by objectives. it is for this purpose that the top goals system was 
developed. it puts higher-level corporate objectives into more specific terms for both 
staff and management by breaking targets down systematically into segment, depart-
ment and individual goals. stating, agreeing on and monitoring annual goals is a way of 
making sure that all employees actively participate in implementing the group’s strate-
gic objectives.  it is a way of anchoring goal-oriented action within the various segments 
and departments. resources are used as efficiently as possible. at the same time, it pro-
vides a channel for specific, continuous feedback. the top goal system ties in with a spe-
cial performance-based bonus plan. this incentive system ensures performance-orien-
ted compensation based on objective measurement criteria, since the size of the bonus 
depends on how well the individual achieves the specified goals. employees’ sharing in 
the company’s profits is based on the achievement of the corporate target, which is cal-
culated on the basis of recurring ebitda margin.  the compensation of the executive 
board members is also based on a results-oriented bonus model, and has both fixed and 
variable components. 
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Management by key indicators

Corporate financial management parameters
the prosiebensat.1 group is managed and operated using a management system ba-
sed on key performance indicators. the central financial management parameters in the 
group-wide controlling and planning system are ebitda prior to exceptional effects (“re-
curring” ebitda), recurring ebitda margin, and free cash flow. 

Recurring EBITDA stands for ebitda – earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation 
and amortization – after adjustment for non-recurring items. the recurring EBITDA 
margin is the ratio between recurring ebitda and revenues. these key figures make 
possible a meaningful evaluation of operating performance, and simplify international 
comparisons of companies’ profitability, since they exclude national taxes and the ef-
fects of depreciation and amortization. 
the prosiebensat.1 group defines free cash flow as the net sum of cash flow from ope-
rating activities and cash flow from investing activities. Free cash flow shows the sur-
plus cash generated during a period, and can be interpreted as a financial surplus that 
is available to service equity and borrowings.

Non-financial performance indicators
additionally, the prosiebensat.1 group has defined performance indicators that cannot 
be measured directly in financial terms. these non-financial management parameters 
include:

Leading brands, programming quality and audience loyalty: strong, internationally 
known brands and attractive programming content are critical to the prosiebensat.1 
group’s success. one of the most important non-financial management parameters in 
this connection is the tV stations’ audience figures. the audience shares and reaches 
of stations in germany are determined daily by agF/gfK-Fernsehforschung, the leading 
tV research system, by measuring viewing patterns among a representative panel of 
viewers. at the same time, audience ratings serve to document programs’ performance 
for the advertising industry. the performance of pay tV services, video on demand, and 
print operations is documented by the number of subscribers or readers. For the online 
business, the key parameters are page impressions, unique users, and visits. 
Good corporate governance thanks to shared values and goals: as a media corporati-
on, we are subject to special laws, regulations and high journalistic standards, especial-
ly in our tV and radio operations. the prosiebensat.1 group has summarized its goals 
and its own sense of itself in short, pithy principles, taking account not only of laws and 
regulations, but ethical and social rules as well. the corporate mission statement was 
taken as a basis to lay down management guidelines that describe the group’s most im-
portant shared values and aspects of conduct. through binding guidelines and manage-
ment principles, we intend to ensure that staff and management behave ethically and 
in compliance with the law, both toward one another and toward the public. as part of 
the process of integrating the prosiebensat.1 group with sbs, plans call for introducing 
a group-wide compliance system.
Motivated, high-performance employees: With their innovative imaginations, creativi-
ty and commitment, our employees make an indispensable contribution to the prosie-
bensat.1 group’s success. the group believes it is essential to retain well-qualified em-
ployees as long as possible. For that reason, important management parameters in hu-
man resources include average time with the company and staff turnover.  
Reputation: the prosiebensat.1 group sets itself high standards for transparency that 
not only guide its employees’ conduct, but influence public opinion and our relations 
with our customers. a transparent style of communication also strengthens the capital 
market’s confidence in the corporation and in prosiebensat.1 stock. the group’s finan-
cial reporting and investor relations work won a number of prizes once again in fiscal 
2007. all the same, prosiebensat.1 stock was unable to escape the effects of the sub-
prime crisis on the capital markets, and the associated uncertainties about the econo-
mic outlook for the future. 

High importance of non-financial 

performance indicators

With our programming portfolio 

we reach 200 million viewers in 

Europe

 Programming

 Employees

 The ProSiebenSat.1 share
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A coordinated planning and management system

planning and management are closely interrelated. the prosiebensat.1 group’s planning 
is based on the group’s strategic and operating objectives. profitability planning includes 
the long-term corporate plan (five-year plan), operating plans (budgeting) and budget 
updates during the year (forecasting). monthly earnings projections present and analyze 
the expected development of revenues and earnings for the year as a whole in compari-
son to the budget or forecast, as the case may be. any potential risks are reported by the 
decentralized risk managers to the executive board as part of the monthly reporting pro-
cess. these reports provide additional management tools, since they help management 
take quick action to avert any negative changes. this systematically coordinated and 
clearly scheduled sequence of steps ensures continuity in the planning process – a mat-
ter of fundamental importance for effective management of the defined target figures, 
but also for the group-wide detection of risks and opportunities. 

Principles of compensation of the Executive and Supervisory Boards

Compensation of the Executive Board          

in addition to their functions as directors and officers of the company, the members of 
the executive board of prosiebensat.1 media ag also have contractual relationships with 
the company. the supervisory board, which is in charge of agreements with members 
of the executive board, has delegated this responsibility to its presiding committee. the 
employment agreements between prosiebensat.1 media ag and the members of its exe-
cutive board have a maximum term of five years. these contracts establish the board 
members’ rights and duties, including their compensation.

prosiebensat.1 media ag’s compensation system for the members of the executive board 
includes both fixed and variable components. it is set up in such a way that the compen-
sation paid to each board member is appropriate to their own area of work and respon-
sibility, and is also competitive compared to the compensation paid to senior executives 
of other national or international companies. it is based on the recommendations of the 
german corporate governance code regarding results-based compensation, and is de-
signed to ensure that the company will remain competitive, by providing appropriate in-
centives and motivation for top-quality international executives. 

Last fiscal year, the compensation paid by prosiebensat.1 media ag to the members of 
its executive board had the following components:

under their employment contracts, all executive board members receive a fixed base 
salary, paid monthly, that is determined with reference to the individual member’s area 
of responsibilities.
in addition to this base component, each member also receives a performance-based 
variable component in the form of an annual bonus. the specific terms of this annual 
bonus vary among the contracts of the individual board members. its amount is deci-
ded in part by the supervisory board, and in part depends on the achievement of pre-
defined performance targets. 
additionally, the members of the executive board participate in the prosiebensat.1 me-
dia ag stock option plan introduced in 2005 (the “Long-term incentive plan”), which 
establishes an additional pay component based on the company’s long-term results, as 
a way of enhancing shareholder value. all stock options issued in 2005, which could not 
have been exercised until may 2007 (because of the change of control last fiscal year 
resulting from the advent of a new majority shareholder), were redeemed in advance 
by the company in return for payment of the cash value of the option. as of december 
31, 2007, the current members of the executive board still held a total of 665,000 stock 
options, all of which were issued in 2006 and entitle the holder to purchase one share 
of preferred stock. provided the other prerequisites for their exercise are met, the op-
tions still cannot be exercised until august 2008 at the earliest. no new stock options 
were issued in 2007 under the Long-term incentive plan.

 Risk Report
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additionally, the company has signed pension agreements with most members of the 
executive board.
Finally, the members of the executive board receive other compensation in the form of 
noncash perquisites, including company cars, insurance coverage, and coverage of re-
location expenses if they must relocate.

the company has extended neither loans nor guaranties or warranties to the members 
of the executive board. the total compensation paid to members of the executive board, 
broken down by fixed and variable components, is reported in the notes to the financial 
statements, along with further details of the prosiebensat.1 media ag stock option plan. 

a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting on august 2, 2006, exempted the company 
for a term of five years from the statutory obligation to disclose the compensation of 
the individual members of the executive board in the parent-company and consolida-
ted financial statements, on the basis of the information specified in section 285 no. 9 
a) sentences 5 through 9 and section 314 (1) no. 6 a) sentences 5 through 9 of the ger-
man commercial code (Hgb). However, this resolution of the shareholders’ meeting po-
ses no obstacle to the voluntary disclosure of individual board members’ compensation 
otherwise. the executive board and supervisory board have decided to exercise this op-
tion of voluntary disclosure in the compensation report for 2007, which is included in the 
corporate governance report of the executive board and supervisory board.  that 
report therefore states figures for the compensation paid to individual members of the 
company’s executive board for the past fiscal year.

Compensation of the Supervisory Board 

the compensation of the supervisory board of prosiebensat.1 media ag is laid down in 
the company’s articles of incorporation, and was revised by a resolution of the annual 
shareholders’ meeting on July 17, 2007. under the new rules, the members of the super-
visory board will receive only a fixed base compensation, which has been increased over 
the previous fixed compensation. at the same time, whereas the old rules provided for a 
variable component that depended on the amount of the dividend, this component has 
been eliminated. the chairman and Vice-chairman of the supervisory board each recei-
ve twice the amount of the fixed base compensation. as before, members of the supervi-
sory board’s committees are compensated with a separate meeting honorarium, payable 
for participating at each committee meeting. committee chairs receive twice the stan-
dard meeting honorarium. 

the new compensation rules applied for the first time to the full 2007 fiscal year. the 
variable component payable under the old rules for the previous fiscal year, 2006, which 
was linked to the dividend resolved for fiscal 2006 by the shareholders’ meeting held on 
July 17, 2007, was paid for the last time following that shareholders’ meeting. a list of the 
individual compensation paid to current and former members of the supervisory board 
last fiscal year appears in the notes to the financial statements. 

Legal Environment

Composition of share capital

the share capital of prosiebensat.1 media ag comes to eur 218,797,200 and is divided 
into 109,398,600 no-par registered shares of common stock and 109,398,600 no-par be-
arer shares of non-voting preferred stock. there are no shares that carry special rights 
and confer control. 

each no-par share has a notional value of eur 1.00 of the share capital. thus all shares 
of common stock combined, and all shares of preferred stock combined, each total a no-
tional value of eur 109,398,600.00 of the share capital, or 50 percent of the share capi-
tal each. only shares of common stock carry voting rights. each share of common stock 
confers one vote at the shareholders’ meeting. otherwise no special rights are associa-
ted with these common shares.

 Corporate Governance Report

 Notes
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except as mandatorily prescribed by law, shares of preferred stock do not carry voting 
rights. under article 19 of the articles of incorporation of prosiebensat.1 media ag, these 
shares are given preferential treatment in the distribution of profits, receiving a priori-
ty payment of eur 0.02 per share more from the annual distributable net profit than do 
common shares, and no less than eur 0.02 per share in any case. if the distributable net 
profit for one or more fiscal years is not sufficient to cover this priority payment, the de-
ficiencies are made up retrospectively, without interest, out of the distributable net pro-
fit from the subsequent fiscal year. this make-up payment must be made before other 
shares of profits are distributed to preferred stock or common stock for the new fiscal 
year. preferred shares of prosiebensat.1 media ag are listed for trading in the regulated 
prime standard segment of the Frankfurt stock exchange. the company must meet ad-
ditional follow-up obligations to maintain this listing. common shares are not listed. 

Restrictions on transfer of stock  

under article 5 (4) of the articles of incorporation, the registered common shares of pro-
siebensat.1 media ag stock may be transferred only with the company’s consent, which 
is to be decided upon by the executive board. the board must give that consent unless 
the transfer would establish a stake in the company that would exceed the bounds pre-
scribed by media regulations. there are no consent requirements for transfers of the be-
arer shares of non-voting preferred stock.

Ownership structure

since march 2007, the majority shareholder of prosiebensat.1 media ag has been Lave-
na Holding 4 gmbH. Lavena Holding 4 gmbH is a holding company controlled by funds 
advised by Kohlberg Kravis roberts & co. L.p. (KKr) and permira beteiligungsbera-
tung gmbH (permira) respectively. as of december 31, 2007, it held 88.0 percent of the 
company’s voting common stock and approximately 13.3 percent of the nonvoting prefe-
rred stock, after adjustment for other equity interests. this holding is equivalent to ap-
proximately 50.7 percent of the company’s share capital, likewise after adjustment for 
other equity interests. in addition, again after adjustment for other equity interests, at 
december 31, 2007, axel springer ag held a significant interest in prosiebensat.1 ag, 
with 12.0 percent of both the common stock and preferred stock. the remaining roughly 
74.7 percent of the preferred stock, equivalent to approximately 37.3 percent of the sha-
re capital, is in free float.  

in december 2007, axel springer ag announced that it would sell its stake in prosieben-
sat.1 media ag. Further information appears in the report of subsequent events.

Change of majority shareholder
Last fiscal year, the company changed majority shareholders. on march 6, 2007, under 
a share purchase agreement signed on december 14, 2006, with the former majority 

 Subsequent Events
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shareholder, german media partners L.p., Lavena Holding 4 gmbH indirectly acquired an 
interest of 88.0 percent of the voting common stock and about 13.0 percent of nonvo-
ting preferred stock of prosiebensat.1 ag (after adjustment for other equity interests). 
this is equivalent to some 50.5 percent of the share capital of prosiebensat.1 media ag, 
likewise after adjustment for other equity interests.

under a public tender offer to prosiebensat.1 media ag shareholders that was published 
on January 30, 2007, and ended upon expiration of the extended acceptance period on 
april 10, 2007, Lavena Holding 4 gmbH had acquired another roughly 0.3 percent of non-
voting preferred stock. this purchase increased its total holding of the share capital of 
prosiebensat.1 media ag to 50.7 percent, after adjustment for other equity interests. 

Lavena Holding 4 gmbH then restructured the indirect holding it had acquired through 
the share purchase agreement mentioned above, by replacing the intermediate compa-
nies it had taken over from german media partners L.p. with Lavena Holding 5 gmbH, a 
new wholly-owned subsidiary of Lavena Holding 4 gmbH. as of december 31, 2007, La-
vena Holding 5 gmbH directly held some 75.1 percent of the common stock and 0.1 per-
cent of the preferred stock of prosiebensat.1 media ag. in addition, after adjustment for 
other equity interests, Lavena Holding 5 gmbH indirectly held 12.9 percent of both the 
common stock and preferred stock through sat.1 beteiligungs gmbH, a joint venture in 
which axel springer ag also indirectly held an interest. 

Report on Relations with Affiliated Companies

in compliance with section 312 of the german stock corporations act (aktg), prosieben-
sat.1 media ag has prepared a report on its relationships with affiliated companies in fis-
cal 2007, which concludes with the following statement by the executive board: 

in the year under review, prosiebensat.1 media ag did not engage in any legal transac-
tions with third parties at the direction of or in the interest of Lavena 1 s.à r.l., the indi-
rect holder of Lavena Holding 4 gmbH, or its affiliated companies. no actions subject to 
reporting under section 312 aktg were either performed or omitted.

For every legal transaction entered into between prosiebensat.1 media ag and its sub-
sidiaries during the year under review, prosiebensat.1 media ag contractually promised 
appropriate compensation within the meaning of section 312 aktg and received perfor-
mance in return for such compensation insofar as performance was due during the year 
under review.

Information under Sections 315 (4) of the German Commercial Code and 
Explanations under Sections 120 (3) and 175 (2) of the German Stock 
Corporations Act

the voting stock issued by prosiebensat.1 media ag is not traded on an organized mar-
ket within the meaning of section 2 (7) of the german securities trading act (WpÜg). 
only bearer shares of the company’s nonvoting preferred stock are listed for trading, in 
the regulated prime standard segment of the Frankfurt stock exchange. the company 
must meet additional follow-up obligations to maintain this listing. the registered shares 
of the voting common stock of prosiebensat.1 media ag are not listed for trading on any 
stock exchange. therefore there is no requirement for the parent-company or consolida-
ted management reports of prosiebensat.1 media to provide information under sections 
289 (4) and 315 (4) of the german commercial code, or for the executive board to pro-
vide a report explaining this information, pursuant to sections 120 (3) and 175 (2) of the 
german stock corporations act.
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Business climate 

Overall economic environment

throughout the enlarged eu (eu27) and the euro zone (eu 13), the economy got off to a 
robust start. strained by the global crisis in the financial market, rising prices for oil and 
an increase in consumer prices, industrialized economies have developed somewhat less 
dynamically towards the end of 2007. Following a weaker second quarter, gdp rates in 
the third quarter grew by 0.8 percent in both regions compared to previous year figures. 
in the last quarter, rates were declining once again. according to estimates from the sta-
tistical office of the european communities (eurostat), growth rates for the fourth quar-
ter will reach 0.5 percent in the eu27 and 0.4 percent in the eu13. consequently, the es-
timated growth rates for 2007 are 2.9 percent in the eu27 and 2.7 percent in the euro 
Zone (eu13).

according to initial preliminary calculations from germany’s Federal statistical office, 
the german economy grew again vigorously in 2007, with a gain of 2.5 percent in real 
terms (2006: 2.9 percent). growth was driven primarily by export markets and capital ex-
penditures. consumer spending was slack. despite encouraging growth in the job market 
and income, spending was down 0.3 percent in real terms against the previous year. the 
increase in the value-added tax took its toll in the first half, while rising consumer prices 
in the second half – especially for energy and food – adversely affected consumer senti-
ment. it was only thanks to increased government expenditures that consumer spending 
ultimately contributed a total of 0.2 percentage points to gdp growth. 

The industry environment 

the most critical factor for the prosiebensat.1 group is the degree to which the grow-
th of the economy as a whole will affect the tV advertising market and the group’s core 
business in advertising-financed tV. growth in advertising spends for tV was thoroughly 
positive in the prosiebensat.1 group’s new markets during 2007. it ranged from relative-
ly modest increases in such markets as denmark, with gains of about 3 percent net, to ex-
plosive growth in markets like romania, with more than 40 percent net. the netherlands 
recorded net growth of about 8 percent. gross growth in belgium was 8 percent. norway 
also grew dynamically, with just under 9 percent gross.

With gross advertising spends totaling eur 8.7 billion in 2007, german tV stations’ boo-
kings were up 5.2 percent from a year earlier. the main contributors to growth in the 
tV market were the retail and shipping sector (+17.2 percent), finance (+13.4 percent) 
and tourism (+11.3 percent). With a share of 43.5 percent of the german tV advertising 
market, the prosiebensat.1 group again expanded its lead (2006: 43.0 percent). seven-
one media, the group’s tV advertising time marketer, generated gross revenues of eur 
3,798 million for the group’s stations in 2007. the stations marketed by ip deutschland – 
rtL, Vox, super rtL and n-tv – generated eur 3,247 million for the period, a decline of 1.1 
percentage points in advertising market share, to 37.2 percent. the share of rtL2 mar-
keter el cartel was also down compared to a year earlier, to 5.4 percent or eur 475.0 
million (comparable period of 2006: 5.5 percent).

more information about the group’s competitive position is available on page 25, while 
the segment report includes information on changes in audience share.  Segment Report
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Earnings, Financial Position and Net Worth

Notes on the reporting approach
this management report reflects the group’s new segment structure. since July the 
sbs broadcasting group is included in the prosiebensat.1 group‘s consolidated financial 
statements. the figures for fiscal 2007 include sbs’s acquired business for the period 
from July 3 through December 31. since sbs was not a part of the prosiebensat.1 group 
in fiscal 2006, these figures are not included in the prior-year amounts presented for 
comparison, unless noted otherwise. 

because of the planned sale of prosiebensat.1 produktion, the prosiebensat.1 group re-
cognizes this subsidiary’s business as discontinued operations in its consolidated income 
statement. prior-year figures will be adjusted. explanations of discontinued operations 
pursuant to ifrs 5 are provided in note 34 to the financial statements. 

Development of revenues and earnings

First consolidation of SBS yields vigorous revenue growth         

the prosiebensat.1 group’s consolidated revenues outperformed the prior year by 29.0 
percent, to reach eur 2.703 billion. most of the revenue increase of eur 607.4 million 
came from the first consolidation of sbs. sbs contributed eur 547.0 million to consoli-
dated revenues. Without sbs revenues were up by 2.9 percent.

all segments’ fiscal 2007 revenues were up compared to the prior year. the free tV in-
ternational and Diversification segments made an especially dynamic showing. revenues 
for the two segments in advertising-financed television totaled eur 2.304 billion, com-
pared to eur 1.857 billion in fiscal 2006. in all, the group thus generated 85.2 percent 
(2006: 88.6 percent) of its revenues from its core business in free tV. the contribution 
to revenues from the Diversification segment – which now also includes radio and print 
activities since the sbs acquisition – grew eur 160.7 million, to eur 398.8 million, equi-
valent to a 14.8 percent share of total revenues – up from 11.4 percent for the prior year. 
german-speaking europe is the group’s strongest revenue-generating region, at 79.7 
percent, followed by northern europe, at 9.3 percent, and the netherlands and belgium, 
at 8.1 percent. Without the sbs broadcasting group, the prosiebensat.1 group generated 
its prior-year revenues entirely in germany, austria and switzerland. 

 Segment Report

 Business climate

33

Revenues 2007 by region
in percent
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in eur m
Revenues by business units

 free tV business unit     Diversification business unit
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2007
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2,303.7

1,857.0

398.8

238.1

Higher operating costs due to SBS consolidation and one-off charge

operating expenses, consisting of cost of sales, selling expenses and administrative ex-
penses, rose significantly in fiscal 2007. the eur 670.6 million increase in operating ex-
penses, to eur 2.335 billion, resulted in part from the eur 436.1 million that came from 
the first consolidation of sbs. also as a consequence of the consolidation, the group 
must now take impairment charges on the sbs purchase price allocation. these came to 
eur 75.5 million for 2007. the total acquisition-based depreciation and amortization re-
cognized in the cost of sales and selling expenses rose significantly, by eur 76.2 million, 
to a total of eur 82.8 million. the following table shows the breakdown of write-downs 
for purchase price allocations:

2007 2006

cost of sales 6.4 -/-

selling expenses 76.4 6.6

82.8 6.6

PPA amortization ProSiebenSat.1 Group

in eur m

administrative expenses increased also because of a one-time expense of eur 120.0 
million resulting from a non-tax-deductible fine imposed by germany’s federal cartel 
office. the fine will be paid after the reporting period. the first of two installments was 
paid early in 2008.

the consolidation of sbs raised consumption of programming assets to eur 1.135 billion, 
compared to eur 946.7 million the year before

Non-recurring factors affect results of operations; recurring EBITDA climbs 
vigorously

ebitDa increased 8.0 percent, to eur 521.3 million (2006: eur 482.9 million). the posi-
tive effects of the first consolidation of sbs were partly offset by the eur 120.0 million 
federal cartel office fine. this factor also explains why the ebitDa margin declined to 
19.3 percent from the prior year’s 23.0 percent. after deductions for non-recurring fac-
tors, adjusted (recurring) ebitDa rose to eur 661.9 million, exceeding the prior-year fi-
gure by 36.3 percent (2006: eur 485.6 million). the recurring ebitDa margin increased 
to 24.5 percent (2006: eur 23.2 percent).

the net interest expense was eur –115.7 million. the eur 72.8 million expansion of the 
figure came primarily from higher interest expense resulting from the financing for the 
sbs acquisition. interest expense rose eur 96.6 million, to eur 143.8 million. only part 
of this increase was offset by lower other financing expenses and by interest income 
from the termination of interest-rate swaps. as a result, the financial result declined 
from eur –57.5 million to eur –135.5 million. the pre-tax result for the period decreased 
accordingly by eur 136.5 million, to eur 248.8 million.

transaction totaled 3.3 eur bn

ppa amortization sbs 75,5 eur m 

goodwill (fair value) 2,4 eur bn

intangible assets
(step up fair Value)

884 eur bn

SBS Broadcasting Group 
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2007 2006

pre-tax profit 248.8 385.3

financial income 135.5 57.5

operating result 384.3 442.8

Depreciation and amortization 137.0 40.1

   (thereof ppa) (82.8) (6.6)

ebitDa 521.3 482.9

fine from the federal cartel office 120.0 -/-

other non-recurring items 20.6 2.7

recurring ebitDa 661.9 485.6

Reconciliation of recurring EBITDA

in eur m

in fiscal 2007, income taxes of eur 152.7 million were somewhat higher, compared to 
eur 142.3 million in the previous year. the non-tax-deductible fine in fiscal 2007 increa-
sed the group’s tax rate from 36.9 percent to 61.4 percent. 

after deducting the tax expenses and minority interests, the consolidated net profit was 
eur 89.4 million, compared to eur 240.7 million for fiscal 2006. earnings per preferred 
share came to eur 0.42, compared to eur 1.11.

the adjusted consolidated net profit after minority interests (underlying net income) 
rose 11.8 percent against the prior year, to eur 272.8 million (2006: eur 243.9 million). 
this figure does not include either the impairment charges taken as part of the purchase 
price allocation or federal cartel office fine. 

Financial position and net worth

acquisitions and capital expenditures          

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG acquires SBS Broadcasting Group
on June 27, 2007, prosiebensat.1 media ag signed a share purchase agreement to ac-
quire all of the sbs broadcasting group. the agreement was consummated on July 3. 
the transaction totaled eur 3.3 billion. the sbs broadcasting group represents the big-
gest acquisition in the corporation’s history. more information on the sbs acquisition 
and on setting up the integrated group appears below and on page 24. 

Further acquisitions in fiscal 2007
in July prosiebensat.1 media ag acquired all of austrian station puLs tV, and in august 
it incorporated the new station into the consolidated financial statements, with the con-
sent of the antitrust authorities. the acquisition of the free tV station strategically com-
plements the group’s portfolio of brands and programming in austria. puLs tV will also 
serve as a producer for the stations prosieben austria, sat.1 Österreich, and kabel eins 
austria.

at the beginning of the fiscal year, the prosiebensat.1 group had already acquired a ma-
jority interest in solute gmbH, which operates the online price search engine billiger.de. 
in July, the group signed an agreement to acquire the remainder of magic internet Hol-
ding gmbH. this additional purchase was another step in the group’s efforts to expand 
its online services. magic internet Holding gmbH operates myVideo, the largest german-
speaking video community on the internet. in august, the prosiebensat.1 group also ac-
quired a majority interest in the wer-weiss-was.de advice platform. this expert informa-
tion service is germany’s leading portal for knowledge sharing on the internet. 

investments in programming assets represent another focus of investment activity, 
alongside acquisitions. this investment policy is explained in more detail in the “pro-
gramming” section on page 39. 

Launch of a pan-European broadcasting 

champion 

 Group and business conditions

Acquisition of the free TV station  

PULS TV in Austria

Acquisitions strengthened business 

unit Diversification 

2007

Net income from continuing 
operations (after minorities) 89.3

amortization of purchase 
price allocation 
(after taxes)

63.5

fine from the 
federal cartel office

120.0

Underlying net income 272.8

Reconciliation
Underlying net income
in eur m

* amortization of purchase price allocation
before taxes: 82.2 eur m

Investments in attractive

programming content 

 Programming
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financial position

Principles and objectives of financial management
the primary goals of financial management at the prosiebensat.1 group  are safeguar-
ding liquidity and enhancing financial strength. the group’s broad financing leeway is 
ensured with a revolving syndicated line of credit for a total of eur 600 million. additi-
onally, the group’s debt maturity profile includes a large proportion of long-term finan-
cing instruments. managing financial risk is a further important goal of financial manage-
ment. the tools that the prosiebensat.1 group applies to limit this risk include derivative 
financial instruments. 

Financing measures for the SBS acquisition

New syndicated credit facility agreed
the transaction for the acquisition of the sbs broadcasting group totaled eur 3.3 billi-
on, including the acquired group’s net financial liabilities. the transaction was financed 
entirely with a new secured syndicated credit facility.  the loan funding of eur 3.6 bil-
lion was provided by a banking syndicate and institutional investors. along with cove-
ring purchase price and transaction costs, the loan refinanced financial liabilities of the 
sbs broadcasting group that were outstanding at the time of the acquisition, and an 
outstanding corporate bond of prosiebensat.1 media ag. the prosiebensat.1 group has 
hedged some 80 percent of its variable-interest financial liabilities by way of a variety of 
interest-rate swaps. 

the loan agreement covers a number of term loans totaling eur 1.8 billion, with a term 
of seven years (term Loan b) and loans for a total of another eur 1,8 billion with a term 
of eight years (term Loan c). the agreement also includes a new revolving credit facili-
ty with a term of seven years and a total limit of eur 600 million. it may be drawn in va-
riable amounts. the new revolving credit facility replaces a syndicated credit line from 
2006 with an amount of eur 500 million.

EUR 150 million bond issue retired early
a eur 150 million bond issue from prosiebensat.1 media ag was retired early as of au-
gust 1, 2007. the bond, issued in 2004, had a fixed yield of 6.25 percent and was original-
ly due for repayment in 2009. the redemption price was 101.858 percent of par.

Borrowings
Net financial debt
at December 31, 2007, the group had net financial debt of eur 3.328 billion, compared 
to eur 121.8 million a year earlier. net financial debt is the total of bonds and bank liabi-
lities, less cash and cash equivalents and current securities. the group’s financial liabili-
ties grew from eur 185.6 million to eur 3.6 billion, primarily because of the financing for 
the sbs acquisition. Long-term bank debt with a remaining term of more than one year 
was eur 3.577 billion (December 31, 2006: eur 184.0 million).

Credit lines
at December 31, 2007, the group had funds of eur 555.8 million available under its  re-
volving credit facility. eur 44.2 million of this facility were used as a bank guarantee. ad-
ditionally, the group had cash and cash equivalents of eur 250.8 million.

Leases
for property it uses at the unterföhring site, prosiebensat.1 media ag has leases that 
qualify as finance leases under ias 17. the properties are capitalized as part of property, 
plant and equipment, and the associated leases are recognized under “other liabilities.” 
the earliest expiration of these leases is scheduled for 2019, but the interest rate conver-
sion dates (the end of the interest rate lock-down period) may be earlier. 

 Risk Report

The higher debt level still leaves enough 

financial leeway for the Group’s further 

strategic and operational expansion

 Company outlook

Rate risk hedged by way of 

interest-rate swaps

 Risk Report
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Off-balance-sheet financial instruments
the prosiebensat.1 group had no off-balance-sheet financial instruments during the 
year.

Credit rating

prosiebensat.1 media ag retired its outstanding corporate bond early, as of august 1, 
2007. it now has no corporate bonds outstanding. consequently moody’s and fitch ra-
tings have upgraded their ratings. both rating agencies have regularly evaluated prosie-
bensat.1 media ag’s credit standing since 2001.

cash and cash equivalents, and cash flow

the group’s cash flow statement shows the origin and use of cash flows. it distinguis-
hes among cash flows from operating activities, investing activities and financing activi-
ties. the cash flow from operating activities is derived indirectly from the group’s profit 
for the period. the cash and cash equivalents indicated in the cash flow statement are 
equivalent to the “cash and cash at bank” shown in the balance sheet as of the repor-
ting date. 

the cash flow from operating activities was up eur 321.6 million against the year be-
fore, to eur 1.594 billion. the increase in operating cash flow derived mainly from a de-
crease in working capital (non-interest-bearing receivables less non-interest-bearing li-
abilities). the significant decrease in cash tie-up resulted primarily from an increase in 
(current) liabilities during fiscal 2007.

the cash flow from investing activities increased by eur 2.289 billion, to a net outflow 
of eur 3.269 billion. most of the new figure was for payments relating to the sbs acqui-
sition, including the purchase price of some eur 2.1 billion. additionally, the prosieben-
sat.1 group acquired a majority interest in various online portals and in the free tV sta-
tion puLs tV during the period.  in addition to expenditures for acquisitions, the incre-
ase in cash flow from investing activities resulted from higher programming investments. 
investments in programming assets were up eur 221.7 million against the year before, 
to eur 1.177 billion.  because of intense investment activity, free cash flow decreased 
from eur 292.4 million to eur –1.675 billion.

the cash flow from financing activities yielded a net inflow of eur 1.863 billion, compa-
red to an outflow of eur 386.4 million in 2006. the inflow came primarily from the new 
credit agreement signed in connection with financing the sbs transaction. a total of eur 
192.5 million was paid for dividends, compared to eur 181.6 million the year before.

at the end of the period on December 31, 2007, the group had cash and cash equivalents 
of eur 250.8 million, compared to eur 63.5 million a year earlier.

asset and capital ratios

SBS acquisition affects balance sheet items

Total assets increased significantly compared to the level on December 31, 2006. most 
of the sharp increase of eur 4.067 billion, to eur 5.999 billion, results from the first con-
solidation of the business of the sbs broadcasting group. apart from the sbs broadca-
sting group’s assets and liabilities, which are recognized at fair value, the balance sheet 
shows the capitalized goodwill that derived from the first consolidation of sbs at July 3, 
2007. the sbs acquisition was financed from borrowings. it resulted in the following ma-
terial changes on the assets and equity/liabilities sides of the balance sheets:

 Programming

 Acquisitions and capital expenditures
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Non-current assets as of December 31, 2007, grew eur 3.485 billion to reach eur 4.837 
billion. the chief factors here were increases in intangible assets, which rose eur 3.207 
billion against December 31, 2006, to reach eur 3.535 billion. this figure includes the 
intangible assets of sbs – including license rights and brands – for eur 884.0 million, 
which were fair valued as part of the preliminary purchase price allocation. goodwill of 
eur 2.363 billion was also capitalized as part of the first consolidation of sbs. Likewise 
among the non-current assets, long-term programming assets showed additions as a re-
sult of the first consolidation of sbs. the balance-sheet figure was eur 917.1 million – up 
eur 136.0 million from the prior-year value. 

short-term programming assets also increased significantly in this connection, to eur 
400.6 million, compared to eur 275.2 million a year earlier. in all, current assets increa-
sed eur 582.4 million against December 31, 2006, to eur 1.162 billion.  in addition to an 
increase in programming assets, this rise resulted primarily from trade receivables and 
from the cash and equivalents added as part of the first consolidation of sbs.

Shareholders’ equity decreased eur 178.2 million against December 31, 2006, to eur 
1.062 billion. the decrease in equity resulted primarily from the group’s results of ope-
rations, which were influenced by one-off factors. the equity ratio decreased to 17.7 per-
cent against the prior year, compared to 64.2 percent on December 31, 2006. the decre-
ase in the equity ratio resulted from the borrowings to finance the sbs transaction and 
the resulting changes in balance sheet ratios. 

the increase in total equity and liabilities resulted primarily from an increase in long-
term interest-bearing liabilities associated with the financing for the sbs acquisition. 
Long-term financial liabilities rose to eur 3.577 billion, up eur 3.393 billion from the 
comparable figure on December 31, 2006. all in all, on December 31, 2007, non-current 
liabilities came to eur 3.997 billion, compared to eur 307.6 million a year earlier.

current liabilities also increased, to eur 939.5 million, following eur 384.0 million a year 
earlier. in connection with the consolidation of sbs, this item includes a significant in-
crease in current trade payables, which rose eur 158.1 million against the prior year, to 
eur 335.0 million. 

aside from the higher current trade payables, other short-term financial liabilities and 
higher provisions also contributed to the increase in current liabilities. the primary re-
ason for the eur 258.0 million increase in other liabilities to eur 362.3 million was the 
payment obligation of eur 120.0 million resulting from the proceedings before germany’s 
federal cartel office. the first of two installments was paid out after the end of the peri-
od, in January 2008. the largest single provision item is for taxes.

Assets and liabilities available for sale
because of the planned sale of prosiebensat.1 produktion, the balance sheet of the pro-
siebensat.1 group recognizes the business of this subsidiary as current assets available 

The Group‘s programming assets 

increased significantly

  Programming
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for sale. the value is measured at eur 31.0 million. on the equities and liabilities side, this 
item is carried as a current liability available for sale, in the amount of eur 12.4 million.

Programming

the prosiebensat.1 group is europe’s only genuine family of tV channels. all its free tV 
stations are wholly-owned subsidiaries, a competitive advantage in both the production 
and the subsequent use of programming. since these subsidiaries are fully integrated, 
and processes such as purchasing and production are centralized, the result is an opti-
mum in synergies and savings. the merger of prosiebensat.1 with sbs has created a eu-
ropean network with an expanded pool of creativity and ideas. to make the most effici-
ent use of its new resources and create economies of scale, during fiscal 2007 the pro-
siebensat.1 group combined its content-driven operations as a central “group content” 
unit. in addition to domestic and international programming purchases, this unit includes 
operations that already existed before – international programming sales, central pro-
duction management, and programming production. a new group format acquisitions 
unit was also formed, which specializes in tracking down programming that can be imple-
mented for a variety of tV stations in different geographical markets. 

Initiatives Advantages Examples

back-to-back productions economies of scale in programming rights negotiations

pan-european productions and contract negotiations

the next uri geller,

clever

Joint development Joint development and management to mine full creative 

potential and cut station costs

survivor, stars auf eis, are you 

smarter than a fifth grader?

Joint productions Joint production of programming for multiple countries: significantly lower 

production costs thanks to shared use of a single set 

popstars

multiple reuse of content tV content can be shown in multiple countries galileo

program roll-outs successful concepts can be adapted for multiple countries galileo

New production methods of a pan-european TV Company

Program development

the prosiebensat.1 group conducts extensive programming research. to discover and 
develop promising programming concepts at an early stage, the company constantly 
monitors tV markets worldwide, evaluating what programming might be of interest for 
the group’s audiences and stations. on its new footing, the group has additional resour-
ces and valuable know-how. Joint development projects allow it to profit from its indivi-
dual stations’ market expertise. at the same time, integrated resource pools cut costs 
and enhance the stations’ profitability.  

Programming purchases and investments in programming assets

the success of the prosiebensat.1 group, as one of europe’s leading tV providers, hinges 
most of all on its long-term investments in expanding and updating its programming 
assets. the group expanded its programming portfolio once again in 2007 through 
purchases and contract extensions. the three largest contracts, of the kind known as 
volume deals, were signed with columbia pictures television Holdings inc., Walt Disney 
company Ltd., and spyglass entertainment. the pan-european group invested a total of 
eur 1.177 billion in programming rights purchases in 2007, compared to eur 955.0 milli-
on the year before. programming purchases are paid for out of operating cash flow. 

the company has long-standing business relationships with many agents and film pro-
duction companies, and has long-term contracts with virtually every major Hollywood 
studio and the major european film production companies. among the programming sup-
pliers are columbia pictures television Holdings inc., paramount pictures global, cbs 
international television, Disney-abc international television, Warner bros. internati-
onal television Distribution inc., mgm international television Distribution inc., Lucas-
film LtD, and Dreamworks sKg. the group also has rights to the most attractive titles 

  Liquidity and cash flow
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in Kirchmedia’s extensive film library. since 2003 the prosiebensat.1 group has had a 
long-term purchase agreement with the insolvency administrator of Kirchmedia gmbH 
& co. Kgaa, covering the rights to more than 2,000 films and more than 120 series from 
europe’s largest programming library. these contracts and access rights not only ensu-
re that the group’s stations will enjoy an excellent supply of programming, but also pro-
vide an important foundation for future license negotiations. apart from stable business 
relationships, the group’s large purchasing volume also strengthens its negotiating po-
sition with the studios. 

the merger with sbs has expanded the group’s network and gained it additional contrac-
ting partners. in its new position as a pan-european group, the company also has an open 
doorway to new markets, and holds the rights to access additional platforms. 

Program production 

investments in commissioned and in-house productions serve as a complement to licen-
sed rights. it is becoming more and more common for stations to define their own per-
sonalities with their own programming. programming produced in-house helps ensure 
audience recognition in the intensely competitive tV market. additionally, unlike pro-
gramming shown on license, these shows can be produced daily or weekly over extended 
periods.  in-house productions and commissioned productions are ordered directly by 
the tV stations themselves. the in-house and commissioned productions the group or-
ders concentrate mainly on television films, series, light entertainment, information ma-
gazines and news broadcasts. for years now, there has been a balanced ratio between 
licensed programming and in-house or commissioned productions. not only does this 
arrangement safeguard the group’s programming variety, but a well-balanced range of 
programming also establishes a degree of independence from such market uncertainties 
as price fluctuations. 

Programming assets

the group’s current and non-current programming assets came to eur 1.318 billion at 
December 31, 2007, and thus represented 22.0 percent of total assets. together with the 
effects of the consolidation of sbs, additions to programming assets helped increase to-
tal assets by eur 261.4 million against the prior year.  programming assets are one of 
the most important items on the balance sheet, and are mainly feature films and series, 
along with commissioned productions intended for single or multiple airings, and advan-
ce payments for future productions. future payment obligations for programming assets 
already under contract, but whose license period had not yet begun as of the reporting 
date and for which payments were still to be made as of that date, are reported as other 
financial liabilities. 

Employees

SBS consolidation increases workforce

at December 31, 2007, the prosiebensat.1 group had 5,930 employees throughout euro-
pe, compared to 3,097 a year earlier. the reported personnel figures have included the 
employees of the former sbs broadcasting group since July 2007. 

the average number of full-time-equivalent positions rose 1,552 in fiscal 2007, to 4,852. 
approximately 3,100 of these were located in germany, austria and switzerland. the 
substantial increase of 52.2 percent in the average size of the group’s work force re-
sulted primarily from the first consolidation of sbs in July 2007. another contributing 
factor was employees who are being reported for the first time since solute was conso-
lidated in february 2007, and puls tV and myVideo were consolidated in august 2007. 
an additional contribution to the increase came from the new hires that 9Live and se-
vensenses took on to handle their expanded business operations. by contrast, efficiency 
enhancement programs reduced staff size at some companies, especially sat.1 and the 
regional companies.

In-house and commissioned productions 

strengthen profile of the stations

  Outlook

  Assset and capital ratios

  Risk Report
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personnel expenses (included in the cost of sales, selling expenses and administrative ex-
penses) increased from eur 235.5 million to eur 323.6 million in fiscal 2007. the higher 
personnel expenses resulted primarily from the first consolidation of sbs. 

We do not present comparison figures for staff turnover and average time with the com-
pany for the integrated group, since sbs was not part of the scope of consolidation of 
prosiebensat.1 during the comparison period of 2006. staff turnover for the prosie-
bensat.1 group by itself in fiscal 2007 remained low, at 11.2 percent (2006: 9.7 percent). 
permanent employees’ average time with the company came to 5.2 years (2006: 4.7 
years). 

Training and continuing education: Key to a successful future 

the group’s ability to innovate is a very important factor in staying competitive. We en-
sure that our staff is highly qualified through systematic further training and continuing 
education programs that take account of not just what’s needed from the individual now, 
but what the market may need in the future. in germany alone, some 1,000 employees 
participated in in-house and outside courses of training during fiscal 2007. as a conse-
quence of the group’s international reorientation, the number of language courses tri-
pled compared to 2006. 

strategic assistance and training for the next generation are additional components of 
our human resource planning. to attract qualified employees at an early stage and sa-
feguard our competitiveness for the long term, the prosiebensat.1 group trains a lar-
ge number of apprentices, volunteers and trainees in a number of different areas eve-
ry year. the group significantly expanded its volunteer and trainee programs in 2007. 
apart from volunteer positions in tV, pr and online operations, it now offers positions 
in its very promising multimedia games business. as of 2007, trainee programs have ex-
panded from marketing into other significant areas such as sales, personnel, crm and 
product management. the range of training for beginners in the media industry also in-
cludes internships. 

The intranet relaunch: An important step in integrating SBS and ProSiebenSat.1 

in september 2007, the prosiebensat.1 group’s intranet was thoroughly revised and re-
launched on a platform that uses state-of-the-art technology. the new platform com-
bines information capabilities with interactive Web 2.0 components. the core of the in-
tranet, which is available in both german and english, is a content management system 
that can be used on both a centralized and decentralized basis. every employee of the 
integrated group has access to this internal communication platform. the pan-europe-
an networking of group employees on a shared communication platform is an important 
step on the way toward fully integrating prosiebensat.1 and sbs.

Research and development

the prosiebensat.1 group conducts extensive market research in every area in which it 
does business and in every area where it foresees growth potential. However, market re-
search activities do not fit the definition of research and development in the strict sense.
for that reason, this information is omitted from the group‘s management report. 

Results-based component 

and management by objectives

  The internal management system
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Segment Report

Notes about segment reporting

the activities of the former sbs broadcasting group are included as part of the new 
free tV international and Diversification segments. sbs has been fully consolidated sin-
ce July 2007, and is proportionally included in the figures for fiscal 2007. since sbs was 
not a part of the prosiebensat.1 group in fiscal 2006, its prior-year figures are not inclu-
ded in the prosiebensat.1 consolidated financial statements. However, in order to provi-
de a commentary on the performance of business operations in the free tV internatio-
nal segment since the consolidation of the sbs broadcasting group, here we refer back 
to sbs’s prior-year figures.

Free TV in German-Speaking Europe segment

as part of the first consolidation of sbs, the segment structure of the prosiebensat.1 
group has been changed. the former free tV segment has now been renamed the free 
tV in german-speaking europe segment. in addition to the group’s stations – sat.1, pro-
sieben, kabel eins, and n24 – in germany, the segment’s highest-revenue region, this 
segment also includes the group’s subsidiaries in austria and switzerland.

EBITDA performance affected by one-time expenses

During the third quarter of 2007, there were gathering signs that consumer spending 
in germany would not pick up as expected. nevertheless, the free tV in german-spea-
king europe segment generated higher advertising revenues, and increased its overall 
revenues to eur 1.900 billion against fiscal 2006, a gain of eur 42.8 million or 2.3 per-
cent. the increase resulted in particular from the good performance of the advertising-fi-
nanced stations prosieben and kabel eins. in combination with low consumer confidence, 
weak ratings at sat.1 slowed down the segment’s revenue growth overall. 

the segment’s earnings performance was affected by one-time expenses of eur 120.0 
million resulting from proceedings before germany’s federal cartel office. as a conse-
quence, ebitDa declined eur 81.3 million (–19.0 percent), to eur 346.3 million. but ebit-
Da after adjustment for non-recurring exceptional factors (recurring ebitDa) grew eur 
54.1 million, or 12.6 percent, to reach eur 484.4 million. apart from the revenue incre-
ase, the growth of recurring ebitDa also derived from cost controls during fiscal 2007.

ProSieben: A popular 

award-winner

according to a forsa survey, pro-

sieben is the most popular stati-

on among the 14-to-49 demogra-

phic. and the station also scores 

with critics, winning four german 

television prizes and two ger-

man comedy prizes for the year. 

PULS TV in Austria

the July 2007 acquisition of all 

of Vienna metropolitan area sta-

tion puLs tV strengthens the 

group’s core business in free 

tV and expands the group’s 

commitment in austria. the 

station has been fully conso-

lidated since august 2007.

Highlights 2007

N24: News station leads in ad-

vertising revenues and viewers

n24 increases its advertising 

revenues significantly in fis-

cal 2007. With a 1.1 percent au-

dience share, the news chan-

nel is well ahead of its principal 

competitor n-tv among the key 

demographic. n24 also over-

takes its cologne competitor 

in gross advertising revenues. 

Free TV International segment

the acquisition of the sbs broadcasting group brought the group a number of free tV 
stations in northern and eastern europe and in the netherlands and belgium, which are 
combined as the new free tV international segment.

New Free TV International segment performs very well

the free tV international segment, which was first consolidated as of July 2007, enjo-
yed vigorous revenue and earnings growth. based on pro forma figures for the second 
half of 2006, the segment’s revenues for July through December 2007 grew 8.8 percent, 

in eur m
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to eur 403.9 million (July-December 2006: eur 371.2 million). the segment enjoyed vi-
gorous revenue growth in every region. the region with the strongest revenues was the 
netherlands and belgium, followed by northern europe.

this dynamic revenue performance – most of which came from higher advertising reve-
nues – also improved the results of operations further. ebitDa for July through Decem-
ber 2007 grew 18.2 percent, to eur 109.3 million (July-December 2006: eur 92.5 milli-
on). recurring ebitDa increased 11.8 percent, to eur 112.0 million (July-December 2006: 
eur 100.2 million).

in eur m
Recurring EBITDA Free TV International
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FEM launched

the september launch of free 

tV station fem expands the 

prosiebensat.1 group’s acti-

vities in norway. fem’s tar-

get audience is women bet-

ween the ages of 20 and 49. 

Dutch stations report their 

most successful year ever

Dutch stations net 5, sbs 6 and 

Veronica set a new audience re-

cord in fiscal 2007. With a com-

bined audience share of 26.3 

percent of the 20-to 49 demo-

graphic, the stations add about 

nine percent to their prior-year 

figure (2006: 24.2 percent). 

Highlights 2007

The Voice TV overtakes MTV  

for the first time, finnish mu-

sic station the Voice tV enjoys 

a wider reach than its competi-

tor mtV finland in 2007, making 

the Voice the country’s most 

widely watched music channel.

note: audience share indicated for commercial time (including “the Voice”  in the relevant countries)
(1)  share of viewing in 20-49 years target group
(2) share of viewing in 12-44 years target group. 
(3) share of viewing in 15-44 years target group. romania quarterly data based on urban population. 
      b elgian data refer to the region of flanders.
(4) share of viewing in 15-50 years target group except Hungarian data which are based on 18-49 years target group.
(5) basis: prosieben, sat.1, kabel eins and n24. all german tV households (germany + eu), mo.-son., 03:00-03:00h,  
      age of viewers 14-49.

        

Audience share by country (In percent)

2006 2007

netherlands (1) 20.3 21.9

norway (2) 14.1 13.6

sweden (3) 14.7 15.2

Denmark (4) 8.4 7.6

belgium (3) 15.8 15.2

Hungary (4) 26.1 23.6

romania (3) 7.0 6.8

germany (5) 29.4 29.0
 

Diversification segment

Diversification activities that were added by way of sbs, such as radio, print and the pre-
mium pay tV services of c more/canal+, are included together with the group’s previous 
diversification activities under the Diversification unit. the former transaction tV and 
other Diversification segments have also been incorporated into the new segment.

Diversification segment grows both organically and through acquisitions

the Diversification segment’s revenue performance picked up speed in fiscal 2007. or-
ganic growth, and most especially the first consolidation of sbs, pushed segment reve-
nues up eur 160.7 million, or 67.5 percent, to eur 398.8 million. the full consolidation 
of solute, myVideo and wer-weiss-was.de also strengthened the segment. organic reve-
nue growth was 7.4 percent; the sbs acquisition contributed 35.9 percent to revenues. 
important drivers of organic growth included online, games, and basic pay tV operations, 
as well as the expansion of the starwatch music label and of the group’s worldwide pro-
gramming sales company, sevenone international. 
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total costs for the segment increased significantly in fiscal 2007. apart from a cost in-
crease resulting from the sbs acquisition, most of the rise resulted from 9Live’s expan-
ded business operations. one factor was the startup and production costs for the 9Live 
international unit. in fiscal 2007, the quiz station signed cooperation agreements for call 
tV programming windows in turkey, spain, the middle east and croatia, and produced 
interactive shows for its partners under these agreements as a full service provider. ano-
ther source of higher expenses was the restructuring of the Diversification segment as 
part of the call tV station’s refocusing as the group’s corporate service provider for its 
telephone-based and interactive operations. the expansion of activities at sevensenses 
and starwatch music also resulted in higher expenses. sevensenses began operation in 
fiscal 2006, and is in charge of such businesses as the group’s two german-language 
pay tV stations (kabel eins classics and sat.1 comedy) and the maxdome video-on-de-
mand portal.

Despite higher costs, ebitDa also made strong gains to reach eur 65.8 million, compa-
red to eur 55.6 million in fiscal 2006 – an 18.3 percent increase, part of which derives 
from the first consolidation of sbs. recurring ebitDa was up 18.0 percent, to eur 65.6 
million (2006: eur 55.6 million).

Veronica magazine

Print

Large circulation: Veronica Magazine

Veronica magazine, a tV program periodical, expands its lead in the intensely competitive Dutch market again in 

fiscal 2007. the prosiebensat.1 group’s tV magazine is the only periodical of its kind to increase its circulation in 

the netherlands, reaching a weekly print run of more than 1,000,000.

in eur m
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Basic Pay TV

New distribution for Sat.1 Comedy and kabel eins classics 

the prosiebensat.1 group has tapped new distribution paths for its pay tV stations sat.1 comedy and kabel eins 

classics. since the fall of 2007, both channels have been available in digital distribution on premiere star, as the 

“prosiebensat.1 plus” package. since november, the digital satellite platform arenasat has also carried both 

channels as part of its “arenasat Komplett” and “arenasat family” packages.

Music and sports join video-on-demand array

maxdome expands its services again in fiscal 2007. in addition to films and series, now the platform also offers vi-

deos of sports events and musical concerts. With more than 10.000 titles, maxdome has germany’s largest selec-

tion of videos downloadable via DsL, and more than 200,000 active users. the video-on-demand portal’s lead is 

also reconfirmed by an iptV award in august 2007.maxdome

Online

ProSiebenSat.1 Networld still growing

the prosiebensat.1 group continues its expansion on the internet. in fiscal 2007, the group adds to its online port-

folio, acquiring majority interests in the billiger.de price search engine and wer-weiss-was.de, germany’s leading 

advice platform. prosiebensat.1 networld is germany’s second-largest online network.

SevenGames.de

the prosiebensat.1 group is investing in new digital distribution channels: in the summer of 2007, the group 

launches a no-charge Web tV concept, sevengames tV, at the game platform www.sevengames.de.

sevengames.de
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Music

Strongest growth of any label in Germany

in fiscal 2007, starwatch music, the prosiebensat.1 group’s music label, enjoys the strongest growth of any la-

bel, and is the second biggest domestic label in germany in terms of market share, according to the me-

dia control charts. starwatch singer roger cicero is germany’s most successful album artist, following Her-

bert grönemeyer. the songs “shame” and “Hot summer” from girl band monrose and the summer hit “Vaya-

mos compañeros” from marquess place three starwatch singles in media control’s top 15 chart for the year.

monrose

International programming sales

Programming portfolio in demand internationally

sevenone international continues to pursue its successful business model. in fiscal 2007, seveno-

ne international sells prosieben’s hit “schlag den raab” concept to the uK, sweden, finland, and 

the usa, along with other programming sales. uri geller’s show “the successor” is sold to the uni-

ted states, canada and australia. the internationally active company also begins representing con-

cepts from the former sbs stations for the first time at the mipcom film and tV trade show in cannes.

uri geller

The ProSiebenSat.1 Share

Stock price performance     

During the first half of 2007, prosiebensat.1 stock continued its positive performance 
from 2006. at the end of June the stock, which had closed at eur 24.85 at the end of 
2006, reached eur 29.50, outperforming the relevant indexes of comparison.  However, 
the stock was unable to maintain its uptrend in the second half. the subprime crisis ad-
versely affected its price performance, because hedge funds in particular were forced to 
cut back their positions. at the end of fiscal 2007, like many other cyclic stocks, prosie-
bensat.1 stock came under pressure from the rising skepticism about the performance 
of the german economy. the stock closed out the last trading day of 2007 at eur 16.39.  
During the period a total of 180,638,874 shares were traded over the Xetra trading sy-
stem, equivalent to an average trading volume of about 716,820 shares per day.  Legal environment

 prosiebensat.1  euro stoxx media  mDaX  DaX
basis: Xetra closing quotes. an index 100 = January 2, 2007; source: bloomberg

index

ProSiebenSat.1 share: Price performance
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Shareholders’ meeting for fiscal 2006    

the annual meeting of the shareholders of prosiebensat.1 media ag was held in mu-
nich on July 17, 2007. With about 200 shareholders attending, some 64 percent of the 
company’s capital stock was present. a full 100 percent of the voting share capital was 
represented, and about 27 percent of the preferred share capital. 

all motions by the executive board and supervisory board for decisions requiring share-
holder consent were carried unanimously. among other resolutions, the shareholders 
approved the proposed dividend payment for fiscal 2006 of eur 0.87 per share of com-
mon stock (2005: eur 0.82) and eur 0.89 per share of preferred stock (2005: eur 
0.84). thus 80 percent of prosiebensat.1 media ag’s consolidated net profit (after mi-
nority interests) for fiscal 2006 was distributed (2005: 82 percent). in all, prosieben-
sat.1 media ag distributed eur 192.5 million (2005: eur 181.6 million) to the holders of 
its common and preferred stock. the dividend was paid out as of July 18, 2007, the day 
after the meeting. additionally, the meeting approved the supplementary nominees to 
the supervisory board. marinus maria petrus van Lent, president international of tele-
graaf media groep, n.V., Heinz-Joachim neubürger, managing Director and senior advi-
sor at Kohlberg Kravis roberts & co. Ltd., adrianus Johannes swartjes, chairman of the 
board of telegraaf media groep n.V., and Katrin Wehr-seiter, a principal at permira be-
teiligungsberatung gmbH, were elected as new members of the supervisory board. the 
other members elected in the supplemental elections had already sat on the supervisory 
board since march 7, as court-appointed members. following the shareholders’ meeting, 
the newly constituted supervisory board reconfirmed götz mäuser, a partner at permira, 
and Lord clive Hollick, a partner at KKr, as the board’s chairman and Vice-chairman. 

Investor relations activities

once again in fiscal 2007, the prosiebensat.1 group kept analysts, investors, private 
shareholders and ratings agencies promptly and fully informed about the company’s 
business performance. the executive board and the investor relations team provided an 
accounting of the group to institutional investors at road shows in the financial centers 
of europe and the usa.  the company also presented itself at international investor con-
ferences, and held many one-on-one meetings in unterföhring. the capital market was 
kept regularly informed of the group’s quarterly results and major policy decisions at ad-
ditional investor and analysts’ meetings, as well as in conference calls. 

the prosiebensat.1 corporate Web site is more and more popular. During 2007, the inve-
stor relations page at www.prosiebensat1.com/investor_relations/ received an average 
of 30,000 hits a month. this represents an increase of about 30 percent in page impres-
sions against the prior year. 

the high quality of the group’s investor relations work was also evident from its rankings 
in the thomson extel pan-european survey for 2007: out of 68 media firms, the prosie-
bensat.1 media ag investor relations team ranked eighth, and was once again first among 
free tV corporations. additionally, prosiebensat.1 media ag placed among the top ten 
mDaX firms for the 2007 capital investor relations prize. at the end of fiscal 2007, ap-
proximately 23 well-known brokerage firms and banks published studies on prosieben-
sat.1 stock.

Dividend for fiscal 2006

 You can find information on the 

Annual General Meeting on our 

homepage http://en.prosiebensat1.com/

investor_relations/hauptversammlung

 2006  2007

 share capital  eur  218,797,200  218,797,200

 number of preferred shares at reporting date  units  109,398,600  109,398,600

 number of common shares at reporting date (unlisted)  units  109,398,600  109,398,600

 close (Xetra)  eur  24.85  16.39

 market capitilization at the end of the fiscal year (incl. common stock)  eur m  5,437  3,586

 High close (Xetra)  eur  24.85  30.10

 Low close (Xetra)  eur  16.02  16.00

 Xetra trading  average daily  volume 

 in units

 550,670  716,820

 Dividend per preferred stock  eur  0.89  1.25*

 total dividends  eur m  192.5  271.3

 Dividend yield on basis of closing price  percent  3.6  7.6

 You can find additional information 

on the Supervisory Board on our 

homepage http://en.prosiebensat1.com/

unternehmen/aufsichtsrat

*dividend proposed
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Subsequent Events

Changes in the Executive Board: CFO Lothar Lanz to leave ProSiebenSat.1 Group    

Lothar Lanz, the executive board member in charge of Finances, Legal affairs & Human 
resources at prosiebensat.1 media aG, will be leaving the company soon. the CFo and 
the appropriate committee of the supervisory board arrived at this arrangement by joint 
agreement in January 2008. mr. Lanz will remain in office at prosiebensat.1 until his suc-
cessor has been appointed, presumably in the summer of 2008.

Lavena 5 acquires Axel Springer’s holding in ProSiebenSat.1 

In December 2007, axel springer aG announced that it would sell its stake in prosie-
bensat.1 media aG. Following the end of the fiscal year, the purchase agreement was 
consummated on January 15, 2008, transferring to Lavena Holding 5 GmbH all shares 
of prosiebensat.1 previously attributable to axel springer aG. the holdings in question 
were 12.0 percent of the Company’s voting common stock and 12.0 percent of the nonvo-
ting preferred stock, both held indirectly through sat.1 beteiligungs GmbH. at the same 
time, axel springer aG also withdrew as a shareholder of sat.1 beteiligungs GmbH; its 
interest of some 48.2 percent of the share capital of sat.1 beteiligungs GmbH was also 
acquired. sat.1 beteiligungs GmbH is now wholly owned by Lavena holding 5 GmbH. the 
Lavena companies now hold 100 percent of the voting common stock and approximate-
ly 25.3 percent of the nonvoting preferred stock of prosiebensat.1, after adjustment for 
other interests. this is equivalent to approximately 62.7 percent of the share capital, 
likewise after adjustment for other interests.  

Lavena Holding 4 GmbH
KKr/permira

public free float

prosiebensat.1 media aG

  62.7% Capital stock
100.0% Common stock
  25.0% preferred stock

37.3% Capital stock
74.7% preferred stock

100%

Lavena Holding 5 GmbH

  0.3% preferred stock

In connection with the sale of axel springer’s holding, both Dr. matthias Döpfner, the 
Chairman of the board of management of axel springer aG, and Christian nienhaus, then 
managing Director of the bild publishing Group, resigned from their seats on the supervi-
sory board of prosiebensat.1 media aG. they left the board effective January 15, 2008. 
new appointments, if any, to the unfilled seats on the supervisory board will be decided 
at the annual shareholders’ meeting of prosiebensat.1 media aG on June 10, 2008.

Other events after the end of fiscal 2007

From the end of fiscal 2007 to march 7, 2008, the date when this report was released for 
publication and forwarded to the supervisory board, no other events occurred that are 
of particular significance for the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of 
the prosiebensat.1 Group.

 Shareholder structure at 

December 31, 2007
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Changes in the Executive Board

New ownership structure

*

* thereof indirectly held through sat.1 beteiligungs GmbH:
   12.9% Capital stock
   12.9% Common stock
   12.9% preferred stock

Split of capital stock  
In percent

 public free float
 Lavena Holding 4 GmbH

62.67

37.33

Split of common stock
In percent

 Lavena Holding 4 GmbH

100.00
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overall risk remains manageable     
the prosiebensat.1 group is exposed to material risks from the effects of the eco-
nomy on its markets. to compensate for these risks, the prosiebensat.1 group pur-
sues a systematic strategy of diversification. the restructuring of the group’s port-
folio has also significantly changed the group’s risk structure. the borrowings to 
finance the sBs acquisition have increased financial risk. But a holistic assessment 
of risk items shows that the group’s risk position remains within bounds. additional-
ly, the sBs acquisition actually optimized the group’s overall risk/opportunity pro-
file. thanks to its highly diversified media portfolio, the new group is now set up on 
a significantly broader base, and is less dependent on cyclic fluctuations in single 
markets. 

in regard to the risk developments discussed below, group management sees no ba-
sis to suppose that any risks might have individually or in combination jeopardized 
the survival of the Company during the period. in fact, the executive Board assumes 
that with its current portfolio and the products and programming now under deve-
lopment, the group is well positioned for the future. no events or identifiable risks 
arose after the reporting period that might materially change this overall risk as-
sessment, whether individually or in combination. 
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as a pan-european media corporation, the prosiebensat.1 group will continue to take ad-
vantage of every opportunity to strengthen its already strong market position still fur-
ther. But opportunities also entail risks. effective risk management is an important factor 
in safeguarding our competitive position for the long term, and in sustainably increasing 
our company’s value. our risk management system enables us to identify, analyze and 
assess current and future potential risks at an early point, and supports efficient ma-
nagement of those risks. additionally, the prosiebensat.1 group conducts extensive mar-
ket research in every area in which it does business and in every area where it foresees 
potential risks or opportunities. 

as part of the integration of the sBs Broadcasting group, the group-wide risk manage-
ment system was revised to address the specific conditions in which the new subsidiaries 
operate. risk categories were expanded, and a reporting system was introduced with six 
categories: external risks, Content, technology risks, sales, organizational and Finan-
cial risks, and Compliance. these are not necessarily the only risks to which the group is 
exposed. risks that are currently unknown, or risks that appear minor at present, might 
still have adverse effects on business activities. For that reason, keeping a close watch 
on current developments will remain a top priority at the prosiebensat.1 group. 

Principles and processes for managing strategic and operating risk 

Clear organizational structures and an unambiguous allocation of duties and responsibi-
lities are fundamental to managing risk properly, and to identifying and making the most 
of opportunities. uniform guidelines ensure a methodical approach, and are indispensa-
ble for group-wide process control. the risk management system is tailored to the spe-
cial circumstances of the prosiebensat.1 group, and is based on the principle of including 
every segment and every subsidiary in the process. 

the prosiebensat.1 group’s risk management process follows the steps outlined below:

Risk identification: Because conditions and requirements change constantly, iden-
tifying risk is a standing assignment, and an integral part of our day-to-day work. Here 
the risk management system functions as an early warning system, helping take the 
right steps in time to avert possible damage. early warning indicators have been defi-
ned for all measurable and material areas of risk. these early warning indicators prima-
rily cover the prosiebensat.1 group’s performance in terms of audience share and ad-
vertising market share, the profitability and appeal of the program inventory, the evolu-
tion of available lines of credit, and human resources development. as soon as an indi-
cator reaches a certain tolerance limit, steps are taken to avert trouble. this approach 
means that the group’s overall risk position is always kept within tolerable bounds, and 
the opportunity-to-risk ratio is optimized overall. 
Risk assessment: not all risks are of equal importance. For effective risk management, 
major risks must be assessed systematically: their causes must be analyzed, their pro-
bability must be estimated, and their potential effects and interactions with opportu-
nities must be taken into account. recognized risks are identified and categorized on 
the basis of specific checklists, as well as planning and controlling data. Qualitative me-
thods of appraisal are also applied for risk assessment,  along with quantitative me-
thods and early warning indicators.
Risk monitoring and reporting: Decentralized risk managers at the various corporate 
units are responsible for detecting and reporting risks. these risk managers are sup-
ported by the Corporate Controlling and planning department. Controlling is also re-
sponsible for reporting to the executive Board each month. When new opportunities or 
risks arise, or individual indicators change significantly, the executive Board and super-
visory Board are notified at once, irrespective of the regular reporting intervals. this 
enables management to recognize adverse developments early, before they can cause 
harm, and to take appropriate measures to mitigate them. internal auditing reviews the 
efficacy of these processes, on the basis of a risk management manual that summarizes 
the legal context and basic principles of risk management.

 Opportunity Report

Risk management system established for pan-European Group

49
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Evolution of risk categories

the following risk groups describe major factors that might have adversely affected or 
had an impact on the group’s assets and liabilities, financial position, and profit or loss 
in fiscal 2007. 

1. External Risk

1.1 Economic conditions and the advertising market 

the prosiebensat.1 group’s business operations depend to a large degree on overall eco-
nomic conditions and developments in the markets where our advertising clients operate. 
a general weakening of the economy, especially in the core market in germany, could 
have a material effect on the prosiebensat.1 group’s business performance. Despite the 
recent turbulence in the financial market, the situation of the german economy has pro-
ved to be essentially stable. the first preliminary calculations indicate that germany clo-
sed out 2007 with robust economic growth of 2.5 percent. Corporate capital spending 
was especially positive, while consumer spending contributed less to growth than had 
been expected. the general consensus is that the economy will slow down somewhat in 
2008. Worldwide economic risks will rise appreciably during the year. Developments in 
the united states are a particular source of increasing concern. there is considerable 
worry that the crisis in mortgages and the financial market may push the american eco-
nomy into recession, with consequent adverse effects on the entire global economy. the 
ongoing increase in the cost of raw materials and the strong euro likewise offer signifi-
cant obstacles to growth for germany’s export-oriented economy.

However, the advertising market is driven primarily by domestic demand. Here the ex-
perts and the economic research institutes agree that consumer spending will pick up si-
gnificantly in 2008, strongly supporting growth in germany. in particular, the continuing 
improvement in the job market and rising consumer buying power argue that domestic 
demand will revive vigorously. 

But the economic institutes’ expert reports always point out that their projections are 
subject to a substantial risk of misjudgment. For that reason, reviewing and assessing or-
ders on hand will remain an important component of risk management. total orders are 
analyzed continuously by extensive methods that extrapolate advertising revenues for 
the year from the level of advertising bookings. monthly reports submitted to the exe-
cutive Board list actual and projected values, as well as the previous year’s advertising 
revenues, and provide a detailed picture of revenue developments. the Company’s ana-
lyses also include the position of competitors and developments within the economy and 
the advertising industry. 

2. Content Risk

2.1 License acquisition

the prosiebensat.1 group acquires many of its feature films, tV films and series as licen-
sed programming from third parties. although the programming market has stabilized 
over the past few years, some increase in prices must be expected for the future as well. 
the u.s. series in particular may continue to entail higher costs because of their present 
success.

nevertheless, the prosiebensat.1 group can generally keep price risks relatively low be-
cause of its strong position as a licensee. the group is one of the largest, most important 
licensees in the european market, and has long-standing, close business relationships 
with every major u.s. studio, and the main independents as well. at the national level 
too, the group has long-standing business relationships and contracts in its various ter-
ritories, both for the former sBs channels and their acquisitions departments, and for 
the group’s german stations. apart from stable business relationships, the group’s large 
purchasing volume also strengthens its negotiating position with the studios. the centra-
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lized organization of license purchasing, along with the complementary positioning of its 
full-service stations, also gives the prosiebensat.1 group synergies in programming use, 
on top of its advantages in program purchasing. 

the prosiebensat.1 group’s programming supply was at no time affected by the three-
month strike of Hollywood‘s screen writers. Due to the prosiebensat.1 group‘s purchase 
of several additional series in the run-up to the strike and new formats and re-runs of 
successful series, viewers and advertising clients hardly noticed a difference.

2.2 Programming inventory

the success of a programming policy depends on the programming content’s appeal and 
profitability. to ensure that the prosiebensat.1 group has the largest possible number of 
attractive, successful films, the number of highlight films acquired by the group is set in 
relation to the total number of theatrical film highlights for the same year. the resulting 
percentage offers an early warning indicator for risk reporting. a further early warning 
indicator is the total return on programming inventory. as a rule, programming contracts 
are signed several years ahead of the broadcast date. programming rights are capita-
lized in the amount of their contracted purchase price. to reduce inventory risk, the re-
venue potential of broadcasting rights under contract undergoes regular review. main-
taining an optimized number of suppliers also reduces inventory risks. a broad supplier 
base ensures independence. But at the same time, maintaining the lowest possible numb-
er of core suppliers makes the procurement process less complex. the german stations’ 
programming supplier list for fiscal 2007 included nearly 230 vendors. the value of the 
sBs stations’ broadcasting rights under licenses is tested for impairment in the course 
of the preparation of the individual companies’ annual financial statements. the group is 
harmonising the various approaches.

3. Technology Risk

3.1. Broadcasting equipment and studio operations

the broadcasting process, computer centers, and all material components of studio 
equipment at the prosiebensat.1 group’s production facilities at its Berlin and munich 
sites are protected with backup systems. in it operations, the Company has several com-
puter centers maintained at separate locations. if a server fails at one center, another 
takes over automatically, with no loss of either time or data. a certified emergency pro-
gram, updated constantly, furthermore ensures that the group’s entire it infrastructure 
is armored against software attack by outsiders. 

4. Sales Risk

4.1 Ratings

in 2008, the group’s audience share targets will be exposed to particular risks because 
of the intense competition surrounding the year’s upcoming major sports events (the eu-
ropean soccer Championship and the olympics). 

4.2 Sales

immediately following the conclusion of the investigation by the german Federal Cartel 
office, the group’s advertising marketing company, sevenone media, presented a new 
discount and fee model.  prosiebensat.1 media ag assumes that this new model will still 
enable it to achieve its corporate objectives. the new model complies with the antitrust 
requirements for discounting systems. For example, it will offer “incremental” volume 
discounts. these will apply only to the volume spent above each discount threshold, and 
will not be granted for the total volume as before. thus the discounts formerly accorded 
under “share of advertising” agreements will also be eliminated. otherwise, discounts 
will be limited to “functional” discounts, allowed only where prosiebensat.1 media ag 
reaps clearly defined cost advantages and efficiencies. another important criterion that 
sevenone media has built into its new discount model is the principle of equal treatment. 
this calls for all companies with the same spending practices to get the same discount. 
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By complying with these and other criteria, the sevenone model also satisfies the trans-
parency and neutrality requirements of the Code of Conduct promulgated by the oWm, a 
major german advertisers’ organization.

5. Organization and Finance Risk

5.1 Strategic and organizational risks posed by the integration process

acquiring new companies and integrating them into a corporation are always associa-
ted with risks. Because of the acquired entity’s magnitude, integrating the former sBs 
Broadcasting group and its subsidiaries represents a major challenge for the prosieben-
sat.1 group. the prosiebensat.1 group takes account of these risks with extensive steps 
to support the integration process. it has set up inter-company project teams whose 
task is to establish structures that will result in a rapid coalescence of the two corporate 
groups, laying down a basis for organizational coordination in corporate operations like 
content, sales and marketing, and administration. the performance of the acquired com-
panies to date, and the progress of their integration, show that the prosiebensat.1 group 
is on the right track toward achieving the operating and strategic goals it has set itself. 
the successful integration of the sBs Broadcasting group as well as the achievement of 
the operative and strategic goals is a fundamental prerequisite in generating forecasted 
dividends from investments made in order to guarantee the value of intangible as well 
as programming assets 

5.2 Financial risks

the prosiebensat.1 group’s operations and its financing needs expose it to various finan-
cial risks. Fluctuating interest rates and foreign exchange rates may affect the group’s 
assets and liabilities, financial position, and profit or loss. the acquisition of the sBs 
group has significantly altered the Corporation’s risk structure. interest rate risks in par-
ticular have risen. Financial risks are managed and monitored centrally as a part of finan-
cial risk management. For the group’s german-speaking regions, the principles, duties 
and responsibilities of financial risk management are governed by the group’s internal 
corporate financial guidelines. one of the primary tasks for fiscal 2008 is to fully inte-
grate the sBs Broadcasting group into the prosiebensat.1 group’s financial risk manage-
ment system, and to incorporate it into group-wide regulations. the objective of financial 
risk management is to cushion the adverse effects that fluctuations in financial risk fac-
tors may have on the group’s assets and liabilities, financial position and profit or loss. 
the derivative financial instruments employed for this purpose serve solely to hedge exi-
sting risks, not for speculation. risk positions are assessed regularly, and existing risks 
are quantified using sensitivity analyses. Currency risks are based on an assumed appre-
ciation of 10 percent in the value of the u.s. dollar. the prosiebensat.1 group’s interest 
rate risk is calculated by increasing the relevant interest rates by one percentage point.

5.2.1 Currency risks
the prosiebensat.1 group signs a substantial number of its license agreements with pro-
duction studios in the united states. as a rule, the group meets its financial obligations 
deriving from programming rights purchases in u.s. dollars. Consequently fluctuations in 
the exchange rate between the euro and the dollar may adversely affect the prosieben-
sat.1 group’s financial position and profit or loss. additionally, the group also has dollar-
denominated financial liabilities that result from the acquisition of sports rights.

most future license payments on a hedged dollar-denominated license agreement, toge-
ther with the associated hedging instruments, are gathered and managed in hedge books 
if the hedging relationship qualifies as a hedge under ias 39.88 and hedge accounting 
can be applied. the hedge books are constantly monitored under a system of limits, and 
any applicable open items are closed to stop potential losses or take advantage of fa-
vorable changes in exchange rates. as of December 31, 2007, there were 14 hedge books 
covering a total of usD 973 million in pending license payments. these obligations ex-
tend into the year 2019. the prior year’s obligations came to usD 997 million. of this fi-
gure, usD 698 million is hedged with currency forwards and currency options.

 Company outlook
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no hedge accounting is applied for a certain portion of the foreign currency exposure in 
u.s. dollars. in these cases, liabilities for pending license payments came to usD 432 mil-
lion at December 31, 2007.

to hedge against fluctuations in exchange rates, the prosiebensat.1 group enters into 
forward exchange contracts (“forwards”) and currency options. the average hedge ratio 
at December 31, 2007, allowing for internal limit systems, was 58 percent. a detailed de-
scription of hedging instruments, measurements and sensitivity analyses is provided in 
the notes to the Financial statements. 

since its acquisition of sBs, the prosiebensat.1 group now owns some companies located 
outside the zone where the euro is the currency. since the group’s functional currency 
is the euro, the financial statements of these companies are converted to euros for pur-
poses of the consolidated financial statements. the prosiebensat.1 group fundamentally 
views its holdings in these companies as a long-term investment, and therefore does not 
hedge the associated foreign currency translation risk.

5.2.2 Interest rate risks 
through its financial obligations, the prosiebensat.1 group is exposed to an interest rate 
risk. the acquisition of the sBs Broadcasting group was financed entirely through a new 
loan agreement. the loan agreement covers a number of term loans totaling eur 1.8 bil-
lion, with a term of seven years (term Loan B) and loans for a total of another eur 1.8 
billion with a term of eight years (term Loan C). through these variable-interest financial 
obligations, the prosiebensat.1 group is exposed to an increased interest rate risk. For 
that reason, the prosiebensat.1 group has hedged more than 80 percent of this liability 
with interest rate swaps. these interest rate hedges are used to compensate for uncer-
tain, variable-rate interest payments on borrowings by replacing those payments with 
fixed-rate interest payments. the interest rate swaps qualify as cash flow hedges that 
are covered by hedge accounting under ias 39.88.

the remaining variable interest rate risk results not only from the unhedged portion of 
the term loan, but also from any draws the group may take on its revolving credit facili-
ty. as of December 31, 2007, no use had been made of this syndicated credit facility. an 
interest rate risk in the sense of a change in market value is of no relevance here, since 
prosiebensat.1 media ag’s financial liabilities are reported at cost, and thus any change 
in market value will have no effect on the balance sheet.

5.2.3 Liquidity risks
as part of its liquidity management, the prosiebensat.1 group ensures that adequate 
cash and cash equivalents are available at all times, in spite of the industry’s sharp seaso-
nal fluctuations in revenues. another integral part of the loan agreement to finance the 
sBs acquisition was a revolving credit facility with a term of seven years and a total cre-
dit line of eur 600 million. as of December 31, 2007, no drawings of this syndicated cre-
dit facility were made. eur 44.2 million of this facility were used as bank guarantees. 

6. Compliance Risks

6.1 General compliance

Corporate governance risks arise from violations of statutory reporting obligations and 
from insufficient transparency in corporate management and corporate communica-
tions. the Corporation limits these risks with a group-wide compliance structure.  the 
program includes training employees in antitrust matters, as well as internal oversight 
and sanctioning mechanisms to prevent any violations of the antitrust laws from the out-
set.
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6.2. Antitrust laws

6.2.1 Proceedings by the German Federal Cartel Office 
(“share of advertising” discounts)
germany’s Federal Cartel office has concluded its proceedings against the prosieben-
sat.1 group’s german advertising marketer, sevenone media, in return for payment of a 
fine. the proceedings were part of an industry-wide investigation against marketers of 
advertising time and media agencies in germany. in essence, the Cartel office regards 
agreements on the “share of advertising” discounts customary in the industry as a ver-
tical restraint of competition. in setting the amount of the fine, for the first time the Fe-
deral Cartel office applied the new provisions of the seventh amended version of the an-
titrust laws in conjunction with the office’s own guidelines on fines. the new provisions 
have significantly increased fines compared to such cases under the old laws. to avert a 
wearisome court battle and adverse effects on its business activities, the prosiebensat.1 
group accepted the fine of eur 120.0 million. the first of two installments was paid ear-
ly in 2008. there can be no assurance that third parties will not attempt to bring action 
against sevenone media in the aftermath of these proceedings. However, no such ac-
tions have been brought at present.

6.2.2 Market investigation in Hungary
the Hungarian antitrust authority is currently conducting a general investigation of the 
media market, concentrating on three aspects: television advertising, the sale of televi-
sion programming, and purchases of film and sports rights. this investigation is not di-
rected against companies of the prosiebensat.1 media ag. However, the Hungarian anti-
trust authority might take the investigation as an occasion for further proceedings that 
might affect the business of the group’s free tV station tV2.  

6.3 Media law/broadcasting licenses

6.3.1 Audiovisual Media Services Directive 
after an extensive legislative process in which prosiebensat.1 media ag played an active 
role, the european audiovisual media services Directive was adopted in December 2007. 
it will replace the former eu television directive. the new directive, which includes provi-
sions on advertising and on protecting children in both linear and nonlinear services, co-
difies the european Court of Justice’s case law to date on exceptions from the “country 
of origin” principle. under the country of origin principle, audiovisual services that ex-
tend across borders are always subject only to the laws of the country of origin, and are 
not required to comply with the laws of the country of reception. the new legal situati-
on increases the risk that proceedings might be initiated by member states that receive 
group programming from another member state.  

the new rules first of all provide for a consultation procedure between the country of re-
ception and the country of origin. Here difficulties with different legal frameworks may 
be resolved by amicable agreement. in these proceedings, the provider cannot be sub-
ject to the rules of the country of reception. the prosiebensat.1 group is in continuous 
close contact with the licensing agencies, and will support them in the consultation pro-
ceedings.

only in cases of genuine breaches, where a service provider has settled in a member 
state other than the country of reception in order to avoid stricter laws in the country of 
reception, can a country of reception take action against a broadcaster whose services 
violate the laws of the country of reception. However, the country of reception must first 
appeal to the eu Commission, which in turn will review whether the prerequisites for 
such proceedings have indeed been met, thus forestalling any action from being taken 
on purely protectionist grounds. 

there is a risk that countries of reception may attempt on this basis to restrict program-
ming that does not fall under their own legislation. However, there are high barriers 
against restraints of the basic freedoms of service and location on which the country of 
origin principle is founded. in this connection, the eu Commission has already announced 
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that it will work to counteract unreasonable restraints of basic freedoms. additionally, 
since in essence the new rules simply reflect the existing case law, there is no reason to 
assume that they will hinder the group’s activities. the prosiebensat.1 group is also in 
constant contact with the Commission, to make sure that the group’s interests will be 
adequately taken into account even in the event of such proceedings. 

6.3.2 Regional windows
With the adoption of the eighth amended interstate treaty on Broadcasting, the gover-
nors of germany’s states tightened the requirements for “windows” of regionally orien-
ted programming. the new treaty requires regional windows to obtain their own licenses. 
these are to be issued only to companies that are independent from established broad-
casters. the north german regional programming windows in sat.1’s schedule are produ-
ced by a wholly-owned subsidiary, sat.1 norddeutschland gmbH. applications were filed 
at the end of 2006 and the beginning of 2007, with a term until mid-2008. in all cases, 
the Commission on Concentration in Broadcasting (kek) has held consultations and ad-
vocated granting the license. accordingly the licenses were then granted by the state 
media agencies in charge, in Bremen, Hamburg, Lower saxony and schleswig-Holstein. 
prosiebensat.1 media ag and sat.1 norddeutschland gmbH have applied for extensions, 
so as to exclude a reduction of the ownership requirement to less than 25% for 2008 as 
well. in the draft of the tenth amended interstate treaty on Broadcasting, section 53b 
permits an extension to at least December 31, 2009. at the end of January 2008, the 
state media agency for Hamburg and schleswig-Holstein responded to the application by 
further extending the permit and channel allotment until 2015.

section 47 (3) of the saarland media act, as last amended on march 31, 2004, requires 
that so far as is technically possible, state-wide programming windows must be incorpo-
rated at least into the two private nationwide television channels with the greatest tech-
nical reach, irrespective of the method by which they are broadcast, and these windows 
must be financed by the broadcasters of the nationwide channels. prosiebensat.1 media 
ag and sat.1 have taken legal action to contest the obligation to provide saarland win-
dow programming. at the end of 2006 they filed suit for a declaratory judgment on the 
permissibility of the applicable provisions of the interstate broadcasting treaty and state 
law, and of the associated ordinance, as well as the administrative action issued on that 
basis. given the proceedings still pending before the saarland administrative Court, pro-
siebensat.1 media ag is taking an active, broad-based role in this social, media-policy 
and legal controversy, to combat these new restrictions. the financing to be provided by 
sat.1 or prosiebensat.1 media ag for a new regional window is estimated at roughly eur 
5 million per year.

there is a further risk that in german states that hitherto have had no requirements for 
programming windows, demands for similar arrangements may also arise, first in de-
bates on media policy and then, potentially, in new legislation. in these discussions as 
well, the Company is taking an active part to counteract an expansion of further regional 
tV requirements.  

6.4 Distribution

For the Company’s stations, lasting success in the advertising market depends most of all 
on high audience reaches. apart from programming appeal, this reach depends especial-
ly on the technical distribution of the tV stations over as many distribution channels as 
possible. the group’s stations have high technical reaches. the german market can ser-
ve as an example here. the german stations’ broad reach was safeguarded further with 
long-term distribution and cooperation agreements signed in 2006 and 2007 with t-sy-
stems, ses astra, the “big” broadband operators kabel Deutschland, unity media and ka-
bel Baden-Württemberg, primacom, and additional broadband operators from network 
levels 3 and 4. there are also distribution agreements with Deutsche telekom ag’s t-on-
line unit, Hansenet, arcor, and other providers, to carry programming signals over tele-
phone cables. at the end of 2007, prosiebensat.1 media ag also signed a contract for ter-
restrial distribution of its channels prosieben, sat.1 and n24 on mobile terminal devices, 
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such as cell phones, in the territory of germany, via DVB-H-plattform mobile 3.0 gmbH, 
which is expected to go into operation in mid-2008. in this way, prosiebensat.1 media ag 
has laid the cornerstone for the distribution of its free tV programming on mobile termi-
nal devices, and also safeguarded reception of its content via this path. 

the non-german stations of prosiebensat.1 media ag generally achieve similarly high 
reaches via various paths – satellite, cable and terrestrial. the reaches in their various 
countries depend on the distribution model chosen there, such as the “transport” model 
or “platform” model in which the platform operator generally sends free tV program-
ming into homes in encrypted form, for an equipment fee, and passes on a fee to the 
programming providers, such as prosiebensat.1 media ag, for the use of their brands or 
for other reasons. 

the changeover from analog to digital broadcasting will once again multiply the capa-
city available for carrying the Company’s television programming and other services. it 
opens up business prospects for all channels and other services provided by the prosie-
bensat.1 group, especially in new content. Digitization has produced a significant incre-
ase in the total number of channels available. signing long-term distribution agreements 
has ensured that the reach of the group’s stations in germany will still be assured as the 
transition from the analog to the digital age advances. similar agreements have been si-
gned or are being negotiated for the group’s stations outside germany. 

irrespective of the distribution agreements it signed in 2007, the prosiebensat.1 group is 
confident that its stations’ appeal, high audience acceptance and variety will ensure that 
they will remain available area-wide via analog and digital distribution channels. even as 
the television market becomes more and more heavily fragmented, the stations of the 
prosiebensat.1 group will still be able to maintain their competitive positions in the free 
tV sector. Quite aside from the high barriers against any new provider’s entry into the 
market, the group’s standing will be particularly ensured by the widespread recognition 
of its station brands in their various countries, its long-term contracts for broadcasting 
rights, and its stations’ strong position with audiences and in the advertising market.

7 Other legal risks

7.1 Preliminary ruling from the European Court of Justice

the austrian Federal Communications Board had sought a preliminary ruling from the 
european Court of Justice (eCJ) on whether call tV services are not in fact broadca-
sting, but rather teleshopping or possibly advertising. in its decision of october 18, 2007, 
the eCJ furnished no final criteria on how call tV programs should be categorized under 
broadcast law, but said the critical circumstances should be evaluated on a case by case 
basis. to that extent, the eCJ remanded the proceedings to the austrian Federal Com-
munications Board, which must now make its own decision, taking the criteria defined by 
the eCJ into account. therefore the decision will have no direct impact for the moment 
on the programming produced by 9Live in germany. 

7.2 Call TV prohibited in the Netherlands

invoking the Dutch laws on lotteries and gambling and the code of conduct applicable 
in the country under those laws, in september 2007 the netherlands ministry of Justi-
ce prohibited private tV broadcasters from showing conventional call tV programming. 
the ban also affected group stations sBs 6 and net 5, which took their call tV shows off 
the air on november 30, 2007. since the court cases on the matter are still pending, and 
the date of a final decision cannot be foreseen, it is currently unclear whether conventi-
onal call tV programming will be able to return to the air in the netherlands sometime 
in the future. Further, it cannot be barred that, regarding this issue, it may come to sti-
pulation of a fine.
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7.3 Victory in declaratory judgment proceedings

in may 2007, the munich Higher regional Court upheld the september 2006 decision 
of munich regional Court i favoring prosiebensat.1 media ag. the lower court’s decisi-
on had been appealed by several of the petitioners on the losing side. the may 14 deci-
sion of the munich Higher regional Court cannot be appealed. the proceedings, which 
dragged on for years, have thus come to an end. the litigation arose out of the merger 
of prosieben media ag and sat.1 Holding gmbH to form prosiebensat.1 media ag. after 
the 2000 merger, several former preferred shareholders of prosieben media ag applied 
to the court for a review of the exchange ratio, and to set a figure for an additional cash 
payment.
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general outlook for the group’s future development         
proSiebenSat.1 management believes that the group will once again be able to show 
a positive overall outcome of business operations in the 2008 and 2009 projection 
period. the Company will benefit from dynamic growth rates in international mar-
kets, especially in eastern and northern europe. apart from careful cost controls, 
the increasing networking of our activities, in tandem with knowledge transfers wi-
thin our pan-european structure, will generate synergies and further improve the 
group’s revenues and profits. 

We will continue to vigorously pursue our strategic objectives. a clear focus on pro-
gramming will strengthen the proSiebenSat.1 group’s core business in free tV, and 
at the same time lay the cornerstone for further growth in the Diversification seg-
ment.
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Opportunity Report          

to identify business opportunities and make the most of them, the proSiebenSat.1 group 
conducts market research in every relevant field, and constantly monitors new technical 
developments. efficient risk management serves as an early warning system for all units. 
recognizing risks and opportunities is an integral part of all planning and decision-making 
processes. 

Future environment and market opportunities 

Economic developments in Europe
the economy of the euro Zone and the european Community will presumably grow so-
mewhat more slowly in 2008 than in 2007. the ongoing turbulence in the financial mar-
ket, higher prices for oil and energy, and the rising euro will have an impact on economic 
development in the first quarters of 2008. Consumer spending, the most important engi-
ne driving the advertising markets, will profit from the improvement in the job market. 

the growth momentum of the past two years will taper off somewhat in germany as 
well. Currently the ifo-institute projects real growth of 1.6 percent in gross domestic pro-
duct. High expectations here are tied to the growth of consumer spending. the impro-
vement in the job market and income gains from agreements setting high wages should 
strengthen buying power. In our most important international markets – the netherlands, 
Sweden and Hungary – the respective estimated gDp growth rates for 2008 are 2.6 per-
cent, 3.1 percent and 2.6 percent.
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Development of the advertising market in ProSiebenSat.1’s main markets
the media industry is especially sensitive to cyclic fluctuations in the economy. accor-
dingly, the projected growth of gross domestic product and consumer spending is gene-
rally reflected in the expected growth of the associated advertising markets. For coun-
tries with strong economic growth, like romania and Bulgaria, advertising spends are 
therefore expected to be well above average. In germany, Zenithoptimedia expects the 
tV business to grow 1.1 percent in 2008. the World advertising research Center (WarC) 
projects that the german television advertising market will grow 1.0 percent in 2008. 
projections indicate that all other markets where the proSiebenSat.1 group operates will 
grow faster than germany. 

Outlook for performance of the media market
Advertising market: TV will remain highest-revenue segment in Germany –
Internet gaining fast
In 2008, digitization will again result in new platforms and distribution channels for tV 
content. nevertheless, people will still consider television the most important medium. 
according to a representative study of germany by Sevenone media, television use will 
remain stable at high levels. With an average of 52 receivable channels per household 
using tV, about 80 percent of use will be spread among the six big free tV channels, in-
cluding proSieben and Sat.1. multi-channel households as well – which today can receive 
up to 150 channels or more – tend to have a more or less stable selection of about 16 sta-
tions that they actually use for at least ten minutes a month. television viewing behavior 
changes slightly only among very young viewers. more and more, they have been consu-
ming Internet services – especially from entertainment platforms and communities. But 
television undisputedly remains by far the highest-revenue segment in the german en-
tertainment and media industry. 

the Internet is currently the fastest growing advertising medium. the boom is being dri-
ven by the increasing number of broadband Internet connections that make moving pic-
tures possible. they have opened the way to the use of new advertising formats, such 
as advertising videos. But the industry will also gain momentum from the possibility of 
directing customized advertising messages to Internet users by way of individualized ap-
peals to target audiences.

Audience share: TV still exercises an unbroken fascination
But new technologies and distribution channels are not the decisive factors in competi-
tion; that place goes to content. using tV as their launch pad, moving pictures are con-

tV ad spend (net) in percent (Change 07 vs. 06 at current prices)

Development of TV advertising market in countries central to the ProSiebenSat.1 Group

*WarC forecast not available for romania and Bulgaria.
Source: WarC 12/2007, Zenithoptimedia 12/2007. Figures extensively harmonized on a net base. With methodical differences between countries and sources.
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quering the new digital platforms. on the Internet, on video portals or on mobile devices, 
consumers look for content – especially the kind of content they already know from tele-
vision. even today, german users between the ages of 14 and 29 have already shifted ne-
arly 70 percent of their total media use to such screens as the pC or cell phones. the agF 
television research association also intends to take due account of this fact in the future. 
Beginning in January 2009 it will be adding time-delayed uses of television content to its 
tV performance figures, on the principle of “Follow the Content.” Surveyors are develo-
ping ways of measuring the use of television on the computer, via IptV and via DVB-H.

Strategic opportunities of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group 

Digital developments pose new challenges for a content provider like the proSiebenSat.1 
group. at the same time, they offer substantial opportunities for growth. With its attrac-
tive content and its strong tV brands, the proSiebenSat.1 group has many opportunities 
to provide innovative services that will support new usage habits, attract new audience 
groups, and develop new concepts for the advertising industry.  

the acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting group has opened up additional opportunities 
for the proSiebenSat.1 group to grow further in europe.  SBS and proSiebenSat.1 com-
plement one another in terms of geography, content and strategy, to form a leading pan-
european media corporation. Both parts of the group are primarily providers of free tV, 
while at the same time counting on diversification. as a pan-european television group, 
proSiebenSat.1 now stands on a broader base, and is better protected against crises than 
before. the integrated group has an optimized risk-opportunity profile. It operates in 13 
countries of northern, central and eastern europe. Formerly the Company generated 100 
percent of its revenues in germany, austria and Switzerland. Since the takeover of SBS, 
this figure has declined to 70 percent (pro forma combined 2007). the merged group 
generates some 80 percent of its revenues from its core business in free tV (pro for-
ma combined 2007). In addition to an internally complementary corporate profile, the 
group’s specific organizational structure also gives it a lead over its competitors, since 
most of its subsidiaries are wholly owned. a fully integrated group will be able to make 
the most of any potential for synergy. at the same time, innovations can be developed 
faster, and decisions can be put into action more efficiently. 

Company outlook

Future ownership structure

as a consequence of the 2007 takeover of SBS Broadcasting group by proSiebenSat.1 
media ag, in mid-2008 the Company may gain a new strategic shareholder. telegraaf 
media groep n.B., which formerly held 20 percent of SBS Broadcasting group, has in-
formed the Company that it has an option to acquire 12 percent of the voting common 
stock of proSiebenSat.1 media ag from lavena holding 5 gmbH. If it exercises that opti-
on – which becomes possible in June 2008, according to telegraaf media groep – tele-
graaf media groep would hold 6 percent of the proSiebenSat.1 group’s capital stock. In 
case tmg does not exercise its call option, lavena has a put option on tmg to be exerci-
sed before august 15, 2008. 

Advancing integration between companies, pooling expertise

the Corporation’s top priority is to achieve a successful combination between SBS and 
proSiebenSat.1. the integrated group is being organized along the lines of thinking local-
ly, and acting globally. this approach should allow the subsidiaries to operate largely au-
tonomously within their own markets. at the same time, all companies and units can pro-
fit from the skills and resources of the group as a whole. pooling resources centrally will 
enable the Company to make optimum use of its potential for synergy, and achieve eco-
nomies of scale. International project groups have been formed to advance integration 
between the two companies as quickly as possible, and thus to reap the projected syner-
gies of eur 80 to 90 million that are expected to take full effect in 2010. these interna-
tional teams organize joint working procedures and promote networking of the group’s 
various locations, along with the broadest possible knowledge transfer. In six areas – 

 Business and market position

 Subsequent Events
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Content, Sales and marketing, new media, operations, Holding Company, and procure-
ment – they have been working closely to develop new procedures within the group. 

Capital spending and finance

the acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting group was the biggest acquisition in the proSie-
benSat.1 group’s history. the acquisition was financed entirely through borrowings. the 
higher debt level still leaves enough financial leeway for the group’s further strategic 
and operational expansion.  

the proSiebenSat.1 group will invest in further growth. our spending will focus mainly 
on expanding and updating our programming. We will invest some eur 10 million bet-
ween 2008 and 2009 in new technology to build n24 into europe’s most up-to-date 
news station. We will also review our opportunities to expand our business operations 
through acquisitions. the group especially sees potential for expansion in the growing 
eastern european market, and on the Internet. the proSiebenSat.1 group has sufficient 
financing capabilities for this purpose. However, there are no plans for major corporate 
acquisitions that would result in an additional need for capital. all possible investment 
plans pursue the objective of sustainably strengthening the group’s market position as 
a pan-european media corporation, through a forward-looking programming and marke-
ting strategy. 

the proSiebenSat.1 group aims to reduce its debt level through further growth in profits 
and reductions in debt. although reducing debt is a high priority, we also assume the con-
tinuation of a shareholder-friendly dividend policy in the future. 

Segments’ and units’ future performance

the objective for 2008 and 2009 is once again to increase revenues and eBItDa in both 
the Free tV core business and Diversification operations. a clear focus on programming 
will further strengthen the group’s core business in Free tV, and at the same time help 
make the most of opportunities in the Diversification business, especially through multi-
ple reuses of content. 

the merger with SBS has yielded numerous opportunities for international growth, both 
for the group’s Free tV brands and for its Diversification services. among the projects 
that the group is currently reviewing is the introduction of a german version of the suc-
cessful Scandinavian music channel the Voice. We also have plans to extend various 
tV programming concepts to multiple international stations.  the January 2008 de-
but of “the next uri geller – unglaubliche phänomene live” on proSieben already took 
early advantage of opportunities for synergy by conducting back-to-back productions. 
proSieben’s live show drew an enthusiastic audience of millions in germany. a Dutch 
version followed on SBS 6. SBS 6 used proSieben’s expertise and studio infrastructure 
for its own productions. many of the proSiebenSat.1 group’s programs and brands that 
currently focus on individual markets have the potential for successful geographic ex-
pansion. Here the group will do more than open up additional sources of revenue. Joint 
productions also offer economies of scale and opportunities for a more efficient use of 
resources. 

as part of the integration process, the proSiebenSat.1 group has already made a numb-
er of successful changes in the Diversification unit. Following the launch of the norwegi-
an game platform Sevengames.no and the international game portal Sevengames.com, 
the launch of myVideo in Belgium and the netherlands was the third synergy project that 
proSiebenSat.1 carried out in the online segment since the beginning of the year. Fur-
ther integration projects and country-specific adaptations are in preparation, especially 
in online operations. 

the proSiebenSat.1 group started out the year with an attractive programming lineup, 
and expanded its portfolio with some of the most successful theatrical film productions 
of the past few years by way of an agreement with Sony pictures television Internatio-

 Financial position and net worth

 Management‘s proposed allocation 

of profits

 Programming

Economies of scale through new 

production synergies

ProSiebenSat.1 Group starts with 

attractive programming lineup in 

2008
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nal. In parallel with the optimization of its programming portfolio, the group will further 
improve the broadcasting structure of its free tV stations, giving its channels an even 
better focus on the audience market’s needs. at the beginning of the year, Sat.1 took 
extensive steps to renovate its programming structure and content. the station is ex-
pected to move closer to its audiences by upgrading its information services, including 
by placing news in the 8 pm time slot. at the same time, it will improve audience flow with 
block programming. Besides expansions in programming, the proSiebenSat.1 group also 
intends to establish Berlin news station n24 as europe’s most up-to-date news station, 
and to set it up on an innovative technology platform. the station’s relocation into a new 
building in the fall of 2008 will lay the cornerstone for its expansion into a multimedia 
news brand. this will make it possible not just to renovate editing and production equip-
ment, but to pool tV and multimedia activities. 

Blockbusters, free TV premieres, and film highlights

In the next several months, viewers can expect to find all kinds of movie 

features on proSiebenSat.1 group stations. they include blockbuster 

hits like “aviator” (proSieben, D), “king kong” (Vt4, B), “ocean’s twel-

ve” (kanal 5, Dk) and “Harry potter and the prisoner of azkaban” (e.g., 

proSieben, D, kanal 5, Dk). In addition to free tV premieres like “the 

Chronicles of narnia: the king of narnia”   (Sat.1, D) and top movies like 

“Fight Club” (kabel eins, D), “meet the Fockers” (Sat.1, D) and “Calendar 

girls” (kanal 4, Dk), tV events like “Die Brücke” (proSieben, D) with 

Franka potente offer the best tV entertainment anyone could want.
ocean‘s twelve

All-out suspense with successful top-rated US shows

the viewer ratings speak for themselves and viewers have given “crime 

and suspense made in the uS” a long lead over other genres. For that 

reason, proSiebenSat.1 group stations also provide exciting tV enter-

tainment with top-rated uS shows, such as “navy CIS” (e.g., Sat.1, D; 

tV2, Hun; Veronica, nl), “CSI: miami” (e.g., kanal 5, Dk; tVnorge, n), 

“Dr. House” (e.g., SBS 6, nl; tV2, Hun), “grey’s anatomy” (e.g., pro-

Sieben, D, net 5, nl) and “private practice” (proSieben, D, kanal 4, Dk). 

It‘s Showtime!

In fiscal year 2008, the stations of the proSiebenSat.1 group will air 

numerous, special-feature shows once again. proSieben is on the loo-

kout for “germany’s next top model – by Heidi klum” and will conti-

nue putting Stefan raab up against a contestant in “Schlag den raab”. 

Sat.1 will feature the casting show “Ich tarzan, Du Jane” with indi-

viduals competing for two leading roles in a musical. northern euro-

pean stations are using local co-productions like “Hitmakers” to find 

the new stars in Scandinavia’s music scene. proSieben and SBS 6 vie-

wers will get to witness incredible phenomena as paranormalist uri 

geller looks for a suitable successor on his show “the next uri geller”.

grey‘s anatomy

Schlag den raab

Docu-series, infotainment, and comedy

new docu-formats like “Jedes kilo zählt – eine Insel wird schlank!”, 

“Das Fast-Food-Duell” (both on kabel eins, D) and new seasons 

of successful series like “De unge modre” (kanal 4, Dk) and “the 

House Doctor” (VIJFtv, B) will provide a wide variety of tV en-

tertainment on all proSiebenSat.1 stations. Successful come-

dy formats like “Dr. psycho” (proSieben, D) and “the Daily Show” 

with Jon Stewart (kanal 9, S) will enable the european broad-

cast group to keep audiences in stitches over the next few months. 

Jedes
Kilo zählt!

Eine
Insel wird schlank
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News and sports 

up-to-date news 24 hours a day and background reports on the hot-

test, latest topics – that’s what the Berlin-based n24 news chan-

nel will give its viewers in the upcoming months. Sports high-

lights receiving n24 coverage include football matches of the 

ueFa Champions league and the ueFa Cup, which will be broad-

cast live by Sat.1, as well as live broadcasts of local events, such as 

the playoff games of the Swedish ice hockey league (kanal 5, 9, S). 

kai pflaume

    
Expected Group performance  

For the current year, the proSiebenSat.1 group continues to expect revenues and pro-
fits to grow, especially thanks to the first full calendar-year of consolidation with SBS. as 
in previous years, recurring eBItDa is expected to rise faster than revenues again this 
year. revenue growth combined with rigorous cost management will be the principal dri-
ver for rising profits. the core business in advertising-financed television will remain the 
major revenue driver for the future. the dynamism of the international market, and es-
pecially the vigorous growth of the european markets of the former SBS Broadcasting 
group, will drive the group’s business growth in Free tV operations. the group’s diversi-
fied media portfolio will also contribute to growth. In addition to organic growth, strate-
gic acquisitions will further strengthen the Diversification unit. 

We expect that the SBS transaction will increase adjusted earnings per share, and that 
within the short to medium term the generated returns will be greater than the pro-
SiebenSat.1 group’s cost of capital. efficiency enhancements and synergies associated 
with integrating SBS’s business will make a crucial contribution here. We have set our-
selves the ambitious goal of achieving synergies of eur 80 to 90 million a year through 
a number of specific initiatives. two-thirds of these synergies will be in costs, and one-
third will be founded on additional revenue potential. economies of scale in programming 
production and the multiple reuse of content will offer opportunities to save on costs. 
the licensing business and programming purchases will also enjoy economies of scale. 
group-wide cooperation and a centralization of the procurement process will increase 
our purchasing volume, and thus strengthen our negotiating position with suppliers. We 
have also particularly identified potential savings in marketing and sales, administration 
and It. using shared administrative services and eliminating duplicate corporate func-
tions will help reduce operating costs. We particularly expect to reap revenue synergies 
in programming production. Setting up joint production sites and networking our market 
expertise should gain us additional revenues. there are also numerous opportunities for 
revenue synergy in the Diversification unit. to take advantage of these, we will coordina-
te our brands more closely, and make the most of opportunities for expansion with cross-
media and geographic links. 

the integration process of proSiebenSat.1 and SBS is running according to plan. We are 
well on the way toward achieving our target synergy of eur 80 to 90 million per year by 
2010. We expect to achieve synergies of about eur 40 million as early as this year.

Strong medium term

growing perspectives

The Group will use her high

synergy potential
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Consolidated income statement for ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG  

 

EUR k

2007  2006 Change Change

 in %

1. Revenues [7] 2,702,533 2,095,134 607,399 29%

2. Cost of sales [8] -1,618,789 -1,295,697 323,092 25%

3. Gross profit 1,083,744 799,437 284,307 36%

4. Selling expenses [9] -374,486 -223,658 150,828 67%

5. Administrative expenses      [10] -341,717 -145,078 196,639 136%

6. Other operating income [11] 16,743 12,120 4,623 38%

7. Operating profit 384,284 442,821 -58,537 -13%

8. Income from equity interests in associated companies 1,914 3,914 -2,000 -51%

9. Other financial result [12] 208 338 -130 -38%

10. Net interest and similar income 28,009 3,931 24,078 613%

11. Net interest and other expenses -143,751 -46,873 96,878 207%

12. Net interest result [13] -115,742 -42,942 -72,800 -170%

13. Other financial expenses [14] -21,881 -18,848 3,033 16%

14. Financial income -135,501 -57,538 -77,963 -135%

15. Profit before taxes 248,783 385,283 -136,500 -35%

16. Income taxes [15] -152,696 -142,318 10,378 7%

17. Consolidated profit for the year of continuing operations 96,087 242,965 -146,878 -60%

18. Result from discontinued operation (net of income tax)                                                 [34] 125 891 -766 -86%

19. Consolidated profit for the year 96,212 243,856 -147,644 -61%

attributable to

   Shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG 89,445 240,667 -151,222 -63%

   Minorities 6,767 3,189 3,578 112%

EUR

Basic and diluted earnings per share of common stock according to IAS 33 * [16] 0.40 1.09 -0.69 -63%

Basic and diluted earnings per share of preferred stock according to IAS 33 * [16] 0.42 1.11 -0.69 -62%

 

* thereby accounted for consolidated net profit for the period: 89.4 EUR m [previous period: 240.7  EUR m];  

   thereby accounted for number of common and preferred shares: 218,797 thousand [previous year: 218,797 thousand]    
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Consolidated balance sheet of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG      

ASSETS 12/31/2007 12/31/2006 Change

EUR k

A. Noncurrent assets

I. Intangible assets                                                                                                                    [18] 3,534,723 327,557 3,207,166

II. Property, plant and equipment                                                                                            [19] 244,935 228,646 16,289

III. Investments accounted for using the equity method                                                       [20] 4,583 9,324 -4,741

IV. Other financial assets [20] 70,473 4,024 66,449

V. Programming assets [21] 917,110 781,082 136,028

VI. Accounts receivable and other long-term assets [23] 14,091 1,560 12,531

VII. Deferred taxes                                                                                                                        [15] 50,600 - / - 50,600

4,836,515 1,352,193 3,484,322

B. Current assets

I. Programming assets [21] 400,575 275,235 125,340

II. Inventories [22] 4,678 4,306 372

III. Current  financial assets                                                                                                      [23] 264 1,682 -1,418

IV. Assets for current tax                                                                                                           [23] 34,109 23,871 10,238

V. Accounts receivable and other short-term assets [23] 440,886 211,314 229,572

VI. Cash and cash equivalents [24] 250,826 63,540 187,286

VII. Assets classified as held for sale                                                                                        [34] 30,993 - / - 30,993

1,162,331 579,948 582,383

Total assets 5,998,846 1,932,141 4,066,705

 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS´ EQUITY 12/31/2007 12/31/2006 Change

EUR k

A. Shareholders‘ equity [25]

I. Subscribed capital 218,797 218,797 - / -

II. Capital reserves 546,987 584,537 -37,550

III. Group equity generated 342,646 445,743 -103,097

IV. Accumulated other Group equity -56,539 -9,602 -46,937

V. Total equity attributable to shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG 1,051,891 1,239,475 -187,584

VI. Minority interests [29] 10,435 1,049 9,386

 1,062,326 1,240,524 -178,198

B. Noncurrent liabilities

I. Long-term loans and borrowings [32] 3,577,297 183,959 3,393,338

II. Provisions [30,31] 11,308 5,970 5,338

III. Noncurrent  financial liabilities [32] 201,420 116,875 84,545

IV. Deferred taxes [15] 207,027 789 206,238

3,997,052 307,593 3,689,459

C. Current liabilities

I. Short-term loans and borrowings                                                                                        [32] 2,196 1,602 594

II. Provisions [31] 177,519 93,349 84,170

III. Current  financial liabilities                                                                                                  [32] 523,573 231,355 292,218

IV. Liabilities for current tax                                                                                                     [32] 1,706 2,374 -668

V. Other liabilities                                                                                                                      [32] 222,092 55,344 166,748

VI. Liabilities classified as held for sale                                                                                   [34] 12,382 - / - 12,382

939,468 384,024 555,444

Total liabilities and shareholders‘ equity 5,998,846 1,932,141 4,066,705
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ProSiebenSat.1 Group cash flow statement *]

EUR k 2007 2006

Consolidated profit for the year     89,446 240,667

Depreciation, amortization and impairment/write-ups of noncurrent and current assets    137,041 40,044

Consumption/write-ups of programming assets     1,127,152 938,089

Change in tax provisions [incl. change in deferred taxes] 5,733 29,955

Change in other provisions     31,150 22,119

Result from equity accounting and other noncash relevant changes within financial assets  867 -2,363

Result from sale of fixed assets     452 74

Unrealised currency differences of fixed assets     21,467 - / -

Other noncash income / expenses     -9,779 4,572

Cash flow 1,403,529 1,273,157

Change in inventories     -543 167

Change in non-interest-bearing receivables and other assets     -36,861 -10,198

Change in non-interest-bearing liabilities     227,473 8,845

Cash flow from operating activities     1,593,598 1,271,971

Proceeds from disposal of noncurrent assets     4,042 4,033

Expenditures for intangible assets and property, plant and equipment     -41,462 -28,872

Expenditures for purchase of financial assets     -5,129 -3,848

Proceeds from disposal of programming assets     9,110 9,428

Expenditures for programming assets     -1,176,684 -954,987

Effects of changes in scope of consolidation  (acquisition)     -2,026,681 -8,320

Effects of changes in scope of consolidation  (divestiture)     4,264 - / -

Other changes in equity     -36,461 3,013

Cash flow from investing activities     -3,269,001 -979,553

Free cash flow     -1,675,403 292,418

Dividend     -192,542 -181,602

Reduction of interest-bearing liabilities     -1,485,395 -204,832

Allocation of interest-bearing liabilities     3,540,647 - / -

Cash flow from financing activities     1,862,710 -386,434

Change in cash and cash equivalents     187,307 -94,016

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year     63,540 157,556

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31     250,847 63,540

Cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations at end of period     -21 - / -

Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations at end of period     250,826 63,540

The cash flow from operating activities includes the following receipts and payments according to IAS 7:  

Cash flow from income taxes     -148,114 -152,246

Cash flow from interest expenses     -106,728 -36,036

Cash flow from interest income     8,195 3,735

  *] The cash flow statement is explained in the notes under number 33
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Statement of changes in shareholders‘ equity of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group for 2006

EUR k Subscribed 

capital

Capital 

reserves

Group equity 

generated

Accumulated other Group 

equity

Minority 

interests

Sharehol-

ders‘ equity

Foreign 

currency 

translation 

adjustment

Valuation 

from cash 

flow hedges 

December 31, 2005 218,797 579,965 386,678 -250 4,474 -1,915 1,187,749

Dividends paid - / - - / - -181,602 - / - - / - - / - -181,602

Changes in scope of consolidation - / - - / - - / - - / - - / - -258 -258

Stock option plan - / - 4,572 - / - - / - - / - - / - 4,572

Statement of recognised income and ex-

penses  - / - - / -  - / - -208 -13,618 33 -13,793

Consolidated profit for the year  - / -  - / - 240,667  - / -  - / - 3,189 243,856

Dezember 31, 2006 218,797 584,537 445,743 -458 -9,144 1,049 1,240,524

Statement of changes in shareholders‘ equity of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group for 2007 *]

EUR k Subscribed 

capital

Capital 

reserves

Group equity 

generated

Accumulated other Group 

equity

Minority 

interests

Sharehol-

ders‘ equity

Foreign 

currency 

translation 

adjustment

Valuation 

from cash 

flow hedges 

and interest 

rate swaps

December 31, 2006 218,797 584,537 445,743 -458 -9,144 1,049 1,240,524

Dividends paid - / - - / - -192,542 - / - - / - - / - -192,542

Changes in scope of consolidation - / - - / - - / - - / - - / - 2,649 2,649

Stock option plan - / - -9,779 - / - - / - - / - - / - -9,779

Liabilities to owners of preferred shares 

according IAS 32 - / - -27,771 - / - - / - - / - - / - -27,771

Statement of recognised income and ex-

penses  - / - - / -  - / - -15,615 -31,322 -30 -46,967

Consolidated profit for the year  - / -  - / - 89,445  - / -  - / - 6,767 96,212

Dezember 31, 2007 218,797 546,987 342,646 -16,073 -40,466 10,435 1,062,326

Statement of recognised income and expenses *]

EUR k 2007 2006

Consolidated profit for the year 96,212 243,856

Cash-flow hedges -40,568 -21,965

Deferred taxes 9,246 8,347

Change in foreign currency translation adjustment -15,615 -208

Minority Interests -30 33

Total income and expenses recognized in equity -46,967 -13,793

Total income and expenses for the period 49,245 230,063

attributable to:

    Shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG 42,508 226,841

    Minorities 6,737 3,222

*] The changes in shareholders‘ equity is explained in the notes under number 25 - 29

*] Statement of recognised income and expenses is a component part of the notes

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS_ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 69



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS_NOTES
70

Notes to the 2007 Consolidated Financial Statements 
ProSiebenSat.1 Group

Basis and Methodology

[1] Application of International Financial Reporting Stan-
dards (IFRS)

The consolidated financial statements of ProSiebenSat.1 Me-
dia AG for fiscal 2007 were prepared in compliance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standards of the Internati-
onal Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that were in effect 
and applicable for the EU on the reporting date, December 
31, 2007, as well as the supplemental provisions of German 
commercial law under Sec. 315a (1) of the German Commer-
cial Code. All applicable interpretations of the International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) for 
fiscal 2007 have been applied.

A new guidance interpretation, IFRIC 11 (“IFRS 2 – Group and 
Treasury Share Transactions”), was issued in 2007 by the 
IASB. However, its application was not yet mandatory for 
the period under review, and it has not been applied early. 
Application of IFRIC 11 is mandatory for fiscal years begin-
ning on or after March 1, 2007. IFRIC 11 is intended to supple-
ment IFRS 2 as a clarification about how to report certain si-
tuations like treasury share transactions and transactions in 
the stock of group companies. This new interpretation does 
not affect the consolidated financial statements of the Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Group. 

IFRS 8 (“Operating Segments”) was first issued by the IASB 
in 2006 and was applied early by the ProSiebenSat.1 Group. 
It requires companies to report financial and descriptive in-
formation regarding their reportable segments. IFRS 8 con-
verts segment reporting from the “risk and reward” ap-
proach under IAS 14 to the “management” approach. Appli-
cation of IFRS 8 is mandatory for fiscal years beginning on 
or after January 1, 2009. In connection with the acquisition 
of the SBS Broadcasting Group, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group 
decided to apply the standard early, beginning with its quar-
terly report for the quarter that ended on September 30, 
2007. For more information about segment reporting, see 
Note [38].

The consolidated financial statements of ProSiebenSat.1 Me-
dia AG consist of the income statement, the balance sheet, 
the statement of changes in equity, the cash flow statement, 
and the notes to the financial statements. The income state-
ment is presented using the cost of sales method.

To provide a clearer and more meaningful picture, certain 
items have been combined in the balance sheet and in-
come statement, while an item-by-item explanation is provi-
ded in the notes. Unless specifically indicated otherwise, all 
amounts are in thousands of euros (EUR k).

The preparation of accounts, explanations and informati-
on about the consolidated financial statements under IFRS 
for fiscal 2007 are generally based on the same accounting 
policies as the consolidated financial statements for 2006, 
except for those accounting standards whose application 
has been mandatory since January 1, 2007, and accounting 
standards that have been revised. As part of the integration 
of the SBS Broadcasting Group, acquired in July 2007, the 
classification of programming assets as current or non-cur-
rent has been reorganized, as has the segment structure. 
The change in the recognition of programming assets better 
reflects the economic approach to their durations. 
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The change against the prior period is summarized below:

EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

After revision of 

reporting method

Amount under 

previous reporting 

method

After revision of 

reporting method

Amount under 

previous reporting 

method

Non-current programming assets 917,110 400,384 781,082 300,196

Current programming assets 400,575 917,301 275,235 756,121

Total programming assets 1,317,685 1,317,685 1,056,317 1,056,317

The fiscal year of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and its consolida-
ted subsidiaries is the same as the calendar year. ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG is entered in the Companies Registration Of-
fice of Munich district court, and has its registered office and 
principal place of business in Unterföhring.

[2] Scope of consolidation

The number of subsidiaries included in the consolidated fi-
nancial statements changed as follows in fiscal 2007:

Domestic

market

Foreign

market

Total

Included at 12/31/2006 36 5 41

Newly founded/consolidated

companies

 

11 127

 

138

Merged/disconsolidated

companies -1 - 2 -3

Included at 12/31/2007 46 130 176

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG directly or indirectly holds a majo-
rity of voting rights in these companies. For the year under 
review, 15 (prior year: 8) associated companies are consoli-
dated by the equity method.

Affiliated companies are listed on pages 107 through 111, 
along with the specific percentage of their capital held by the 
ProSiebenSat.1 Group. 

Acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group
By a purchase agreement dated June 27, 2007, the ProSie-
benSat.1 Group acquired full ownership of the SBS Broad-
casting Group from funds advised by KKR and Permira, and 
from the Telegraaf Group. The share purchase agreement 
was consummated on July 3. The transaction totaled EUR 
3.3 billion. Some EUR 2.1 billion of this was for the purchase 
price, which was paid entirely in cash. That figure also in-
cludes costs of EUR 11.5 million directly associated with the 
purchase. The acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group 
gained the ProSiebenSat.1 Group cash and cash equivalents 

of EUR 96.5 million. The purchase price allocation (“step-
up”) process was begun upon consummation of the purchase 
agreement early in July, and had not been entirely comple-
ted by the reporting date, December 31, 2007, since the final 
allocation of goodwill among various legal entities had not 
yet been concluded. The assets and liabilities of the ProSie-
benSat.1 Group incorporate the acquisition of the SBS Broad-
casting Group at the following provisional values:

 SBS Broadcasting Group: Fair value

EUR k SBS Step-up Fair value

Intangible assets 24 884 908

Goodwill - / - 2,363 2,363

Property and equipment 52 - / - 52

Financial assets 1 64 65

Programming assets 228 - / - 228

Current assets, including deferred tax 

assets 212 - / - 212

Cash and cash equivalents 96 - / - 96

Provisions -17 -5 -22

Liabilities, including deferred tax 

liabilities -1,712 -103 -1,815

Total 2,087

Purchase price SBS Broadcasting Group 2,087

Total 2,087

The step-up takes account of the differences between the re-
sidual carrying amounts recognized in the seller’s books and 
the fair value to the buyer. The identified, capitalized intangi-
ble assets are primarily brands and trademarks, rights under 
broadcasting licenses, trademark license agreements, client 
relationships, and orders on hand. The financial investments 
include the current fair value of a nine percent interest in Ze-
nimax Media Inc., of Rockville, Maryland (USA).

The step-up identified not only intangible assets to be capi-
talized, but also assets that cannot be measured separately 
from goodwill. This is essentially the case when the goods in-
volved are not scarce, or if no future benefit can be expected, 
or if the capitalized value already reflects the fair value, or 
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if capitalization is out of the question because of the asset’s 
minor value. Assets that were identified but not recognized 
separately from goodwill included Internet domains, client 
lists, internally created software, leases, and contracts with 
call TV service providers. Differences between recognized 
residual carrying amounts and fair values for acquired pro-
perty, plant and equipment were identified, but were deemed 
of minor importance and therefore were not capitalized ad-
ditionally.

The SBS Broadcasting Group operates in northern, central 
and eastern Europe, and runs a pan-European broadcasting 
chain of 20 free TV and 20 pay TV channels, as well as nu-
merous radio networks. The media group is also a leader in 
the print sector in the Netherlands. 

The SBS Broadcasting Group’s revenues for 2007 came to 
EUR 1.074 billion. The consolidated net profit for 2007 was 
EUR 9.8 million; the consolidated net profit of the SBS Broad-
casting Group since it has belonged to the ProSiebenSat.1 
Group is EUR 65.7 million.

If the SBS Broadcasting Group had been taken over as of 
January 1, 2007, the total consolidated revenues for 2007 
would have been EUR 3.229 billion, and the profit would have 
been EUR 41.0 million. The small size of the profit resulted 
primarily from one-time unscheduled depreciation and amor-
tization at the SBS Broadcasting Group during the first half 
of 2007.

Acquisition of solute GmbH
Effective February 1, 2007, SevenOne Intermedia GmbH, 
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the ProSiebenSat.1 
Group, acquired 74.8 percent of solute GmbH, based in Karls-
ruhe, Germany. The total purchase price for the acquired ow-
nership interest was EUR 3,554 thousand. This amount is 
divided into a cash purchase price of EUR 2,800 thousand, 
costs of EUR 84 thousand directly associated with the acqui-
sition, and an earn-out clause stipulated in the purchase ag-
reement for an additional purchase price payment totaling 
EUR 670 thousand, due in fiscal 2010 and 2011. This additio-
nal payment is contingent on certain profit targets for fiscal 
2009 and 2010. It is considered very likely that these targets 
will be met. The company was fully consolidated into the con-
solidated financial statements of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG 
for the first time as of February 1, 2007.

solute GmbH is an Internet service provider, and in particu-
lar operates a price search engine on the Internet at the por-
tal billiger.de.

The step-up (purchase price allocation) identified intangi-
ble assets that were not measured separately from goodwill. 
This may be the case, for example, when the goods involved 
are not scarce, or if no future benefit can be expected, or if 

the capitalized value already reflects the fair value, or if ca-
pitalization is out of the question because of the asset’s mi-
nor value. The assets concerned are the “shop relationships” 
on the billiger.de Web site. solute GmbH had revenues of EUR 
11,611 thousand in 2007; the net profit for the same period 
was EUR 736 thousand, of which EUR 534 thousand applies 
to the period for which the company was consolidated.

Acquisition of Sat.1 Privatrundfunk und -programmgesell-
schaft m.b.H
Effective February 1, 2007, Sat.1 Satelliten Fernsehen GmbH 
acquired a further 17.7 percent of Sat.1 Privatrundfunk und 
–programmgesellschaft m.b.H, of Vienna (Austria), which 
had formerly been reported at equity. The purchaser con-
sequently holds a total of 51.0 percent of the acquired com-
pany, which has been fully consolidated into the consolida-
ted financial statements of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as of 
February 1, 2007. The total purchase price for the additional 
ownership interest was EUR 3,000 thousand. The acquisiti-
on of Sat.1 Privatrundfunk und -programmgesellschaft m.b.H 
brought the ProSiebenSat.1 Group cash and cash equivalents 
totaling EUR 9,787 thousand. Sat.1 Privatrundfunk und -pro-
grammgesellschaft m.b.H broadcasts TV programming pro-
duced by Sat.1 Satelliten Fernsehen GmbH, as a nationally 
syndicated schedule in Austria.

The step-up revealed no intangible assets or other unre-
ported reserves or charges that should be recognized sepa-
rately from goodwill. Sat.1 Privatrundfunk und -programm-
gesellschaft m.b.H had revenues of EUR 22,312 thousand 
in 2007; the net profit for the same period was EUR 10,022 
thousand, of which EUR 5,111 thousand, after adjustment for 
minority interests, applies to the period during which the 
company was consolidated.

Acquisition of PULS CITY TV GmbH
On July 4, 2007, SevenOne Media Austria GmbH acquired 
full ownership of PULS CITY TV GmbH, headquartered in Vi-
enna, Austria. The acquisition took effect once the antitrust 
and media regulators had granted their consent on August 9. 
The purchase price was EUR 2,180 thousand. PULS CITY TV 
GmbH is a broadcaster in the Vienna metropolitan area, and 
also produces programming for ProSieben Austria and Sat.1 
Österreich, among others.

PULS CITY TV GmbH had revenues of EUR 8,258 thousand 
for 2007; the net loss for the same period was EUR –2,047 
thousand, of which EUR –1,404 thousand applies to the peri-
od for which the company was consolidated.

Acquisition of all of Magic Internet Holding GmbH
By a contract dated July 16, 2007, SevenOne Intermedia 
GmbH, a ProSiebenSat.1 Group subsidiary, purchased the re-
mainder of Magic Internet Holding GmbH, of Cologne (Ger-
many), which had formerly been reported at equity. The 
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purchase included Magic Internet Holding’s wholly-owned 
subsidiaries S.C. MyVideo Broadband SRL, of Bucharest (Ro-
mania), and Magic Internet GmbH, of Cologne. 

The purchase price for the acquired remaining 69.95 per-
cent of Magic Internet Holding GmbH was EUR 19 million. In 
all, the acquisition of the Magic Internet Group brought the 
ProSiebenSat.1 Group cash and cash equivalents of EUR 343 
thousand.

MyVideo.de is the largest video community established in 
Germany. At www.myvideo.de, private individuals swap their 
home-made short films, music clips and vacation videos. Ma-
gic Internet Holding GmbH and its subsidiaries had revenues 
of EUR 5,210 thousand in 2007; the net loss for the same pe-
riod was EUR –1,882 thousand, of which EUR –224 thousand 
applies to the period for which the company was consolida-
ted.

Acquisition of wer-weiss-was GmbH
Effective September 4, 2007, SevenOne Intermedia GmbH 
acquired 74.8 percent of wer-weiss-was GmbH. The cost of 
acquisition for the 74.8 percent purchase came to EUR 9,024 
thousand. 

This expert information service is Germany’s leading portal 
for knowledge sharing on the Internet. At www.wer-weiss-
was.de, online users can register as experts if they want to 
share their knowledge with others in a vast range of areas 
of interest. The revenues of wer-weiss-was GmbH were EUR 
517 thousand; the net profit since it has been consolidated is 
EUR 372 thousand.

Fair value reconciliation
The assets and liabilities of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group reflect 
the additional acquired companies, as discussed above, at 
the following total values:

 

iEUR k Step-up Fair value

Intangible assets 225 13,768 13,993

Goodwill - / - 32,380 32,380

Non-current assets 987 - / - 987

Current assets 22,476 - / - 22,476

Provisions and liabilities -17,856 -2,707 -20,563

Total 49,273

Purchase price 36,758

Carrying amount or equity 5,085

Minority interests 7,430

Total 49,273

[3] Consolidation policies

The financial statements of consolidated companies were in-
corporated into the present statements uniformly according 
to the reporting and valuation principles adopted by the Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Group. 

Capital is consolidated in accordance with IFRS 3 (“Business 
Combinations”) using the purchase method, in which the ac-
quisition cost of a subsidiary is offset against the fair value 
of that subsidiary’s assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
as of the date of its acquisition. Any excess of the acquisition 
cost over the net fair value of the acquisition is capitalized 
under intangible assets, as goodwill. Under IFRS 3, goodwill 
is tested annually for impairment. 

If a decrease in value is found, after another test an impair-
ment charge is taken against the income statement.

Where interests held in Group companies have already been 
amortized in these companies’ individual financial state-
ments, such amounts are recaptured in the consolidated fi-
nancial statements.

Interests held in companies over whose business policies the 
Group has significant influence (associated companies at 
equity) are measured using the equity method under IAS 28 
(“Investments in Associates”). Equity interests held in asso-
ciated companies are reported at a figure equivalent to the 
proportion of the adjusted equity held in each such company. 
There is no price quoted on any active market for the compa-
nies measured using the equity method. Any difference from 
the acquisition cost of the equity interest is recognized using 
the purchase method.

Receivables, provisions, liabilities, expenses and income bet-
ween consolidated companies, as well as interim results in-
corporated, have been eliminated. Where individual compa-
nies’ financial statements took write-downs or write-offs on 
intra-Group receivables, such changes have been eliminated 
in the consolidated financial statements of ¬ProSiebenSat.1 
Media AG.

[4] Foreign currency conversion

Annual financial statements in foreign currency were con-
verted in accordance with IAS 21 (“The Effects of Changes 
in Foreign Exchange Rates”) on the basis of the functional 
currency, using a modified reporting date method. As the-
se companies operate autonomously in financial, economic 
and organizational terms, here the functional currency is ge-
nerally identical to the companies’ national currency. Accor-
dingly, equity is converted at historical rates of exchange, 
while other asset and liability items are converted at the clo-
sing rate as of the date of the balance sheet. In the income 
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statement, expenses and income are converted at the ave-
rage rate for the year. Any currency translation differences 
resulting from the conversion of financial statements in fo-
reign currencies are added to or charged against accumula-
ted other equity, with no net effect on profit or loss.
 
The financial statements of the individual Group companies 
report both receivables and payables denominated in foreign 
currencies using the rate as of the reporting date. Any fo-
reign-exchange gains or losses as of the reporting date are 
added or charged to the income statement. 

An expense of EUR 11,948 thousand resulting from foreign 
exchange translation differences (vs. income of EUR 840 
thousand the year before) was applied to the income state-
ment for the year under review. The larger foreign exchange 
translation differences are connected with the inclusion of 
the foreign subsidiaries of the SBS Broadcasting Group. In 
the prior year, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group had only minor acti-
vities in other countries.

The following exchange rates were used in translating fo-
reign currency within the Group:
 

Exchange rate:  

1 EUR equals

Rate of reporting date Average rate

12/31/2007 12/31/2006 2007 2006

Swiss franc 1.66 1.61 1.65 1.58

Swedish krona 9.44 - / - 9.25 - / -

Norwegian krone 7.96 - / - 8.02 - / -

Danish krone 7.46 - / - 7.45 - / -

United States dollar 1.47 - / - 1.37 - / -

Pound sterling 0.73 - / - 0.68 - / -

Hungarian forint 253.73 - / - 251.32 - / -

Romanian leu 3.60 - / - 3.34 - / -

Bulgarian lev 1.96 - / - 1.96 - / -

[5] Derivative financial instruments

To hedge risks posed by changes in interest rates and foreign 
exchange rates, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group uses derivative fi-
nancial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps, for-
ward exchange transactions (“forwards”) and currency op-
tions. Interest rate risks result from liabilities carrying varia-
ble interest rates; foreign exchange risks are incurred prima-
rily through license payments denominated in U.S. dollars.

Derivative financial instruments are reported at fair value 
in the balance sheet, irrespective of the purpose or intent 
for which the transaction was entered into. Derivative finan-
cial instruments are recognized as of their trading date. The 
fair value of interest rate swaps is generally zero at the time 
of their first recognition. Subsequently interest rate swaps 

are recognized in the balance sheet at their market value, as 
“other assets” or “miscellaneous liabilities.” The fair value of 
forwards is likewise generally zero at the time of their first 
recognition. Subsequently forwards are recognized in the ba-
lance sheet at their market value, as “other assets” or “mis-
cellaneous liabilities.” Purchased currency options are first 
capitalized as “other assets” at the amount of their option 
premium, and subsequently capitalized at market value.

Changes in fair value are normally recognized in the income 
statement. Cash flow hedge accounting may be applied un-
der certain conditions. If any hedge transaction qualifies as 
a cash flow hedge in this sense, the portion of the change in 
market value that is considered an effective hedge is reco-
gnized in equity. The ineffective portion continues to be in-
cluded in the profit or loss for the period. To hedge currency 
risks on future license payments, hedge gains or losses ac-
cumulated in equity are removed from equity at the incep-
tion of the license – i.e., at the moment when the underlying 
transaction is capitalized – and the acquisition cost is increa-
sed or decreased accordingly.

At the inception of a hedge, IAS 39 requires comprehensive 
documentation of the hedging relationship, including a de-
scription of such matters as the associated risk management 
strategy and objectives in undertaking the hedge. Wherever 
possible, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group gathers and manages the 
underlying transactions and hedges in what are known as 
“hedge books.”  The effectiveness of the hedging relation-
ship is measured at regular intervals. If a hedging relation-
ship does not meet, or no longer meets, the requirements of 
IAS 39, the cash flow hedge is derecognized. After a hedging 
relationship is terminated, the amounts included in equity are 
always recognized in the profit or loss for the period if the re-
sults of the underlying transactions affect profit or loss.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group had no hedges designated at fair 
value as of December 31, 2007.

[6] Accounting policies

Recognition of revenues
The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s revenues are mainly advertising 
revenues derived from the sale of advertising time on tele-
vision. Advertising revenues are net of volume discounts, 
agency commissions, cash discounts and value-added tax. 
Other revenues besides advertising revenues derive from 
cooperative media agreements and call revenues from trans-
action television, revenues from pay TV activities, revenues 
from the sale of print products, revenues from the sale of ra-
dio advertising, revenues from the marketing of rights and 
other merchandising services, revenues from the sale of Club 
articles, revenues from new media services (such as teletext, 
Internet, mobile telephony and added-value telephone ser-
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vices), and revenues from the sale of programming rights 
and ancillary programming rights.

Revenues are considered realized when the principal risks 
and opportunities associated with ownership have been 
transferred to the buyer, the amount of the revenue can be 
determined reliably, an economic benefit from the sale is suf-
ficiently probable, the costs associated with the sale can be 
determined reliably, and the selling company neither has the 
authority to decide the disposition of the sold items such as 
would normally be associated with ownership, nor has any 
lasting power of disposition over the items. Specifically, ad-
vertising revenues from both television and radio are consi-
dered realized when advertising spots are broadcast. Reve-
nues from pay TV activities and from the sale of print pro-
ducts are considered realized when the service is provided. 
Revenues from the sale of merchandising licenses are rea-
lized at the agreed guarantee amount as of the inception of 
the license for the customer. Revenues from the sale of pro-
gramming assets and ancillary programming rights are con-
sidered realized when the license term for the purchaser of 
the programming has begun and broadcast-ready materials 
have been delivered to the purchaser. 

Revenues from barter transactions are considered realized 
when goods or services that are not of the same kind are ex-
changed, and the amount of the proceeds and costs, as well 
as the economic benefit, can be clearly measured. Revenues 
are recognized at the market value of the received bartered 
item or service, and may be adjusted with an additional cash 
payment. Barter transactions at the ProSiebenSat.1 Group 
are primarily trade-off transactions relating to the sale of ad-
vertising time.

Recognition of income and expenses
Other operating income is normally recognized when a ser-
vice has been performed, the amount of the income can be 
determined reliably, and it is sufficiently probable that the 
economic benefit will flow to the Group.
Operating expenses are recognized at the time when the ser-
vice is utilized or when the expense is otherwise incurred. In-
terest is recognized as an expense for the period.

Earnings per share
Earnings per share are equivalent to the profit from continu-
ing operations and the profit from discontinued operations 
that can be attributed to ProSiebenSat.1 Group shareholders, 
or the consolidated net profit, divided by the weighted ave-
rage number of shares outstanding during the year.

Impairment of assets
In accordance with IAS 36 (“Impairment of Assets”), a com-
pany must assess at each reporting date whether there is 
indication that an asset may be impaired. If such an indica-
tion exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. 

Whether or not there is any indication of impairment, each 
year a company must also review for impairment any intan-
gible assets with an indefinite useful life, any intangible as-
set not yet available for use, and goodwill acquired in busi-
ness combinations. An asset has been impaired when its car-
rying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recovera-
ble amount is either the fair value less selling expenses, or 
the present value of future payment flows expected from the 
continuing use of the asset, whichever is higher. If the reco-
verable amount is below the carrying amount, the difference 
represents the impairment, which must normally be reported 
as an expense in the income statement, unless it relates to 
a revalued asset where the value changes are recognized di-
rectly in equity. A company must assess at each reporting 
date whether an impairment still exists. If there is no longer 
any reason for such an impairment, the impairment loss must 
be reversed. The reversal cannot result in an amount grea-
ter than the amount that would have been reported if no im-
pairment had been recognized. Normally, the reversal is re-
cognized as income in the income statement, unless it relates 
to a revalued asset where the value changes are recognized 
directly in equity. Impairment losses for goodwill cannot be 
reversed.  

Intangible assets
Acquired assets are capitalized under IAS 38 (“Intangible As-
sets”) if it is probable that the future economic benefits will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be mea-
sured reliably. Unless an asset has an indefinite useful life, 
it undergoes scheduled amortization and, where applicable, 
unscheduled write-downs. Also capitalized is internally crea-
ted software that derives, for example, from service relation-
ships among ProSiebenSat.1 Group affiliates and meets the 
criteria of IAS 38. This software is capitalized at its capitali-
zable cost. Based on the pattern of usage, scheduled depre-
ciation is recognized on a straight-line basis over the follow-
ing useful lives:
Purchased software and internally created software is amor-
tized as a rule on a straight-line basis over three to eight 
years. Licenses and other intellectual property rights are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over ten years or over the 
term of the license agreement. 

Additionally, goodwill is capitalized in the consolidated finan-
cial statements. Under IFRS 3, goodwill and separable intan-
gible assets with an indeterminate useful life expectancy are 
not to be amortized, but instead must be reviewed at least 
annually for impairment, in what is known as the impairment-
only approach. If the recoverable amount of the asset (the 
higher of the net resale value and the present value of futu-
re benefits) is below the carrying amount, the asset is writ-
ten down.
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Property and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are valued at cost, less sche-
duled depreciation based on wear and tear and, if necessa-
ry, unscheduled write-downs. Based on the pattern of usage, 
scheduled depreciation is recognized on a straight-line basis 
over the following useful lives:

years

Buildings on land owned by others, fixtures and renovations 3-50

Studio facilities 3-10

Technical office equipment 2-10

Office furniture and equipment 3-20

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are any contracts that give rise to a fi-
nancial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. The financial assets of the Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Group consist primarily of cash and cash equiva-
lents, loan receivables and trade accounts receivable, deri-
vative financial instruments with a positive market value, fi-
nancial assets designated at fair value, and financial assets 
available for sale. Financial liabilities particularly include lia-
bilities to banks, trade accounts payable, liabilities under fi-
nance leases, and derivative financial instruments with a ne-
gative market value. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group has no finan-
cial assets in the “held to maturity” category.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash equivalents include all near-liquid assets. Cash and cash 
equivalents are measured at their amortized cost.

Loans and receivables
Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are mea-
sured at their amortized cost less impairment. Impairment 
of trade accounts receivable is recognized in separate write-
down or write-off accounts.

Financial assets available for sale
Investments in equity instruments, debt instruments and 
fund shares are classified as financial assets available for 
sale, and are recognized at fair value, if that value can be de-
termined reliably. Equity instruments for which there is no 
price listed on an active market, and whose fair value cannot 
be determined reliably, are measured at cost. Investments in 
associated companies are reported under IAS 28 (“Invest-
ments in Associates”) using the equity method, at the share 
of their equity held.

Financial assets designated at fair value
Securities recognized here are managed on a fair value basis. 
They are measured on the basis of current market prices.

Financial liabilities
With the exception of derivative financial instruments, finan-
cial liabilities are measured at their amortized cost, applying 
the effective interest rate method. Term loans and bond lia-
bilities are recognized on the basis of their nominal total, at 
their amortized cost less issuing and financing costs. These 
costs are distributed over the term of the liability using the 
effective interest rate method. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group has 
no financial liabilities designated at fair value.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments, such as currency forwards 
and interest rate swaps, are measured at market value. See 
Note [5], Derivative Financial Instruments, for detailed infor-
mation on these instruments, including cash flow hedges.

Programming assets
Programming assets comprise feature films, series, commis-
sioned productions, sports rights, and advance payments 
made. Feature films, series and sports rights are capitalized 
as of the beginning of the license term; commissioned pro-
ductions are capitalized as broadcast-ready programming 
assets as of their date of formal acceptance.

Consumption of licenses and of commissioned productions 
intended for multiple showings begins at the start of the first 
broadcast, and depends on the number of showings permit-
ted or planned, as the case may be. Consumption resulting 
from showings is measured using a declining-balance me-
thod according to a standardized matrix. 

Commissioned productions intended for only one showing 
are fully consumed as of their broadcasting.

Unscheduled consumption is applied for feature films, series, 
sports rights and commissioned productions if their costs 
can presumably not be covered by future revenues. The rea-
sons for this assumption might include changes in the adver-
tising environment, changing audience tastes, media-law re-
strictions on the usability of films, licenses that expire prior 
to broadcasting, or if a production has been commissioned 
but is not pursued further. Consumption resulting from sho-
wings and unscheduled consumption are reported as part of 
the cost of sales.

Programming assets are written up if unscheduled consump-
tion has caused licensed programs or commissioned produc-
tions to be valued too low in the past, in view of their future 
economic benefits. Write-ups are netted against the cost of 
sales.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at their cost of acquisition or capita-
lizable cost of creation, as the case may be, or at net resale 
value if that value is lower.
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Receivables and other current assets
Unless receivables and other current assets are held for tra-
ding, they are recognized at their amortized cost as of the 
balance sheet date. In the valuation of receivables and other 
current assets, adequate allowances have been made, on the 
basis of objective evidence and values developed through ex-
perience, to cover known risks by valuation adjustments. In-
dividual receivables are estimated and evaluated on the ba-
sis of the individual client’s creditworthiness, current econo-
mic developments, and an analysis of historical defaults, on 
a portfolio basis.

Deferred taxes
Deferred tax items are formed in accordance with IAS 12 (“In-
come Taxes”) for all temporary differences between the car-
rying amount of an item and its tax base, and for consolida-
tion measures affecting profits. Goodwill for which amortiza-
tion cannot be deducted for tax purposes is excepted. Addi-
tionally, entitlements to tax reductions are capitalized where 
there is an expectation that existing tax loss carry-forwards 
can be applied in later years. Deferred tax assets and liabili-
ties are calculated on the basis of the tax rates that are ex-
pected to apply according to current law at the time when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are netted against tax liabilities so far as 
they are owed by and to the same tax authorities, and so far 
as the Company is legally entitled to offset current tax re-
fund entitlements and tax liabilities against one another.

Stock option plan
The management Stock Option Plan is measured on the ba-
sis of actuarial methods using option price models. The op-
tions are measured at market value as of the date on which 
they are accorded. The resulting option value is charged to 
the income statement as a personnel expense, spread over 
the vesting period.

Provisions
Provisions are formed if a present obligation to third parties 
has arisen as a result of a past event, if payment is probable, 
and if the amount of the payment can be estimated reliably. 
Provisions represent uncertain liabilities that are recognized 
in an amount measured by a best estimate.

In measuring pension provisions, obligations from direct pen-
sion commitments are calculated by determining the pre-
sent value of expected future payments, adjusted for futu-
re changes in benefits. The service cost for those entitled to 
future pension benefits is derived from the increase in the 
present value of a defined-benefit obligation that applies to 
the benefits provided to beneficiaries during the reporting 
period.

2007 2006

Actuarial interest rate 5.5 % 4.5 %

Rate of salary progression 0.0 % 0.0 %

Rate of pension progression 1.0 % 1.0 %

Pension obligations were measured using the biometric cal-
culation data provided in the 2005G guideline tables prepa-
red by Prof. Dr. Klaus Heubeck.

Provisions for contingent losses are recognized primarily for 
programming assets whose license term begins after Decem-
ber 31, 2007, and which current programming analyses indi-
cate will not generate the originally anticipated future audi-
ence shares or revenues. Individual license agreements are 
measured as a function of the quality and age of the pro-
gramming, restrictions on use under media laws, and strate-
gic program scheduling.

Leases
IAS 17 (“Leases”) defines a finance lease as a lease under 
which substantially all risks and benefits deriving from title 
to an asset are transferred to the lessee. Leases that do not 
qualify as finance leases are considered operating leases. 
Under IFRS, lessees must report finance leases, in equal 
amounts, as both an asset and a liability at the inception of 
the lease. The amount to be employed is either the fair va-
lue of the leased property, or the present value of minimum 
lease payments, if the latter value is lower. “Minimum lease 
payment” is the IFRS term for the payments the lessee must 
make for the life of the lease, except for expenses for ser-
vices listed in IAS 17.4. Payments made to exercise an opti-
on to purchase at a price that is categorized as substantial-
ly lower than the fair value of the item are also included in 
the minimum lease payments. Finance leases give rise to a 
depreciation expense for depreciable assets, and a financial 
expense for the recognized liability. The lease payments for 
an operating lease are reported as an expense in the income 
statement, on a straight-line basis.

Under IFRS, a number of leases taken out by the ProSieben-
Sat.1 Group have been classified as finance leases. The leased 
assets and lease liabilities under these leases are reported 
in the balance sheet under “property, plant and equipment” 
and under “miscellaneous liabilities.”

Use of estimates
Preparing financial statements in accordance with IFRS ne-
cessitates assumptions and estimates that may have an im-
pact on related amounts and information that are reported. 
The assumptions and estimates apply primarily to the reco-
gnition and measurement of programming assets, intangible 
assets resulting from purchase price allocations and provi-
sions, discounting of long-term low-interest loans, and the 
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possibility of realizing future tax advantages. Both the initi-
al measurement and subsequent valuations of programming 
assets are based on estimated earnings potential. This ear-
nings potential reflects various scenarios for the use of pro-
gramming assets (see Note 31, “Provisions”). Although these 
estimates are made with all due attention to current events 
and conditions, actual results may deviate from these esti-
mates. Any necessary changes will be recognized, with an 
impact on the income statement, at the time when further 
knowledge is received.
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Notes to the Income Statement

[7] Revenues

EUR k 2007 2006

Advertising revenues 2,289,153 1,876,040

Barter deals 29,361 24,002

Other revenues 384,019 195,092

Total 2,702,533 2,095,134

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s revenues of EUR 2,702,533 
thousand were primarily advertising revenues.

Group revenues increased EUR 607,399 thousand, or 29 per-
cent, from EUR 2,095,134 thousand in fiscal 2006 to EUR 
2,702,533 thousand in fiscal 2007. The change is essentially 
a result of the inclusion of the SBS Broadcasting Group.

Overall, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s conventional advertising 
revenues were up EUR 413,113 thousand, from EUR 1,876,040 
thousand to EUR 2,289,153 thousand – a gain of 22 percent.

[8] Cost of sales

Cost of sales primarily comprises consumption of program-
ming assets and expenses for licenses, transmission fees 
and materials. The cost of sales increased EUR 323,092 
thousand, from EUR 1,295,697 thousand in fiscal 2006 to 
EUR 1,618,789 thousand in fiscal 2007. The cost of sales for 
the SBS Broadcasting Group for the second half of 2007 is in-
cluded, at EUR 292,510 thousand. Consumption of program-
ming assets, including amounts drawn from provisions for 
contingent losses, increased EUR 187,864 thousand, to EUR 
1,134,590 thousand in fiscal 2007. 

[9] Selling expenses

Selling expenses are mainly broadcasting expenses, distri-
bution fees and advertising expenses. Selling expenses rose 
EUR 150,828 thousand against the year before, from EUR 
223,658 thousand to EUR 374,486 thousand in fiscal 2007. 
Most of the increase resulted from impairment charges of 
EUR 69.6 million taken on capitalized intangible assets in the 
purchase price allocation for the SBS Broadcasting Group, 
and from the first consolidation of the SBS Broadcasting 
Group in the second half.

[10] Administrative expenses

This item represents all costs of general administration activi-
ties. These include personnel expenses, IT expenses and buil-
ding management expenses. Administrative expenses rose 
from EUR 145,078 thousand in fiscal 2006 to EUR 341,717 

thousand in fiscal 2007. Most of the increase of EUR 196,639 
thousand results from a EUR 120,000 thousand fine imposed 
by the German Federal Cartel Office, and from EUR 64,010 
thousand in administrative expenses resulting from the first 
consolidation of the SBS Broadcasting Group.

[11] Other operating income

Other operating income rose EUR 4,623 thousand, or 38 per-
cent, from EUR 12,120 thousand in fiscal 2006 to EUR 16,743 
thousand in fiscal 2007. The increase resulted primarily from 
the sale of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Buchagentur Interme-
dien GmbH, and from realized foreign exchange translation 
gains.

[12] Other financial income

EUR k 2007 2006

Income from equity interests 76 81

Income from other securities and loans of finan-

cial assets 132 258

Write-downs of current financial assets - / - -1

Total 208 338

[13] Net interest

EUR k 2007 2006

Other interest and similiar income 28,009 3,931

    including from hedge derivatives 13,393 - / -

Interest and similiar expenses -143,751 -46,873

    including from hedge derivatives -2,559 - / -

Total -115,742 -42,942

The net interest expense widened to EUR –115,742 thousand 
in fiscal 2007, following the previous year’s EUR –42,942 
thousand.

Interest expenses grew from EUR 46,873 thousand to EUR 
143,751 thousand. The rise of EUR 96,878 thousand resulted 
substantially from financing for the acquisition of the SBS 
Broadcasting Group.  Interest expenses on future tax pay-
ments also had an effect.

The primary interest expense items pertain to interest on lo-
ans drawn, interest for bond issues and interest paid on taxes 
and finance leases.  The SBS Broadcasting Group’s share of 
interest expenses came to EUR 49,073 thousand.

The largest single item in interest income was interest in-
come of EUR 13,393 thousand from the termination of in-
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terest rate swaps as part of the refinancing process, interest 
income of EUR 4,129 thousand from term deposits, and in-
terest of EUR 3,827 thousand on future tax refunds. The SBS 
Broadcasting Group’s share of interest income totaled EUR 
19,176 thousand.  

[14] Other financial expenses

Other financial expenses consist entirely of the cost of incur-
red or retired financial liabilities.

[15] Income taxes

Income taxes include both taxes paid or owed on income and 
deferred tax items.

Taxes on income comprise the following:

EUR k 2007 2006

Current Income tax expenses 173,542 133,316

Deferred tax income / expenses -20,846 9,002

Total 152,696 142,318

The income tax expense for the year under review includes 
neither expenses nor income resulting from changes in ac-
counting principles.

The corporate income tax rate of 25.0 percent remained un-
changed in 2007 from the previous year, as did the German 
reunification surtax (the “solidarity surtax”) of 5.5 percent 
of the corporate income tax liability. Including the local busi-
ness income tax (or “trade tax”) with an average basis factor 
of 380 percent, the total tax rate for 2007 was 38.0 percent, 
exactly as in the previous year.

The German corporation tax reform will lower the above to-
tal rate to 29.0 beginning with 2008. The most significant 
effect here is the decrease in the corporate income tax rate 
from 25.0 percent to 15.0 percent. This tax reduction has al-
ready been taken into account in calculating the deferred ta-
xes for the Group’s German companies.

Tax rates for Group companies outside Germany vary from 
10.0 to 34.0 percent.

The anticipated tax expense can be reconciled with the actu-
al tax expense as follows:

EUR k 2007 2006

Consolidated pre-tax profit 248,783 385,283

Statutory tax rate 38.0% 38.0%

Expected tax expenditure 94,538 146,408

Differences in tax rates

Tax results due to tax rate changes 879 - / -

Tax results referring to differences in foreign tax 

rates -1,975 -4,490

At-equity valuation 707 -887

Tax results referring to differences in taxable 

base

Amortization of goodwill with no tax impact - / - - / -

Permanent Differences 53,299 5,302

Other tax-free revenues -2,227 -202

Recognition and measurement of deferred tax 

assets

Provisions against deferred taxes -1,282 -452

Non-periodic effects

Current and deferred taxes for previous years 

[partially from tax audits] 7,686 20,339

Effects of deconsolidation 584 - / -

Corporate income tax credit - / - -23,340

Others 487 -360

Actual total tax expenditure 152,696 142,318

By itself, the non-tax-deductible EUR 120,000 thousand fine 
imposed by the cartel office increased the permanent dif-
ferences by EUR 45,600 thousand.

80



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS_NOTES

The following balance sheet items are included among defer-
red tax items:

EUR k 2007 2006

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Intangible assets 20,177 221,033 8,518 14,849

Property and equip-

ment

5,995 34,796 - / - 46,434

Financial assets 2,687 117 3,339 149

Inventories and 

other assets 15,583 5,210 3,862 4,260

Programming assets 227 13,230 5,602 4,230

Pension provisions 29 246 - / - 215

Provisions 8,765 1,202 7,766 152

Liabilities 45,758 13,793 50,722 13,070

Loss carry-forwards 33,979 - / - 2,761 - / -

Netting -82,600 -82,600 -82,570 -82,570

Total 50,600 207,027 - / - 789

Deferred tax assets for tax loss carry-forwards increased 
EUR 31.218 thousand against the year before. Most of the in-
crease came from the addition of deferred tax assets on loss 
carry-forwards for the SBS Broadcasting Group. Deferred tax 
assets on tax loss carry-forwards were recognized and mea-
sured on the basis of projected future taxable income.

Safety margins are deducted from deferred tax assets where 
there are uncertainties about whether these assets can be 
realized in the future. No deferred tax assets were formed 
for loss carry-forwards from periods before a company joi-
ned the Group. In all, no deferred tax assets were taken for 
tax loss carry-forwards of EUR 128,584 thousand as of De-
cember 31, 2007 (prior year: EUR 22,492 thousand). Out of 
the increase in unrecognized tax loss carry-forwards, EUR 
116,253 thousand was tax loss carry-forwards for the SBS 
Broadcasting Group.

In compliance with IAS 12.39, no deferred tax items for out-
side basis differences were formed for equity investments in 
subsidiaries and associates, since the reversal of temporary 
differences can be controlled, and it is not likely that the tem-
porary differences will be reversed in the foreseeable future. 
No deferred tax items for outside basis differences were for-
med for companies reported at equity because such amounts 
were of minor importance.

Deferred tax assets included in equity, with no impact on 
earnings, pertain particularly to currency derivatives and in-
terest rate swaps, and came to EUR 9,246 thousand, compa-
red to the previous year’s deferred tax assets of EUR 8,347 
thousand.

[16] Earnings per share 

In accordance with IAS 33 (“Earnings per Share”), the ear-
nings per share are calculated by dividing the consolidated 
profit from continuing operations, after minority interests, 
by the average number of shares outstanding during the 
year.

2007 2006

Consolidated net profit from continuing 

operations EUR k 96,087 242,965

Less minority interests EUR k -6,767 -3,189

Consolidated net profit from continuing 

operations attributable to shareholders 

of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG EUR k 89,320 239,776

Weighted average number of shares

outstanding 218,797,200 218,797,200

Share of profits attributable to common stock 

EUR k

43,566 118,794

Share of profits attributable to preferred stock

 EUR k

45,754 120,982

Weighted average number of shares of

common stock outstanding 109,398,600 109,398,600

Weighted average number of shares of

preferred stock outstanding 109,398,600 109,398,600

Basic [=diluted] earnings per share of common 

stock from continuing operations EUR 0.40 1.09

Basic [=diluted] earnings per share of preferred 

stock from continuing operations EUR 0.42 1.11

The advance distribution (additional dividend) of EUR 0.02 
per preferred share was taken into account in calculating 
earnings per preferred share. The diluted earnings per share 
were the same as the basic earnings per share. There were 
no dilution effects in either the year under review or the 
comparison period.
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[17] Other information 

Personnel expenses  
The personnel component included under cost of sales, sel-
ling expenses and administrative expenses comprises:

EUR k 2007 2006

Wages and salaries 280,350 204,508

    (thereof expenses for the stock option plan) (5,412) (4,572)

    (thereof expenses for employlees of 

     ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH) (70,562) (67,367)

Social security contributions and expenses for

pensions and other employee benefits 43,297 30,964

    (thereof pension provisions) (484) (1,100)

Total 323,647 235,472

Personnel expenses rose 37 percent against the previous 
year, from EUR 235,472 thousand in fiscal 2006 to EUR 
323,647 thousand in 2007. The increase resulted from the 
consolidation of the SBS Broadcasting Group and new hires 
during the past year.

Employer contributions to the public retirement insurance 
system totaled EUR 18,266 thousand in fiscal 2007.
 
The Group had the following average numbers of employees 
during the year:

2007 2006

Employees 4,528 2,976

    (thereof employees ProSiebenSat.1 

    Produktion GmbH) (998) (1,009)

Trainees and interns 324 367

Total 4,852 3,343

Part-time positions are reported as an equivalent number of 
full-time positions.

Depreciation and amortization  
The following amortization of intangible assets and depre-
ciation of property, plant and equipment are included under 
cost of sales, selling expenses and administrative expenses:

EUR k 2007 2006

Scheduled amortization of intangible assets 100,373 15,691

  (thereof ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion) (2,066) (1,978)

Scheduled depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 36,402 24,085

  (thereof ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion) (13,154) (12,181)

Unscheduled amortization of intangible assets 199 267

Unscheduled depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 34 - / -

Total 137,008 40,043

Amortization of intangible non-current assets and depre-
ciation of property, plant and equipment was up from EUR 
40,043 thousand for the previous period to EUR 137,008 
thousand for the period under review. This represents a rise 
of EUR 96,965 thousand, or 242 percent. The primary factor 
behind the increase was the impairment write-downs taken 
on intangible assets found in the purchase price allocation 
for the SBS Broadcasting Group in fiscal 2007.
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Notes to the balance sheet

[18] Intangible assets

EUR k Licenses, 

trademarks and 

patents, as well as 

licenses to such 

assets and rights

Goodwill Advances paid on 

intangible assets

Total

Acquisition cost

Initial inventory 1/1/2006 99,452 351,035 5,531 456,018

Changes in scope of consolidation 346 3,131 84 3,561

Additions 8,840 - / - 1,713 10,553

Reclassifications 4,148 - / - -4,239 -91

Disposals 2,580 - / - 84 2,664

Final inventory 12/31/2006 / Initial inventory 1/1/2007 110,206 354,166 3,005 467,377

Exchange rate differences -7,832 -15,940 - / - -23,772

Changes in scope of consolidation 945,082 2,392,751 - / - 3,337,833

Additions 14,281 - / - 2,419 16,700

Reclassifications 1,949 - / - -1,934 15

Reclassifications as assets held for sale -19,723 - / - -235 -19,958

Disposals 981 - / - 416 1,397

Final inventory 12/31/2007 1,042,982 2,730,977 2,839 3,776,798

Amortization

Initial inventory 1/1/2006 40,936 85,310 - / - 126,246

Changes in scope of consolidation 195 - / - 70 265

Additions *] 15,958 - / - - / - 15,958

Disposals 2,579 - / - 70 2,649

Final inventory 12/31/2006 / Initial inventory 1/1/2007 54,510 85,310 - / - 139,820

Exchange rate differences -2,828 - / - - / - -2,828

Changes in scope of consolidation 22,916 -3,135 - / - 19,781

Additions *] 100,572 - / - - / - 100,572

Reclassifications 18 - / - - / - 18

Reclassifications as assets held for sale -14,310 - / - - / - -14,310

Disposals 978 - / - - / - 978

Final inventory 12/31/2007 159,900 82,175 - / - 242,075

Carrying amount 12/31/2007 883,082 2,648,802 2,839 3,534,723

Carrying amount 12/31/2006 55,696 268,856 3,005 327,557

Intangible assets comprise software, intellectual property 
rights, brands and trademarks, orders on hand, customer 
relationships, broadcasting licenses, goodwill and advance 
payments made on intangible assets. Amortization is shown 
in the income statement as part of cost of sales, selling ex-
penses and administrative expenses. 

*] Of this amount, unscheduled amortization of EUR 199 thousand (vs. EUR 133 thousand) is included in administrative expenses. No unscheduled amortization is in-
cluded in selling costs (vs. EUR 134 thousand).
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For purposes of testing impairment, goodwill, as well as 
brands, trademarks and other rights with unlimited use-
ful lives, are allocated to cash-generating units (CGUs). The 
following table shows the principal goodwill and brands or 
trademarks of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group that are allocated 
to CGUs:

EUR m 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

Cash-generating unit Brands / 

Trademarks

Goodwill Brands / 

Trademarks

Goodwill

Segment Free TV german-speaking

Free TV german-speaking 3,4 432,8 - / - 26,1

Segment Free TV International

Free TV Netherlands/Belgium 171,6 654,6 - / - - / -

Free TV Nordic 144,8 555,9 - / - - / -

Free TV CEE 22,7 261,5 - / - - / -

Total Segment Free TV International 339,1 1.472,0 - / - - / -

Segment Diversification

Premium Pay TV - / - 151,0 - / - - / -

Radio 54,3 146,4 - / - - / -

Print - / - 93,2 - / - - / -

Other Media 17,4 353,4 12,2 242,8

Total Segment Diversification 71,7 744,0 12,2 242,8

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined by calcula-
ting the present value of its future benefits. Goodwill, brands, 
trademarks and other rights with an indeterminate useful life 
are tested for impairment on the basis of future estimated 
cash flows derived from budget projections. The projections 
are based on a financial planning horizon of five years. To de-
termine the value added for the terminal value (value added 
from fiscal 2013 onward), sustained cash flows with a grow-
th rate from 1.0 percent to 2.0 percent are assumed, as ap-
plicable. The growth rate reflects the long-term expectation 
for each CGU. The discount rates are calculated on the basis 
of the weighted cost of capital for the Group, with due allo-
wance for characteristics specific to the CGUs in question.
The impairment tests resulted in no unscheduled write-downs 
of goodwill, brands, trademarks, or other rights with an inde-
terminate useful life.

The value of intangible assets rose EUR 3,207,166 thousand, 
from EUR 327,557 thousand on December 31, 2006, to EUR 
3,534,723 thousand on December 31, 2007. The intangible 
assets contain goodwill of EUR 2,363,264 thousand acquired 
through the purchase of the SBS Broadcasting Group, and 
the unreported reserves of EUR 883,964 thousand found in 
the purchase price allocation.
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[19] Property, plant and equipment

EUR k Buildings on 

land owned by 

others

Technical 

equipment and 

machinery

Other equip-

ment, office 

furniture and 

equipment

Advances paid 

on property, 

plant and 

equipment

Total

Acquisition cost

Initial inventory 1/1/2006 305,977 135,538 62,395 1,193 505,103

Exchange rate differences - / - -10 -16 - / - -26

Change in scope of consolidation - / - - / - 184 - / - 184

Additions 410 14,837 1,730 1,368 18,345

Reclassifications 16 668 91 -684 91

Disposals 48 6,904 2,097 1,093 10,142

Final inventory 12/31/2006 / Initial inventory 1/1/2007 306,355 144,129 62,287 784 513,555

Exchange rate differences -378 -2,195 -155 - / - -2,728

Change in scope of consolidation 25,025 126,099 15,730 - / - 166,854

Additions 856 18,236 5,057 618 24,767

Reclassifications 50 2,479 -2,170 -301 58

Reclassifications as assets held for sale -3,173 -152,163 -3,933 -543 -159,812

Disposals 1,768 7,253 2,462 142 11,625

Final inventory 12/31/2007 326,967 129,332 74,354 416 531,069

Depreciation

Initial inventory 1/1/2006 99,976 116,988 52,475 - / - 269,439

Exchange rate differences - / - -10 -13 - / - -23

Change in scope of consolidation - / - - / - 161 - / - 161

Additions *] 9,353 11,936 2,798 - / - 24,087

Disposals 39 6,845 1,871 - / - 8,755

Final inventory 12/31/2006 / Initial inventory 1/1/2007 109,290 122,069 53,550 - / - 284,909

Exchange rate differences - 8 2 -1,443 -108 - / - -1,633

Change in scope of consolidation 9 , 8 0 3 92,241 12,208 - / - 114,252

Additions *] 10,389 22,602 3,478 - / - 36,469

Reclassifications - / - -9 46 - / - 37

Reclassifications as assets held for sale -3,112 -130,566 -3,200 - / - -136,878

Disposals 1,783 7,134 2,105 - / - 11,022

Final inventory 12/31/2007 124,505 97,760 63,869 - / - 286,134

Carrying amount 12/31/2007 202,462 31,572 10,485 416 244,935

Carrying amount 12/31/2006 197,065 22,060 8,737 784 228,646

The value of property, plant and equipment increased from 
EUR 228,646 thousand on December 31, 2006, to EUR 
244,935 thousand as of December 31, 2007. The rise of EUR 
16,289 thousand resulted substantially from the first consoli-
dation of the SBS Broadcasting Group.

*] Of this amount, unscheduled depreciation of EUR 34 thousand is included in administrative expenses; no unscheduled depreciation was taken the year before.
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Property, plant and equipment includes leased real estate for 
a value of EUR 119,965 thousand (vs. EUR 122,196 thousand) 
whose underlying leases qualify as finance leases under IAS 
17, and which are therefore reported as assets of which the 
Group has beneficial ownership. The underlying leases cover 
land and buildings at the Unterföhring site, and were origi-
nally for terms of 22 years each. The earliest expiration is 
scheduled for 2019, but the interest rate conversion points 
(the end of the lock-down period for interest rates) may be 
earlier. The real estate leases were signed on prevailing mar-
ket terms.

The interest expense on the above finance leases for fiscal 
2007 was EUR 6,436 thousand (vs. EUR 6,632 thousand) and 
the associated depreciation was EUR 2,232 thousand (vs. 
EUR 2,798 thousand).

The minimum lease payments comprise the following:

EUR k Remaining 

term 1 year or 

less

Remaining 

term 2 or 5 

years

Remaining 

term over 5 

years

Total

12/31/2007

Total

12/31/2006

Property, plant and equipment

Minimum lease payment 9,749 38,998 72,666 121,413 131,604

  Share of interest ref. to minimum lease payment 6,228 22,558 28,418 57,204 63,641

  Present value of minimum lease payment 3,521 16,440 44,248 64,209 67,963

Additionally, long-term lease obligations of EUR 50,391 
thousand still exist that under the repayment plan will not be 
fixed until the year 2019 or 2023.
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[20] Financial assets

EUR k Interests in 

Group 

companies

Investments in 

associates

Other equity 

interests

Loans to 

associates

Investment 

securities

Other loans Total

Acquisition cost

Initial inventory 1/1/2006 88 5,754 821 256 9 3,326 10,254

Changes in scope of consolidation - / - 6,000 - / - - / - - / - - / - 6,000

Additions - / - 2,386 - / - - / - 2,729 1,119 6,234

Disposals - / - 1,617 557 256 - / - 2,535 4,965

Final inventory 12/31/2006 / 

Initial inventory 1/1/2007 88 12,523 264 - / - 2,738 1,910 17,523

Changes in scope of consolidation 40 -4,404 64,144 -300 - / - - / - 59,480

Additions - / - 1,304 342 300 3,192 48 5,186

Reclassifications as assets held for sale -23 - / - - / - - / - - / - -12 -35

Disposals - / - 2,085 - / - - / - 272 1,010 3,367

Final inventory 12/31/2007 105 7,338 64,750 - / - 5,658 936 78,787

Write-downs

Initial inventory 1/1/2006 - / - 3,199 590 256 - / - 2,345 6,390

Changes in scope of consolidation - / - - / - - / - - / - - / - - / - - / -

Additions - / - - / - - / - - / - 1 - / - 1

Disposals - / - - / - 510 256 - / - 1,450 2,216

Final inventory 12/31/2006 / 

Initial inventory 1/1/2007 - / - 3,199 80 - / - 1 895 4,175

Changes in scope of consolidation - / - -444 - / - - / - - / - - / - -444

Additions - / - - / - - / - - / - - / - - / - - / -

Disposals - / - - / - - / - - / - - / - - / - - / -

Final inventory 12/31/2007 - / - 2,755 80 - / - 1 895 3,731

Carrying amount 12/31/2007 105 4,583 64,670 - / - 5,657 41 75,056

Carrying amount 12/31/2006 88 9,324 184 - / - 2,737 1,015 13,348

The associated companies appear in the list of affiliated com-
panies on pages 109 through 111. 
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Interests in associated companies comprise the following:

EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

lokalisten media GmbH 2,937 3,000

TV 10 B.V. 638 - / -

Privatfernsehen in Bayern GmbH & Co. KG 208 176

VG Media Gesellschaft zur Verwertung  

der Urheber- und Leistungsschutzrechte  

von Medienunternehmen mbH 189 189

LOVESEARCH DP AB 154 - / -

Radio Silkeborg af 1997 A/S 148 - / -

Österjöns Reklamradio AB 106 - / -

Big Brother Kommanditbolag 65 - / -

Privatfernsehen in Bayern Verwaltungs-GmbH 28 26

IP Multimedia (Schweiz) AG 14 - / -

MAGIC Internet Holding GmbH - / - 3,000

Sat.1 Privatrundfunk und  

-programmgesellschaft m.b.H. - / - 2,933

Other associated companies 96 - / -

Total 4,583 9,324

[21] Programming assets

EUR k Free TV rights Pay TV rights Advance payments Total

Carrying amount 1/1/2006 780,126 7,444 269,914 1,057,484

Additions 806,722 4,403 143,862 954,987

Disposals 5,777 - / - 3,651 9,428

Reclassifications 173,768 - / - -173,768 - / -

Consumption *] 937,950 3,048 5,728 946,726

Carrying amount 12/31/2006 / 1/1/2007 816,889 8,799 230,629 1,056,317

Change in scope of consolidation 212,363 16,021 - / - 228,384

Additions 1,034,275 76,014 66,396 1,176,685

Disposals 5,833 1,759 1,519 9,111

Reclassifications 149,585 521 -150,106 - / -

Consumption *] 1,084,798 49,792 - / - 1,134,590

Carrying amount 12/31/2007 1,122,481 49,804 145,400 1,317,685

Programming assets as of December 31, 2007, came to EUR 
1,317,685 thousand – an increase of EUR 261,368 thousand 
(2006: EUR 1,056,317 thousand). The programming assets 
include EUR 252,777 thousand for the SBS Broadcasting 
Group. Investments in programming assets rose EUR 221,697 
thousand, from EUR 954,987 thousand in fiscal 2006 to EUR 
1,176,684 thousand in fiscal 2007. 

*] Consumption including amounts drawn from provisions for contingent losses 

During the year, unscheduled consumption of program-
ming assets, including allocations to provisions for contin-
gent losses, came to EUR 72,347 thousand (vs. EUR 83,028 
thousand) for the Group.
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[22] Inventories

EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

Raw materials and supplies 38 198

Finished goods and merchandise 4,640 4,108

Total 4,678 4,306

[23] Receivables and other current assets

EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

trade acoounts receivable 357,790 168,300

[amounts due after more than one year] [611] [298]

Receivables from Group companies - / - 7

Receivables from entities in which the Company 

holds interests of 20% or more 17,805 17,022

   [amounts due after more than one year] [63] - / -

Investment securities 264 252

Other assets 113,491 52,846

 [amounts due after more than one year] [13,417] [1,262]

Total 489,350 238,427

[thereof long-term] [14,091] [1,560]

[thereof short-term] [475,259] [236,867]

Receivables and other current assets increased EUR 250,923 
thousand, or 105 percent, from EUR 238,427 thousand at the 
beginning of the year to EUR 489,350 thousand at year’s 
end. The value of trade accounts receivable, at EUR 357,790 
thousand as of December 31, 2007, was up by EUR 189,490 
thousand from the previous year’s figure.

Receivables from entities to which the Company is linked 
through interests of 20 percent or more pertain to VG Me-
dia Gesellschaft zur Verwertung der Urheber- und Leistungs-
schutzrechte von Medienunternehmen mbH, of Berlin, IP 
Multimedia (Schweiz) AG, of Zurich, Switzerland, and Privat-
fernsehen in Bayern GmbH & Co. KG, Munich.

The following table shows the changes in write-downs of 
short-term and long-term receivables:

EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

Write-downs as of beginning of year 20,130 27,976

   Additions from first consolidation 5,622  - / -

   Additions 5,956 1,833

   Write-offs -1,851 -907

   Discounting effects -14 - / -   

Write-backs -992 -8,772

Write-downs as of end of year 28,851 20,130

Other current assets comprise the following:

EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

Income tax refund entitlements 34,109 23,871

Prepaid expenses 30,781 8,887

Finance costs 8,357 - / -

Security deposits 2,242 144

Derivatives - / - 1,430

Other 38,002 18,514

Total 113,491 52,846

The increase in the line items for “prepaid expenses” and 
“other” is particularly the result of the first consolidation 
of the SBS Broadcasting Group. “Other” current assets are 
mainly accruals and other tax receivables.

[24] Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and cash in 
bank deposits with terms of three months or less.

[25] Shareholders’ equity

Shareholders’ equity declined EUR 178,198 thousand, or 14 
percent, from EUR 1,240,524 thousand at the beginning of 
the fiscal year to EUR 1,062,326 thousand at year’s end. Most 
of the decrease resulted from the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s lo-
wer net profit against the prior period, and from larger ne-
gative effects from hedge accounting that were charged to 
equity, with no impact on profit or loss, as well as a decrease 
in the capital reserve from a reclassification of the present 
value of the Company’s obligations for future minimum divi-
dend payouts to holders of non-voting preferred stock.

At year’s end, the subscribed capital of the ProSiebenSat.1 
Group came to EUR 218,797,200. This capital is divided into 
109,398,600 registered shares of common stock with no par 
value, and 109,398,600 nonvoting bearer shares of prefer-
red stock with no par value, each share representing a noti-
onal value of EUR 1.00 of the share capital. Thus, as of De-
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Euro

Distribution of a dividend of EUR 1.25 per prefer-

red bearer share
136.748.250,00

Distribution of a dividend of EUR 1.23 per common 

share
134.560.278,00

Balance to be carried forward to the new accoun-

ting period

2.834.434.272,31

Distributable net profit 3.105.742.800,31

As part of the integration process, during fiscal 2007 a hol-
ding company was set up for the Group’s German-language 
free TV stations. German Free TV Holding GmbH pools all the 
Group’s free TV operations in Germany, Austria and Switzer-
land, as a parallel with the holding company for the internati-
onal stations. The German-language stations include not only 
ProSieben, Sat.1, kabel eins and N24 in Germany, which were 
formerly held directly by ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, but also 
SAT.1 Privatrundfunk und -programmgesellschaft m.b.H (Ös-
terreich) and SAT.1 Schweiz AG. In this connection, the values 
of the individual stations were remeasured, resulting in ex-
traordinary income of EUR 2,852 million for ProSiebenSat.1 
Media AG. This remeasurement has no effect at the Group 
level.

[27] Authorized capital

By a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting on June 16, 
2003, the Executive Board was authorized, subject to the ap-
proval of the Supervisory Board, to increase the Company’s 
capital stock on one or more occasions on or before June 
15, 2008, by a total of not more than EUR 97,243,200.00, 
by issuing new registered shares of common stock and new 
bearer shares of preferred stock in return for cash contri-
butions, in the same proportion as existed between the two 
categories of stock at the time of the new issue in question. 
The new shares were to carry an entitlement to participate 
in profits as of the beginning of the fiscal year in which they 
were issued. After exercising this capital authorization in the 
capital increase registered on April 6, 2004, the Executive 
Board was still authorized to increase the Company’s capital 
stock on one or more occasions on or before June 15, 2008, 
subject to approval by the Supervisory Board, by a total of 
not more than EUR 72,932,400.00, in return for cash contri-
butions, by issuing new stock in accordance with the above 
shareholder resolution.
In order to meet the needs of the Company and the capital 
market flexibly in the future as well, the Executive Board was 
authorized by a unanimous resolution of the shareholders’ 
meeting of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG on May 7, 2004, after 
the suspension of the former authorized capital, to increase 
the Company’s share capital on one or more occasions on or 
before May 6, 2009, subject to the approval of the Supervi-

cember 31, 2007, the number of shares outstanding was 
218,797,200.

Capital reserves came to EUR 546,987 thousand, compared 
to EUR 584,537 thousand on December 31, 2006. The de-
crease of EUR 37,550 thousand resulted primarily from the 
reclassification of the present value of the Company’s obli-
gations for future minimum dividend payouts of EUR 27,771 
thousand to holders of nonvoting preferred stock. Under IAS 
32, the present value of the preferred dividend payable un-
der Article 19(1) of the articles of incorporation of ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG is classified as a liability to the holders of pre-
ferred stock, and is accordingly taken into account in equity.
Another reason for the decline in capital reserves was the 
early payout of the first cycle of the stock option plan during 
the course of the change of control of ProSiebenSat.1 Media 
AG in March 2007.

The Group equity generated of EUR 342,646 thousand com-
prises retained earnings before the dividend payment (EUR 
445,743 thousand) and the profit from the period (EUR 
89,445 thousand), less the dividend paid during the year 
(EUR 192,542 thousand). 

The accumulated other Group equity of the ProSiebenSat.1 
Group, in the amount of EUR –56,539 thousand (vs. EUR –
9,602 thousand) results from the measurement of finan-
cial instruments, which has no impact on income, and from 
currency translation differences for the financial statements 
of subsidiaries in other countries. The measurement of fi-
nancial instruments, with no impact on income, pertains to 
currency hedges in the amount of EUR –23,002 thousand 
(vs. EUR –9,144 thousand the year before) and interest rate 
hedges in the amount of EUR –17,464 thousand (vs. none), in-
cluding the associated deferred taxes.

[26] Allocation of profits

Last fiscal year, under a resolution of the shareholders’ mee-
ting of July 17, 2007, a dividend of EUR 192,542 thousand 
was paid out to holders of preferred and common stock, out 
of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG’s 2006 distributable net profit of 
EUR 345,190 thousand. This represents a payout of EUR 0.89 
per bearer share of preferred stock, and EUR 0.87 per regi-
stered share of common stock.
In accordance with the German Stock Corporation Act, the di-
vidend payable to shareholders depends on the distributable 
net profit shown in the annual financial statements of Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Media AG under the German Commercial Code. 
The Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG will propose 
that the distributable net profit of EUR 3.106 billion for fiscal 
2007 should be allocated as follows:
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EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

wer-weiss-was GmbH 3,080 - / -

Sat.1 Privatrundfunk- und Programmgesellschaft 

m.b.H 2,534 - / -

Sat.1 Schweiz AG 2,255 451

solute GmbH 866 - / -

Wetter Fernsehen - Meteos GmbH 798 283

wetter.com AG 344 247

Producers at work GmbH 307 1

PS Event GmbH 239 65

Other companies 12 2

Total 10,435 1,049

[30] Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

Provisions for benefits obligations 4,344 2,574

Pension provisions were formed for obligations to provide fu-
ture benefits for active and former members of the Executi-
ve Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and their survivors.

In calculating pension expenses, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG 
takes account of the expected service cost and the accrued 
interest on the pension obligation. The change in the present 
value of the future benefits is calculated as follows:

EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

Present value of obligation at 1/1 2,574 1,387

Deferred compensation from other allocations - / - - / -

Service cost 738 682

Interest cost  115 87

Actuarial gains (-) / losses (+) 917 418

Present value at 12/31 / Value in balance sheet 4,344 2,574

The interest expense for pension obligations is reported as 
part of the net interest expense. Actuarial gains and losses 
result from a change in the quantity structure and an adjust-
ment of the calculation interest rate. They were recognized 
immediately in the income statement in the year of their oc-
currence. The measurement date for the present value of ob-
ligations is December 31. The parameters and assumptions 
indicated in Note 6, “Accounting policies,” were employed 
for this purpose. 
These parameters will also apply over the course of the year 
for measuring the interest expense and service cost for the 
current year.

sory Board, by not more than EUR 97,243,200.00, in return 
for contributions in cash and/or in kind, by issuing not more 
than 97,243,200 no-par shares of stock. The new shares will 
be entitled to participate in profits as of the beginning of the 
fiscal year in which they are issued. This authorization also 
includes the authorization to issue new preferred shares that 
take precedence over or have the same priority as previous-
ly issued preferred shares in the distribution of profits or the 
Company’s assets.

[28] Repurchase of own stock

At the shareholders’ meeting of May 13, 2005, the sharehol-
ders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG authorized the Company 
for the first time to buy back its own stock. The Company 
was authorized to acquire its own common and/or preferred 
stock on or before November 12, 2006, for a notional value of 
up to 10 percent of the Company’s share capital at the time of 
the authorization. The May 13, 2005, authorization was revo-
ked at the shareholders’ meeting of August 2, 2006, and re-
placed by a new authorization for the Company to acquire its 
own stock. This authorization for the Company to acquire its 
own stock was replaced by a new authorization at the share-
holders’ meeting on July 17, 2007. The Company is authori-
zed to acquire its own common and/or preferred stock on or 
before January 16, 2009, for a total notional value of up to 
10 percent of the Company’s share capital at the time of the 
authorization. The July 17 authorization may be exercised by 
the Executive Board for any legal purpose, especially in pur-
suit of the objectives stated in the authorization resolution 
of the shareholders’ meeting of July 17. Hitherto this autho-
rization has not been exercised by the Company, nor by any 
company dependent upon it or in which it holds a majority in-
terest, nor by any other party acting on behalf of the compa-
ny or on behalf of a company dependent upon it or in which 
it holds a majority interest.

[29] Minority interests

Minority interests pertain to third-party holdings in the equi-
ty to be consolidated in the course of capital consolidation, 
together with the profits and losses to which those third par-
ties are entitled. These interests are held primarily in the fol-
lowing companies:
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The expected contribution expenses for defined-benefit pen-
sion plans in 2008 are EUR 709 thousand. No pension pay-
ments were made in fiscal 2007, and none are expected for 
2008.

[31] Provisions

EUR k 1/1/2007 Exchange rate 

differences

Additions from 

first time con-

solidation

Increase Consumptions Release  12/31/2007

Tax provisions 63,495 -50 13,388 60,145 25,041 320 111,617

Provisions for contingent losses 11,321 - / - - / - 22,638 8,798 258 24,903

Other miscellaneous provisions 21,929 -27 13,854 27,975 9,216 6,552 47,963

Total 96,745 -77 27,242 110,758 43,055 7,130 184,483

Total provisions increased EUR 87,738 thousand, from EUR 
96,745 thousand on December 31, 2006, to EUR 184,483 
thousand on December 31, 2007. Most of the increase of EUR 
48,122 thousand in tax provisions resulted from the first con-
solidation of the SBS Broadcasting Group and from assessed 
additional tax payments.

Provisions for contingent losses are formed almost exclusi-
vely for programming assets whose license term begins after 
December 31, 2007, and which current programming analy-
ses indicate will not generate the originally anticipated futu-
re audience shares or revenues.

Provisions comprise long-term provisions of EUR 6,964 
thousand (vs. EUR 3,396 thousand), of which almost exclusi-
vely are set aside for contingent losses, and short-term pro-
visions of EUR 177,519 thousand (vs. 93,349 thousand).

Other miscellaneous provisions comprise the following:

EUR k 1/1/2007 Exchange rate 

differences

Additions from 

first time con-

solidation

Increase Consumptions Release  12/31/2007

Provisions for business operations 6,201 - / - 208 12,513 4,926 1,318 12,678

Provisions for litigation costs 875 -7 192 446 203 230 1,073

Other miscellaneous provisions 14,853 -20 13,454 15,016 4,087 5,004 34,212

Total 21,929 -27 13,854 27,975 9,216 6,552 47,963

The “other miscellaneous provisions” particularly include 
provisions for interest on future tax payments.
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[32] Liabilities

EUR k Remaining 

term 1 year or 

less

Remaining 

term 1 to 

5 years

Remaining 

term over 5 

years

Total

12/31/2007

Liabilities to banks 2,196 7,967 3,569,330 3,579,493

Total financial liabilities 2,196 7,967 3,569,330 3,579,493

Deposits received 48,445 - / - - / - 48,445

Trade accounts payable 335,029 31,602 1 366,632

Liabilities to entities in which the Company holds interests of 20% or more 1,608 - / - - / - 1,608

Other liabililities 362,289 43,319 126,498 532,106

Total other liabilities 747,371 74,921 126,499 948,791

Total 749,567 82,888 3,695,829 4,528,284

[amounts secured by real estate charges] [35,042]

EUR k Remaining 

term 1 year or 

less

Remaining 

term 1 to 

5 years

Remaining 

term over 5 

years

Total 

12/31/2006

Bonds - / - 148,917 - / - 148,917

Liabilities to banks 1,602 7,483 27,559 36,644

Total financial liabilities 1,602 156,400 27,559 185,561

Deposits received 6,579 - / - - / - 6,579

Trade accounts payable 176,919 2,209 2 179,130

Liabilities to entities in which the Company holds interests of 20% or more 1,284 - / - - / - 1,284

Other liabililities 104,291 15,532 99,132 218,955

Total other liabilities 289,073 17,741 99,134 405,948

Total 290,675 174,141 126,693 591,509

[amounts secured by real estate charges] [36,638]

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities comprise all interest-bearing liabilities not 
included under finance lease liabilities. As of December 31, 
2007, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group had financial liabilities to-
taling EUR 3,579,493 thousand. Of this figure, EUR 2,196 
thousand was short-term liabilities with terms of less than 
one year, and EUR 3,577,297 thousand was long-term liabili-
ties. Additionally, at December 31, 2007, the ProSiebenSat.1 
Group had a credit line of EUR 600 million under its revolving 
credit facility. A total of EUR 44,173 thousand of the credit 
line was used for bank guarantees. The principal components 
of financial liabilities are as follows: 

EUR 4.2 billion syndicated credit facility
The loan agreement covers a number of term loans totaling 
EUR 1.8 billion with a term of seven years (Term Loan B), and 
loans for a total of another EUR 1.8 billion with a term of eight 
years (Term Loan C). The agreement also includes a new re-

volving credit facility with a term of seven years and a total li-
mit of EUR 600 million. It may be drawn in variable amounts. 
The new revolving credit facility replaces a syndicated credit 
line from 2006 with an amount of EUR 500 million. The new 
loan agreement was made with an international banking syn-
dicate and institutional investors. A portion of the loans can 
also be drawn in currencies other than the euro. As of De-
cember 31, 2007, loans had been drawn in Swedish kronor for 
the equivalent of approximately EUR 294 million.

Under the loan agreement, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has 
pledged as security equity interests in various subsidiaries 
categorized as significant. A number of companies also fur-
nished guarantees to the lenders. The loan agreement fur-
thermore includes the usual undertakings, which in turn are 
qualified or mitigated with exceptions. The loan agreement 
additionally includes the customary grounds for termination 
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by the lender, which apply to breaches of contract not other-
wise covered by more detailed provisions of the contract. In 
the event that control of the Company changes through an 
acquisition of a majority interest, each lender independent-
ly may terminate its participation in the loan within a speci-
fied term and demand repayment of outstanding amounts. 
Among its other provisions, the contract also obligates the 
Company to maintain a certain ratio between consolidated 
net debt and consolidated EBITDA, as well as between con-
solidated EBITDA and the consolidated net interest expense 
(each as defined under the contract).

Sat.1 mortgage loan
Obligations to banks furthermore include an annuity loan ta-
ken out by Sat.1 Satelliten Fernsehen GmbH, using mortgage 
liens as collateral. The term of the loan runs to July 2021. Li-
abilities of EUR 35.0 million under this loan existed as of De-
cember 31, 2007.

Bond repaid in 2007
A EUR 150 million bond issue from the ProSiebenSat.1 Group 
was retired early as of August 1, 2007. The bond, issued in 
2004, had a fixed yield of 6.25 percent and was original-
ly due for repayment in 2009. The redemption price was 
101.858 percent of par.

The nominal amounts of the term loans and the bond differ 
from their carrying amounts as recognized under IFRS. Bond 
liabilities and term loans are recognized at par less the costs 
associated with the bond issue or the finance costs, as ap-
plicable, and less the issue discount or plus the issue premi-
um. These costs are distributed over the term of the liability 
using the effective interest rate method.

Miscellaneous liabilities
The miscellaneous liabilities comprise the following:   

EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

Liabilities for cartel office fine 120,000 - / -

Liabilities from finance leases 114,600 118,355

      [thereof long-term] [111,079] [114,600]

Value added tax liabilities 51,400 34,366

Liabilities from hedge 42,497 15,709

Liabilities to holders of preferred stock 27,771 - / -

Interest liabilities on secured term loan 22,948 - / -

Liabilities from fees and toward employees 19,188 7,802

Liabilities for Gema / GVL 16,454 743

Liabilities from unused vacation 14,092 5,646

Liabilities for other taxes 11,712 8,951

Liabilities for independent hedging instruments 8,892 - / -

Amount due for social security 2,438 442

Liabilities for income tax 1,706 2,374

Liabilities from bond interest - / - 1,198

Other 78,408 23,369

Total 532,106 218,955
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Additional notes

[33] Notes to the cash flow statement

The Group’s cash flow statement is prepared in accordance 
with IAS 7 (“Cash Flow Statements”). It shows how cash and 
cash equivalents have changed as a result of inflows and out-
flows during the year, distinguishing between cash flow for 
operating activities, cash flow for investing activities and 
cash flow for financing activities. The cash flow statement 
appears on page 68.

The funds covered by the cash flow statement include all 
cash and cash equivalents, and all bank credit balances with 
terms of not more than three months, as shown in the balan-
ce sheet.

Other changes in equity during 2007 particularly resulted 
from the reduction of the capital reserves by recognizing a 
liability of EUR 27,771 thousand toward holders of preferred 
stock.

Changes in balance sheet items as a consequence of foreign 
exchange rates came to EUR 15,784 thousand in 2007 (vs. 
EUR 779 thousand the year before). This figure includes 
changes in cash and cash equivalents of EUR 5,886 thousand 
for the current fiscal year as a consequence of changes in fo-
reign exchange rates (vs. EUR 510 thousand).

[34] Discontinued operations

The groups of assets and liabilities held for sale, and reco-
gnized in the balance sheet at EUR 30,993 thousand (for 
assets) and EUR 12,382 thousand (for liabilities) pertain to 
the intended sale of all of ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH. 
The sale is expected to be completed within the next twel-
ve months. Under IFRS 5, ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH 
is classified as a group of assets and liabilities held for sale. 
The following table shows the carrying amounts for ProSie-
benSat.1 Produktion GmbH at December 31, 2007.

EUR k

Groups of assets held for sale

I. Intangible assets 5,648

II. Property and equipment 22,934

III. Financial investments 35

IV. Inventories 171

V. Receivables and other current assets 2,076

VI. Cash and cash equivalents 21

VII. Deferred tax entitlements 108

30,993

EUR k

Groups of liabilities held for sale

I. Provisions 300

II. Other liabilities 11,837

III. Deferred tax liabilities 245

12,382

Because of the planned sale of ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion 
GmbH, the Group recognizes the results of this subsidiary’s 
business under discontinued operations in its consolidated 
income statement. For this reason, the external income and 
expenses of ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH are shown se-
parately for the current and prior fiscal year. The after-tax 
profit from discontinued operations was EUR 125 thousand 
(vs. EUR 900 thousand in 2006). The net earnings of ProSie-
benSat.1 Produktion GmbH as recognized in the consolidated 
income statement are as follows:  

EUR k 2007 2006

1. . Revenues 7,888 9,422

2. Cost of sales -4,591 -5,313

3. Gross profit 3,297 4,109

4. Administrative expenses -2,296 -2,657

5. Operating profit 1,001 1,452

6. Pre-tax profit 1,001 1,452

7. Income taxes -876 -561

8. Profit for the year 125 891

Basic and diluted earnings per share of com-

mon stock according to IAS 33                   EUR - / - - / -

Basic and diluted earnings per share of prefer-

red stock according to IAS 33                     EUR - / - 0,01

The consolidated cash flow statement reflects ProSieben-
Sat.1 Produktion GmbH as follows:

EUR k 2007 2006

Cash flow from operating activities 17,269 10,452

Cash flow from investing activities -13,063 -18,052

Cash flow from financing activities - / - - / -

[35] Contingent liabilities

There were no liabilities from guarantees or other contin-
gent liabilities on either December 31, 2007, or December 31, 
2006.
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[36] Other financial liabilities

EUR k Remaining 

term 1 year 

or less

Remaining 

term 2 to 5 

years

Remaining 

term over 5 

years

Total

Programming assets 775,320 932,804 174,599 1,882,723

Royalties 15,207 33,234 24,140 72,581

Leasing and 

long-term

rental committments 79,064 201,957 86,242 367,263

Other liabilities 75,951 15,177 293 91,421

Total 945,542 1,183,172 285,274 2,413,988

Other financial liabilities exist in addition to provisions, liabi-
lities and contingent liabilities. These derive from contractual 
agreements entered into before December 31, 2007, and per-
tain to payment obligations due on or after January 1, 2008. 
The agreements have remaining terms of between 1 and 15 
years.

Use fees include financial obligations for satellite rental, obli-
gations under contracts for terrestrial transmission facilities, 
and cable feed charges. 

Leasing and long-term rental obligations under operating 
leases essentially comprise obligations under leases for 
motor vehicles, along with rent obligations under building 
leases. 

Other liabilities essentially comprise GEMA payments and 
fees for news services and other services.

[37] Further notes on financial risk management

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s business operations and finan-
cing needs expose it to various financial risks. Fluctuating 
interest rates and foreign exchange rates may affect the 
Group’s assets and liabilities, financial position, and profit or 
loss. The acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group has signi-
ficantly altered the Corporation’s risk structure. Interest rate 
risks in particular have risen. Financial risks are managed and 
monitored centrally as a part of financial risk management. 
For the Group’s German-speaking regions, the principles, du-
ties and responsibilities of financial risk management are go-
verned by the Group’s internal corporate financial guidelines. 
One of the primary tasks for fiscal 2008 is to fully integrate 
the SBS Broadcasting Group into the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s 
financial risk management system, and to incorporate it into 
Group-wide regulations. The objective of financial risk ma-
nagement is to cushion the adverse effects that fluctuations 
in financial risk factors may have on the Group’s assets and 
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss. The derivative 
financial instruments employed for this purpose serve solely 

to hedge existing risk positions, not for speculation. Risk po-
sitions are assessed regularly, and existing risks are quanti-
fied using sensitivity analyses. Currency risks are based on 
an assumed appreciation of 10 percent in the value of the 
U.S. dollar. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s interest rate risk is 
calculated by increasing the relevant interest rates by one 
percentage point. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group does not believe 
it is exposed to any material concentrations of risk.

Currency risks
The ProSiebenSat.1 Group signs a substantial number of its 
license agreements with production studios in the United 
States. As a rule, the Group generally meets its financial obli-
gations deriving from these programming rights purchases in 
U.S. dollars. Consequently fluctuations in the exchange rate 
between the euro and the dollar may adversely affect the 
ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s financial position and profit or loss. 
Additionally, the Group also has dollar-denominated financial 
liabilities that result from the acquisition of sports rights.

To hedge against fluctuations in exchange rates, the ProSie-
benSat.1 Group enters into forward exchange contracts (“for-
wards”) and currency options.
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Year of maturity Nominal 

amount

Market value

2008

USD k

2009-2012 

 

USD k

2013 and after  

 

USD k

as of 

12/31/2007

USD k

as of 

12/31/2007

EUR k

Currency forwards 217,477 534,297 - / - 751,774 -39,626

[thereof within cash flow hedges] 145,025 494,817 - / - 639,842 -30,793

Currency options 60,250 4,500 - / - 64,750 -2,698

[thereof within cash flow hedges] 55,250 2,500 - / - 57,750 -2,703

Forwards are unconditional contractual agreements to ex-
change two currencies. The total par value, exchange rate 
and maturity date are specified when the contract is entered 
into. As of December 31, 2007, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group had 
forwards worth a par value of USD 752 million in its portfo-
lio. As of the same date, it had options for the purchase of 
dollars covering a total nominal value of USD 65 million. As 
the purchaser of a currency option, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG 
has the right, but not the obligation, to buy U.S. dollars for 
euros in return for paying an option premium. As with a for-
ward, in a currency option the total par value, exchange rate 
and maturity date are also laid down at the time the contract 
is made. Market values for forwards are measured using the 
discounted cash flow method. Market values for currency op-
tions are measured using the option pricing formula of Black 
and Scholes. 

Most license payments on a hedged dollar-denominated 
license agreement, together with the associated hedging in-
struments, are gathered and managed in what are known 
as “hedge books” if the hedging relationship qualifies as a 
hedge under IAS 39.88 and hedge accounting can be applied. 
As of December 31, 2007, there were 14 hedge books cove-
ring a total of USD 973 million in pending license payments. 
Equity as of December 31, 2007, included EUR 32.4 million 
for hedge accounting. In fiscal 2007, EUR 9.5 million was re-
moved from equity and applied directly to the purchase cost 
of the underlying license agreement. The average hedge ra-
tio varies from one hedge book to another. As a rule the to-
tal hedge ratio is between 60 and 80 percent. A separate 
hedging strategy is developed for each portfolio on the basis 
of current market assessments and the overall risk position. 
The hedge books are constantly monitored under a system 
of limits, and any applicable open positions are closed to stop 
potential losses or take advantage of a favorable change in 
exchange rates.

No hedge accounting was applied for a certain portion of the 
foreign currency exposure in U.S. dollars. In these cases, lia-
bilities for pending license payments came to USD 432 milli-
on at December 31, 2007.

The average hedge ratio at December 31, 2007, allowing for 
internal limit systems, was 58 percent.

Risk positions in U.S. dollars are assessed regularly, and exi-
sting risks are quantified using sensitivity analyses. The fol-
lowing table shows the impact of a ten percent appreciation 
in the value of the U.S. dollar on the equivalent value in euros 
for future payments in dollars.

USD k as of 

12/31/2007
as of 

12/31/2006

Gross foreign currency exposure in U.S. dollars -1,405,917 -1,043,497

Currency hedges 817,025 741,302

Net exposure -588,892 -302,195

Hedge ratio 58% 71%

in Eur k

Change in future payments resulting from a 

10% rise in the U.S. dollar -43,960 -22,921

As of its acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group, the Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Group now owns some companies located outside 
the zone where the euro is the currency. Since the Group’s 
functional currency is the euro, the financial statements of 
these companies are converted to euros for purposes of the 
consolidated financial statements. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group 
fundamentally views its holdings in these companies as a 
long-term investment, and therefore does not hedge the as-
sociated foreign currency translation risk.

Interest rate risks
Through its financial obligations, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group is 
exposed to an interest rate risk. The acquisition of the SBS 
Broadcasting Group was financed entirely through a new loan 
agreement. The loan agreement covers a number of term lo-
ans totaling EUR 1.8 billion with a term of seven years (Term 
Loan B), and loans for a total of another EUR 1.8 billion with 
a term of eight years (Term Loan C). Through these variable-
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EUR k Type of 

interest 

 

as of 

12/31/2007

as of 

12/31/2006

Deposits with banks variable 250,826 63,540

Liabilities to banks

variable -3,543,742 - / -

Bonds fixed - / - -150,000

Construction financing fixed -35,042 -36,638

Gross exposure variable -3,292,916 63,540

fixed -35,042 -186,638

Interest rate hedges 3,000,000 - / -

Net exposure variable -292,916 63,540

Hedge ratio 91% 0%

Annual potential loss from an increase of 100 basis points (1 percentage point) 

in short-term interest rates*]

The mortgage loan taken out by Sat.1 is composed of several 
tranches, for each of which the interest-rate lock-up period 
ends on a different date. The next ending date, for a total of 
EUR 3.1 million, is October 31, 2009.

Insolvency risks
In any transaction, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group incurs a risk 
that the opposite party may become insolvent. To minimize 
that risk, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has endeavored to enter 
into financial transactions and derivative transactions only 
with parties with good to first-class credit ratings. The mar-
ket value of all derivative financial instruments having a po-
sitive market value was EUR 1.0 million as of December 31, 
2007. The largest share of these derivatives with a positive 
market value, 79 percent, was entered into with a single 
partner, which has a credit rating of Aa2 from the Moody’s 
rating agency.

Liquidity risks
As part of its liquidity management, the ProSiebenSat.1 
Group ensures that adequate cash and cash equivalents are 
available at all times, in spite of the industry’s sharp seaso-
nal fluctuations in revenues. One of the integral parts of the 
loan agreement to finance the acquisition of the SBS Broad-
casting Group was a revolving credit facility with a term of 
seven years and a total credit line of EUR 600 million. As of 
December 31, 2007, no use had been made of this syndica-
ted credit facility.

interest financial obligations, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group is ex-
posed to an increased interest rate risk. For that reason, the 
ProSiebenSat.1 Group has hedged more than 80 percent of 
this liability with interest-rate swaps. In interest rate swaps, 
variable-rate interest payments are exchanged for fixed-rate 
interest payments. Uncertain, variable-rate interest pay-
ments on the borrowings described above are compensated 
and replaced with fixed-rate interest payments. Market va-
lues for interest rate swaps are measured using the discoun-
ted cash flow method. The interest rate swaps total EUR 3 bil-
lion, with an average fixed rate of 4.522 percent. The swaps 
have terms of five years for a portion of EUR 1.2 billion, and 
seven years for a portion of EUR 1.8 billion. The interest rate 
swaps qualify as cash flow hedges that are covered by hedge 
accounting under IAS 39.88. As of December 31, 2007, the 
swaps had a negative market value of EUR 9.0 million. Of this 
amount, EUR 2.6 million is recognized as an interest expense 
because of the ineffectiveness of the hedges. The remainder 
of EUR 6.4 million is recognized in equity.

The remaining variable interest rate risk results not only 
from the unhedged portion of the term loan, but also from 
any draws the Group may take on its revolving credit facility. 
As of December 31, 2007, no funds had been drawn on this 
syndicated credit facility. An interest rate risk in the sense of 
a change in market value is of no relevance here, since Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Media Group’s financial liabilities are reported at 
cost, and thus any change in market value will have no effect 
on the balance sheet.

The interest rate risk position is assessed regularly, and exi-
sting risks are quantified using sensitivity analyses. The fol-
lowing table shows the effects of a one percentage-point in-
crease in the relevant interest rates.

*] Because of the short position in 2007, the 2007 scenario assumes an increase of 

100 basis points in interest rates, and because of the long position in 2006, the 2006 

scenario assumes a decrease of the same amount.
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Information on the carrying amount and market value of fi-
nancial instruments

The following table shows the carrying amounts of all cate-
gories of financial assets and liabilities of the ProSiebenSat.1 
Group:

EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 250,847 63,540

Loans and receivables 414,369 201,581

Financial assets designated at fair value 5,649 2,729

Financial assets held for trading 64 - / -

Financial assets available for sale 69,703 10,871

Hedge derivatives - / - 1,430

740,632 280,151

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 4,262,230 369,165

Financial liabilities held for trading 8,892 - / -

Bonds - / - 148,917

Hedge derivatives 42,497 15,709

4,313,619 533,791

The gross default risk was EUR 570.3 million for the entire 
ProSiebenSat.1 Group. Known default risks have been duly 
taken into account with write-offs.

The following list shows the market values and carrying 
amounts of the financial assets and liabilities measured at 
cost or amortized cost.

EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

Market value Carrying amount Market value Carrying amount

Financial assets measured at cost or at amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents 250,847 250,847 63,540 63,540

Financial assets available for sale *] - / - 69,703 - / - 10,871

Trade accounts receivable and other receivables 414,369 414,369 201,581 201,581

Financial liabilities measured at cost or at amortized cost

Trade accounts payable 372,747 372,747 179,130 179,130

Bonds - / - - / - 156,240 148,917

Liabilities to banks and other financing debt 3,745,503 3,745,503 70,396 70,396

Liabilities from finance leases 114,600 114,600 118,355 118,355

Other financial liabilities 29,380 29,380 1,284 1,284

*] This item includes available financial assets whose fair value the ProSiebenSat.1 Group cannot reliably determine, and which it therefore measures at acquisi-

tion cost.
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The market value of cash and cash equivalents, of trade ac-
counts receivable and payable, of short-term financial recei-
vables and liabilities, and of revolving credit facilities and 
other financing debt is approximately equivalent to their car-
rying amount. A particular reason for this is the short terms 
of these instruments.

The market value of listed bonds is based on price quotes 
as of the reporting date. The market value of liabilities to 
banks and other long-term financing debt, liabilities from fi-
nance leases, and other financial liabilities is determined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows at the interest 
rates applicable for similar financial debt with comparable 
terms to maturity.

The net gains and losses on financial instruments are shown 
below.

EUR k 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

Financial assets available for sale

1,111 19

Financial assets designated at fair value

68 154

Loans and receivables 4,105 926

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

1,932 839

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

-15,043 -6,286

[38] Segment reporting

Explanatory notes regarding segment reporting
In accordance with IFRS 8 (“Operating Segments”), certain 
figures in financial statements must be presented separately 
by business segments and geographical segments. The basis 
of segmentation is to be the company’s own internal repor-
ting, which permits a reliable assessment of the group’s risks 
and earnings. Segmentation is intended to provide trans-
parency as to the profitability and prospects for success of 
the group’s individual activities. Consistently with its inter-
nal management practices, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group adopts 
business segments as the basis for its primary segment re-
porting.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group subdivides its operations into two 
business units, Free TV and Diversification. The Free TV unit 
in turn is subdivided into two segments, Free TV in German-
Speaking Europe and Free TV International.

The Free TV in German-Speaking Europe segment essential-
ly comprises the Group’s four channels Sat.1, ProSieben, ka-
bel eins and N24, as well as the Sat.1 regional companies, the 
marketing company SevenOne Media, and the Group’s sub-

sidiaries in Austria and Switzerland. The Free TV Internati-
onal segment includes advertising-financed TV channels in 
the Netherlands, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, Norway, Swe-
den, Romania, Bulgaria and Hungary. The Diversification seg-
ment pools all subsidiaries that do not generate their income 
directly from classic TV advertising revenues; their activities 
include pay TV, call TV, multimedia, merchandising and radio 
operations, as well as related print products.

ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion is one of the companies included 
in the Free TV in German-Speaking Europe segment. Becau-
se of its planned sale, ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion is no longer 
included in the segment report, and the segment report for 
2006 has been revised accordingly.

Segment information
Segment information normally applies the same accounting 
policies as the consolidated financial statements. 

Internal revenues reflect revenue relationships between 
Group companies, and in-Group revenues are offset at the 
prevailing market prices.

Segment assets comprise all assets used for operating activi-
ties. These include both intangible assets and property, plant 
and equipment, as well as current assets less income tax re-
ceivables, deferred tax credits, current securities, and cash 
and cash equivalents.

Segment investments relate to intangible assets including 
purchased goodwill, and to property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation and amortization apply to the segment assets 
allocated to each segment, except for amortization of finan-
cial investments and current securities.

Noncash expenses largely comprise consumption of pro-
gramming assets, allocations to provisions, expenses for the 
valuation of option premiums, and write-downs of receiva-
bles.

Inter-segment receivables, provisions, income and expenses, 
and profits are eliminated in the reconciliations.
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EUR k Free-TV Segment 

Diversifikation

Transitions Total 

consolidated financial 

statement 2007Segment Free TV 

German-speaking

Segment Free TV 

International

Total

Free-TV*

Revenues 1,963,489 406,067 2,369,556 405,631 -72,654 2,702,533

    External revenues 1,899,845 403,895 2,303,740 398,793 - / - 2,702,533

    Internal revenues 63,644 2,172 65,816 6,838 -72,654 - / -

EBITDA Recuring 484,400 112,023 596,423 65,628 -118 661,933

Segment assets 1,892,807 2,447,755 4,340,562 1,438,574 -191,145 5,587,991

Segment investments 22,099 11,423 33,522 7,923 - / - 41,445

Depreciation and amortization 30,675 70,333 101,008 36,106 -106 137,008

Noncash expenses 986,954 170,391 1,157,345 54,265 -1,391 1,210,219

Income from associated com-

panies 1,691 1,160 2,851 -937 - / - 1,914

Interests in associated com-

panies 250 939 1,189 3,394 - / - 4,583

Geographical breakdown

German Speaking B/NL Nordic CEE Transitions Total 

consolidated financial 

statement 2007

Revenues 2,225,285 217,906 251,346 78,818 -70,822 2,702,533

    External revenues 2,155,508 217,906 250,181 78,938 - / - 2,702,533

    Internal revenues 69,777 - / - 1,165 -120 -70,822 - / -

Segment assets 2,384,406 1,739,325 1,244,153 702,407 -482,300 5,587,991

EUR k Free-TV Segment 

Diversifikation

Transitions Total 

consolidated financial 

statement 2007Segment Free TV 

German-speaking

Segment Free TV 

International

Total

Free-TV*

Revenues 1,922,730 - / - 1,922,730 243,065 -70,661 2,095,134

    External revenues 1,857,054 - / - 1,857,054 238,080 - / - 2,095,134

    Internal revenues 65,676 - / - 65,676 4,985 -70,661 - / -

EBITDA Recuring 430,349 - / - 430,349 55,592 -344 485,597

Segment assets 1,467,642 - / - 1,467,642 369,406 -5,925 1,831,123

Segment investments 27,470 - / - 27,470 1,402 - / - 28,872

Depreciation and amortization 27,785 - / - 27,785 12,444 -186 40,043

Noncash expenses 968,738 - / - 968,738 7,967 -756 975,949

Income from associated com-

panies 3,914 - / - 3,914 - / - - / - 3,914

Interests in associated com-

panies 3,324 - / - 3,324 6,000 - / - 9,324

* consolidated

Loans and receivablesFinancial liabilities at amortized cost
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With the acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group, the Cor-
poration has also begun reporting for the first time by geo-
graphical segment in its secondary segment reporting. Here 
distinctions are made among the German-speaking region 
(Germany, Austria, Switzerland), “NL/B” (the Netherlands 
and Belgium), Nordic (Denmark, Finland, Norway, Sweden), 
and CEE (Bulgaria, Greece, Romania, Hungary). No compa-
rison figures are shown from the prior year, since revenues 
for the 2006 comparison period were generated solely in the 
German-speaking region.

[39] Stock Option Plan

After receiving the consent of the shareholders’ meeting of 
May 13, 2005, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG introduced a Long-
Term Incentive Plan. The stock options are intended exclu-
sively for purchase by members of the Executive Board of 
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, members of upper management of 
dependent Group companies, and other selected executives 
of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and its dependent Group com-
panies. The individual beneficiaries and the number of stock 
options to be granted to them are decided by the Executi-
ve Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG or – where Executive 
Board members themselves are concerned – by the Super-
visory Board.
The stock option plan involves issuing a total of not more 
than 7.5 million options carrying the right to subscribe for 
stock of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG. The options will be issued 
in several annual segments. No further stock options were is-
sued in fiscal 2007 (vs. 1,127,500 options the year before). A 
total of 1,127,500 stock options were outstanding at the end 
of the year. Of these, a total of 665,000 were held by active 
members of the Executive Board. No decision has been made 
yet about whether to issue stock options in fiscal 2008. The 
issue of stock options in fiscal 2005 and 2006 took place af-
ter the annual shareholders’ meetings on May 13, 2005, and 
August 2, 2006, respectively.

The options are subject to a vesting period of two years for 
the first third of the options issued in any given segment, and 
three years for the remaining two-thirds. This vesting period 
is to commence on January 1 of the year in which the per-
tinent stock options are issued. Furthermore, the statutory 
lock-up period of two years from the issue date of the options 
must have expired at the time of exercise. The options may 
furthermore be exercised only during the 20 days of trading 
on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange subsequent to the publica-
tion of interim reports or the annual financial statements of 
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG. 
Each stock option carries the right to purchase one prefer-
red share of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG stock in return for pay-
ment of a “strike price.” The strike price is the weighted ave-
rage closing auction price of ProSiebenSat.1 preferred stock 
in trading on the XETRA system over the last 30 days of tra-
ding on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange prior to January 1 of 

the year in which the stock option is issued. In the event that 
the weighted average closing auction price of ProSiebenSat.1 
preferred stock in trading on the XETRA system over the last 
30 days of trading on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange prior to 
the exercise date exceeds the strike price by more than 200 
percent, the strike price is to be increased by the amount in 
excess of 200 percent (“maximum exercise gain”).

As its incentive target, the Long-Term Incentive Plan speci-
fies that the stock’s trading price at the time of exercise of 
the stock options must exceed the strike price by at least 30 
percent (“absolute threshold”). The deciding figure for this 
purpose is the weighted average closing auction price of Pro-
SiebenSat.1 preferred stock in trading on the XETRA system 
over the last 30 days of trading on the Frankfurt Stock Ex-
change prior to the exercise date of the option.

The Long-Term Incentive Plan provides for immediate ve-
sting of all stock options previously issued in the event of a 
change of control at ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG. The acquisiti-
on of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group by funds advised in part by 
KKR and in part by Permira resulted in such a change of con-
trol within the meaning of the stock option plan, and there-
fore in the accelerated vesting of the stock options issued in 
2005 and 2006. The options issued in 2005, which could not 
have been exercised until the statutory two-year lock-up ex-
pired in May 2007, were called in by the Company by paying 
out the cash value of the option. The active members of the 
Executive Board received EUR 8,999 thousand from the buy-
back of these stock options. 

The following table provides all necessary information about 
the ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG stock option plan:
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*] not yet exercisable

EUR k SOP 2006

Granted stock options 374,667

Strike price 15,03

Absolute threshold 19,54

Maximim exercise gain 30,06

End of vesting period 8/3/2008

Outstanding stock options at the beginning of the year 1,127,500

Options exercised during the year n.y.e.*

Options expired / forfeited 0

    thereof expired during vesting period 0

    thereof expired because of performance  

    targets not met

still in vesting 

period

    thereof expired after end of vesting period still in vesting 

period

Outstanding stock options at the end of the year 1,127,500

Exercisable stock options at the end of the year n.y.e.*

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG uses the trinomial model to calcu-
late the actuarial values of stock options. This is a further 
development of the binomial model of Cox, Ross and Ruben-
stein (1979). The expected volatility is calculated from histo-
rical volatilities over as much as 400 days. The expected vo-
latility of 26 percent is generally consistent with the capital 
markets’ own estimates at the time of the issue of the 2006 
Long Term Incentive Plan. Those estimates are based on the 
implicit volatilities of traded warrants for ProSiebenSat.1 
stock. Other factors taken into account in calculating the va-
lue of options are the value of the underlying instruments, 
the strike price, the exercise threshold, the maximum exer-
cise gain, suboptimal premature exercise, the dividend yield, 
the basis interest rate, the exercise windows, the contractu-
al time periods, the graduated vesting periods, and turnover 
among beneficiaries.

The expense for fiscal 2007 came to EUR 5,412 thousand 
(vs. EUR 4,572 thousand), and is included under personnel 
expenses.

[40] Executive Board and Supervisory Board

The members of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board 
of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG are listed on pages 43 through 
45 of this report. Details of the system of compensation for 
members of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board 
of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG are explained in the section on 
“Legal Environment” in the Management Report.

Compensation paid to active members of the Executi-
ve Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG came to EUR 5,983 

thousand in 2007 (vs. EUR 5,808 thousand in 2006). The 
Board’s compensation included a variable component tota-
ling EUR 2,765 thousand (vs. EUR 2,300 thousand). In past 
fiscal years, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG set aside pension pro-
visions totaling EUR 4,344 thousand for pension commit-
ments to members of the Executive Board. Funds have been 
endowed to safeguard these pension provisions. Members of 
the Executive Board received EUR 8,999 thousand for buy-
backs of stock options. 

The Company has not granted loans to members of the Exe-
cutive Board, nor has it undertaken suretyships or guaran-
tees on their behalf.

A resolution by the shareholders’ meeting of August 2, 2006, 
released the Company from the statutory obligation to dis-
close the individual compensation of Executive Board mem-
bers in the consolidated financial statements for a period 
of five years. However, this resolution of the shareholders’ 
meeting poses no obstacle to the voluntary disclosure of in-
dividual Board members’ compensation otherwise. The Exe-
cutive Board and Supervisory Board have decided to exerci-
se this option of voluntary disclosure in the compensation re-
port for 2007, which is included in the Corporate Governance 
Report of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board. That 
report therefore states figures for the compensation paid to 
individual members of the Company’s Executive Board for 
the past fiscal year.

Expenses for the Supervisory Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media 
AG came to EUR 1,666 thousand in the year under review. 
This figure includes write-backs of provisions for the varia-
ble component of compensation. The shareholders’ meeting 
on July 17, 2007, amended the compensation of the mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board as set forth in the Company’s 
articles of incorporation. Under the former rules, members 
of the Supervisory Board were paid both a fixed annual com-
ponent and a variable component tied to the amount of the 
Company’s dividend. The new rules, which are retroactive to 
January 1, 2007, replaced the variable component with a hig-
her fixed component. The compensation paid individually to 
current and former members of the Supervisory Board is as 
follows:
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EUR k Fixed components

Bell-Jones, Robin 94

Döpfner, Dr. Mathias 106

Dyke, Greg 126

Freise, Philipp 94

Hollick, Lord Clive 179

Huth, Johannes 82

Krenz, Thomas 83

Mäuser, Götz 192

Neubürger, Heinz-Joachim 48

Nienhaus, Christian 108

Sloan, Harry 94

Swartjes, Adrianus Johannes 45

van Lent, Marinus Maria Petrus 45

Wehr-Seiter, Katrin 46

Wiedmann, Prof. Dr. Harald 107

     

EUR k Fixed components

Chesnoff, Adam 39

Connaughton, John P. 20

Dobron jr., Albert J. 18

Gasse, Ulrich 38

Gorenflos, Reinhard 37

Healy, Patrick J. 18

Kreiz, Ynon 18

Lawry, Seth 20

Neuss, Christian 39

Pagliuca, Stephen G. 18

Powers, Brian M. 18

Saban, Arieh 18

Saban, Haim 36

Scheiber, Silke 37

Sperling, Scott 18

Steiner, Josh 18

Members of the Supervisory Board received no remunera-
tion or other consideration for personal services, especially 
consulting and mediation services, during fiscal 2007. Alto-
gether, the current members of the Executive Board and Su-
pervisory Board held 15,500 shares of preferred stock in Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Media AG as of December 31, 2007. This is equi-
valent to 0.0071 percent of the Company’s share capital.

[41] Corporate Governance

On the basis of the recommendations of the Government 
Commission on the German Corporate Governance Code and 

the applicable terms of law under Sec. 161 of the Stock Cor-
poration Act, in March 2007 the Executive Board and Super-
visory Board issued a Declaration of Compliance, which has 
been made permanently available on the Internet at www.
prosiebensat1.com.

[42] Related-party transactions

Apart from the subsidiaries included in the consolidated fi-
nancial statements, in the course of its normal business ope-
rations ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG conducts transactions di-
rectly or indirectly with affiliated unconsolidated companies 
and associated companies. In ordinary business activities, 
all transactions with companies not included in the scope of 
consolidation were conducted on prevailing market terms 
and conditions, such as are also customary with third parties 
unrelated to the Group. All related parties under IAS 24 (“Re-
lated Party Disclosures”) that are controlled by ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG, or over which the Group may exercise a signi-
ficant influence, are listed among the shareholdings on pages 
107 through 111, along with the percentage interest held. 

By a purchase agreement dated June 27, 2007, the ProSie-
benSat.1 Group acquired 100 percent of the SBS Broadca-
sting Group from funds advised in part by KKR and in part by 
Permira, and from the Telegraaf Group. 

During the period under review, Buchagentur Intermedien-
GmbH, a formerly consolidated, indirectly wholly-owned sub-
sidiary of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, was sold to Lavena Hol-
ding 1 GmbH for approximately EUR 1 million. The proceeds 
from the sale of Buchagentur Intermedien-GmbH are consi-
stent with the current market value of the company. Lavena 
Holding 1 GmbH is indirectly the majority shareholder of Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Media AG, by way of several holding companies.

Effective September 1, 2007, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG si-
gned a services management agreement for business ser-
vices with Lavena Holding 1 GmbH, Lavena Holding 2 GmbH, 
Lavena Holding 3 GmbH, Lavena Holding 4 GmbH and La-
vena Holding 5 GmbH jointly. The agreed compensation is 
consistent with the prevailing market terms for comparable 
services. Lavena Holding 1 GmbH through Lavena Holding 4 
GmbH are indirect majority shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1 
Media AG, and Lavena Holding 5 GmbH is the direct majority 
shareholder of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG.

During fiscal 2007, the wife of Executive Board member Pe-
ter Christmann provided services to various companies in 
the ProSiebenSat.1 Group for a charge of EUR 155 thousand. 
These were training and coaching services for on-air perso-
nalities. As of December 31, 2007, there was no amount out-
standing for these services. 
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Harry Evans Sloan is a member of the Supervisory Board of 
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, and the Chairman of the Board of 
Directors and CEO of Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer Holdings, Inc. 
(MGM). A number of license agreements were signed bet-
ween MGM Holdings Inc. and ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG duri-
ng the period, in the normal course of business. The agree-
ments are consistent with prevailing market terms.

Götz Mäuser is a member of the Supervisory Board of Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Media AG, and among other positions is also a 
co-owner of ADT Telefonservice GmbH & Co. KG. A service 
agreement exists in the normal course of business between 
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and ADT Telefonservice GmbH & 
Co. KG. The contract is consistent with prevailing market 
terms.
There were no other reportable transactions with related 
parties under IAS 24 in fiscal 2007.

Employer contributions to the public pension insurance sy-
stem for members of the Executive Board of ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG, top management of other Group companies, 
and other members of upper management, totaled EUR 96 
thousand for fiscal 2007.

Under Sec. 15a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) 
and Sec. 6.6 of the German Corporate Governance Code, the 
members of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board of 
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG are required to report securities 
transactions relating to ProSiebenSat.1 stock. They are fur-
thermore required to report securities transactions by fami-
ly members. In fiscal 2007, a total of four transactions were 
reported to ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, in which members of 
the Executive Board or Supervisory Board and their family 
members acquired a total of 7,500 shares of ProSiebenSat.1 
Media AG and sold a total of EUR 2,450 shares of ProSie-
benSat.1 Media AG. In compliance with Sec. 15a of the Secu-
rities Trading Act, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG reported each 
of these transactions immediately on its Web site, www.pro-
siebensat1.com. 
 
[43] Group affiliation

The immediate parent company of the Group of ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG is Lavena Holding 5 GmbH. The ultimate pa-
rent company of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group is Lavena S.à r.l., 
of Luxembourg.

Sections 21 ff. of the German Securities Trading Act require 
listed companies to provide the public with detailed infor-
mation about the makeup of their shareholder structure. 
These disclosure requirements are intended to encourage 
transparency in securities trading. In accordance with the 
German Act Implementing the EU Transparency Directive, a 
notice of voting rights was issued on July 10, 2007, with the 
following content:

Disclosure in Compliance with Sec. 26 (1) Sentence 1 of the 
German Securities Trading Act, for Distribution throughout 
Europe

Notice of Voting Rights

Stichting Administratiekantoor van Aandelen Telegraaf Me-
dia Groep N.V., of Amsterdam/Netherlands (address: Post-
bus 376, 1000 EB Amsterdam, Netherlands), has notified Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Media AG (address: Medienallee 7, 85774 Unter-
föhring, Germany) as follows in accordance with Section 25 
(1) of the German Securities Trading Act:

“Since July 3, 2007, Stichting Administratiekantoor van Aan-
delen Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. has indirectly held finan-
cial instruments that give it the right to acquire already issu-
ed stock of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG representing 12.00 per-
cent of the voting rights in the Company. This percentage is 
equivalent to 13,127,832 votes. The financial instruments in-
directly held by Stichting Administratiekantoor van Aandelen 
Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. are held through the following 
company controlled by Stichting Administratiekantoor van 
Aandelen Telegraaf Media Groep N.V.: Telegraaf Media Gro-
ep N.V., Basisweg 30, NL-1043 AP Amsterdam. Therefore as 
of that date, the share of voting rights that would be held by 
Stichting Administratiekantoor van Aandelen Telegraaf Me-
dia Groep N.V. in ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, if instead of the 
financial instruments Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. held the 
stock that it could acquire under those financial instruments, 
exceeded the thresholds of 5 percent and 10 percent. The ex-
ercise period for the financial instruments runs from June 1, 
2008 (inclusive), through June 15, 2008 (inclusive).”

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG
The Executive Board

Further reports of equity holdings were published by ProSie-
benSat.1 Media AG in compliance with Section 26 (1) of the 
German Securities Trading Act on March 14, May 29, July 3, 
and July 6, 2007.

[44] Professional fees of the independent auditor

The professional fees for the services of the Group’s inde-
pendent auditor, KPMG, totaled EUR 2,639 thousand for fis-
cal 2007. The figure for 2006 was EUR 1,147 thousand. Of 
the total, EUR 1,070 thousand was for audit fees (vs. EUR 
883 thousand in 2004), EUR 373 thousand was for audit-re-
lated fees (vs. EUR 216 thousand), EUR 51 thousand was for 
tax consulting services (vs. EUR 24 thousand), and EUR 1,145 
thousand was for other fees (vs. EUR 24 thousand). 
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[45] Events subsequent to the reporting date

Release date for publication
The Supervisory Board will release the consolidated financial 
statements for publication on March 25, 2008.

March 7, 2008
The Executive Board
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ProSiebenSat.1 Group as of December 31, 2007

No. Company Location Country Interest in 

percent

via No.

Affiliated company

1 ProSiebenSat.1 Media Aktiengesellschaft Unterföhring Germany

2 9Live Fernsehen GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

3 9Live International GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 2

4 Agency Atlantic EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 170

5 Agency Vitosha EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 170

6 Aktuelt Nyheter AS Oslo Norway 100 162

7 Amerom Television Ltd.  (in Liquidation) New York USA 100 111

8 ArtMerchandising & Media AG Unterföhring Germany 100 58

9 AT Fun B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 124

10 Balkans Media Investments EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 5

11 Broadcast Norge AS Oslo Norway 100 108

12 Broadcast Text Amsterdam B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 17

13 Broadcast Text AS Oslo Norway 100 17

14 Broadcast Text Budapest Szinkron és Feliratkészító Kft. Budapest Hungary 100 17,123

15 Broadcast Text Danmark A/S Copenhagen Denmark 100 17

16 Broadcast Text Helsinki Oy Helsinki Finland 100 17

17 Broadcast Text International AB Stockholm Sweden 100 117

18 Broadcast Text London Limited Hounslow Great Britain 100 17

19 Broadcast Text N.V. Aalst (Erem-

bodegem) Belgium 100 17,20

20 Broadcast Text Svenska AB Stockholm Sweden 95 17

21 Carthage I B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 124

22 CBO Media B.V.  Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 124

23 C More Entertainment AB Stockholm Sweden 100 25

24 C More Entertainment Finland Oy Espoo Finland 100 23

25 C More Group AB Stockholm Sweden 100 45

26 C More Television AG (in Liquidation) Zurich Switzerland 99.67 23,24

27 Cutting Edge Production AS Oslo Norway 100 129

28 E-fm Sverige AB Stockholm Sweden 100 30

29 EBS International N.V. Zaventem Belgium 100 111,171

30 Euradio i Sverige AB Stockholm Sweden 100 131

31 European Broadcasting System S.à r.l. Luxembourg Luxembourg 100 111

32 European Radio Investments Limited London Great Britain 100 115

33 Evroark EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 170

34 Face your Brand! GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 80

35 Fria Media I Blekinge AB Karlskrona Sweden 100 127

36 Fria Radiobolaget i Borås AB Borås Sweden 100 127

37 German Free TV Holding GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

38 I.M. Radio Contract S.R.L. Chisinau Moldova 85 142

39 INTERAKTÍV-FICTION Müsorkészítö és Filmgyártó Kft. Budapest Hungary 100 40

40 INTERAKTÍV Televíziós Müsorkészítö Kft. Budapest Hungary 100 111

41 Irisz Broadcasting B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 124

42 Kabel 1 K1 Fernsehen GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 37
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ProSiebenSat.1 Group as of December 31, 2007

No. Company Location Country Interest in 

percent

via No.

43 Kanal 2 Prime Time A/S Skovlunde Denmark 100 110

44 Kanal 5 AB Stockholm Sweden 100 45

45 Kanal 5 Holding AB Stockholm Sweden 100 112

46 Kanal 5 Limited London Great Britain 100 116

47 Kanal 60 A/S Skovlunde Denmark 100 110

48 Kommunikationsanpartsselskabet af 2/4 1990 Årthus C Denmark 100 91

49 Lampsi Radio Company S.A. Athen Greece 100 115

50 MAGIC Internet Holding GmbH Cologne Germany 100 145

51 MAGIC Internet GmbH Cologne Germany 100 50

52 Meteos TV Holding GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 176

53 Miracle Sound Oy Helsinki Finland 51 69

54 Miracle Sound Oulu Oy Helsinki Finland 100 53

55 Miracel Sound Tampere Oy Helsinki Finland 51 69,53

56 Mix Megapol.se AB Stockholm Sweden 100 127

57 MM MerchandisingMedia GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 8

58 MM MerchandisingMedia Holding GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

59 MTM Produkció Müsorgyártó és Filmforgalmazó Kft. Budapest Hungary 100 111,123

60 MTM-SBS Televízió Zrt. Budapest Hungary 81.51 111,208

61 MyVideo Broadband S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 100 50

62 N24 Gesellschaft für Nachrichten und Zeitgeschehen mbH Unterföhring Germany 100 37

63 Niknet EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 170

64 Online Media Beteiligungs GmbH Vienna Austria 100 147

65 P7S1 Broadcasting S.à r.l. Luxembourg Luxembourg 100 66,67

66 P7S1 Erste SBS Holding GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

67 P7S1 Zweite SBS Holding GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

68 Producers at work GmbH Potsdam Germany 100 1

69 Pro Radio Oy Helsinki Finland 100 108

70 ProSieben Applications GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

71 ProSieben Austria GmbH Vienna Austria 100 147

72 ProSieben Digital Media GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

73 ProSieben Television GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 37

74 ProSieben (Schweiz) AG Küsnacht Switzerland 100 149

75 ProSiebenSat.1 Erste Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

76 ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

77 ProSiebenSat.1 Siebte Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

78 ProSiebenSat.1 Welt GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

79 PS Event GmbH Cologne Germany 100 80

80 PSH Entertainment GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

81 PULS CITY TV GmbH Vienna Austria 100 64,82,174

82 Puls City TV Holding GmbH Vienna Austria 100 147

83 Radio City AB Stockholm Sweden 100 130

84 Radio Daltid SBS AB Stockholm Sweden 51 127

85 Radio Express EAD Sofia Bulgaria 100 5

86 Radio HIT FM Melodicum AB Växjö Sweden 100 127
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ProSiebenSat.1 Group as of December 31, 2007

No. Company Location Country Interest in 

percent

via No.

87 Radio Match AB Jönköping Sweden 100 127

88 Radio Stella AB Helsingborg Sweden 100 127

89 Radio Veselina EAD Plovdiv Bulgaria 100 111

90 Radio Zita Radiohonikes Epichiriseis Anonimi Etairia Salonika Greece 100 98

91 Radioreklame A/S Årthus C Denmark 95.2 128

92 Reklamradio-FMK AB Kalmar Sweden 100 127

93 RIS Vinyl Skane AB Stockholm Sweden 100 131

94 Ritmo Plovdiv EOOD Plovdiv Bulgaria 100 170

95 Rockklassiker Sverige AB Stockholm Sweden 100 93

96 Romanian Broadcasting Corporation Limited London Great Britain 100 115

97 Salonika Radio Investments Holding S.A. Luxembourg Luxembourg 100 111

98 Salonika Radio Investments S.à r.l. Luxembourg Luxembourg 100 97

99 Sat.1 Bayern GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 163

100 Sat.1 Berlin Regional GmbH & Co. KG Berlin Germany 100 106

101 Sat.1 Berlin Regional Verwaltungs GmbH Berlin Germany 100 106

102 Sat.1 Boulevard TV GmbH Berlin Germany 100 106

103 Sat.1 Grundstücksverwaltungs GmbH & Co. KG Unterföhring Germany 100 106

104 Sat.1 Norddeutschland GmbH Hanover Germany 100 106

105 SAT.1 Privatrundfunk und -programmgesellschaft m.b.H Vienna Austria 100 106

106 Sat.1 Satelliten Fernsehen GmbH Berlin Germany 100 37

107 Sat.1 Schweiz AG Zurich Switzerland 50 106

108 SBS Belgium N.V. Zaventem Belgium 100 29,171

109 SBS Broadcasting B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 124

110 SBS Broadcast Danmark A/S Skovlunde Denmark 100 108

111 SBS Broadcasting Europe B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 114

112 SBS Broadcasting Europe B.V. the Netherlands svensk Filial Stockholm Sweden 100 111

113 SBS Broadcasting Holding I B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 65

114 SBS Broadcasting Holding II B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 113

115 SBS Broadcasting (UK) Limited London Great Britain 100 111

116 SBS Broadcasting Networks Limited London Great Britain 100 115

117 SBS Broadcasting (Sweden) AB Stockholm Sweden 100 111

118 SBS Danish Television Limited London Great Britain 100 116

119 SBS European Pay TV Services SARL Luxembourg Luxembourg 100 111

120 SBS Finance B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 111

121 SBS Finland Oy Helsinki Finland 100 69

122 SBS Interactive AB Stockholm Sweden 100 112

123 SBS Magyarországi Befektetési Kft. Budapest Hungary 98.34 111

124 SBS Nederland B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 111

125 SBS Productions B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 109

126 SBS Publishing & Licensing B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 109

127 SBS Radio AB Stockholm Sweden 100 131

128 SBS Radio A/S Copenhagen Denmark 80 110

129 SBS Radio Norge AS Oslo Norway 100 108

130 SBS Radio Sweden AB Stockholm Sweden 100 131
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ProSiebenSat.1 Group as of December 31, 2007

No. Company Location Country Interest in 

percent

via No.

131 SBS Radio Sweden Holding AB Stockholm Sweden 100 112

132 SBS Records Aps Copenhagen Denmark 100 128

133 SBS Services B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 124

134 SBS Services (UK) Limited London Great Britain 100 115

135 SBS Services (US) Inc. (in Liquidation) Stamford USA 100 111

136 SBS Text VOF Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 109,164

137 SBS TV A/S Skovlunde Denmark 100 110

138 Scandinavian Broadcasting System (Jersey) Ltd. Jersey Channel Islands 100 109

139 S.C. Canet Radio SRL* Bucharest Romania 20 142

140 S.C. Media Group Services International S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 100 124,142

141 S.C. Prime Time Productions S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 100 124,142

142 S.C. SBS Broadcasting Media S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 100 32,96

143 SevenOne Brands GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

144 SevenOne Interactive GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 143

145 SevenOne Intermedia GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 72

146 SevenOne International GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

147 SevenOne Media Austria GmbH Vienna Austria 100 143

148 SevenOne Media GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 143

149 SevenOne Media (Schweiz AG) Küsnacht Switzerland 100 143

150 SevenPictures Film GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

151 Seven Scores Musikverlag GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

152 SevenSenses GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

153 solute GmbH Karlsruhe Germany 74.8 145

154 Starwatch Music GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 58

155 Stichting Administratiekantoor Melida  (in Liquidation) Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 65

156 Svenska Radiopartner Radio City AB Karlstad Sweden 100 127

157 Teledirekt GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 1

158 Tele-For Médiaszolgáltató Kft. Budapest Hungary 80 40

159 Turun Ensitorppa Oy Helsinki Finland 100 69

160 TV5 Finland Oy Helsinki Finland 100 69

161 TVDenmark Ostjylland 2002 Aps Viby J Danmark 100 110

162 Tv Norge AS Oslo Norway 100 11

163 tv-weiß-blau Rundfunkprogrammanbieter GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 106

164 V8 Broadcasting B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 109

165 Veronica Broadcasting VOF Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 21,164

166 Veronica Digitaal B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 109

167 Veronica Litho B.V. Hilversum The Netherlands 100 109

168 Veronica Uitgeverij B.V. Hilversum The Netherlands 100 109

169 Vinyl AB Stockholm Sweden 100 131

170 Vitosha FM EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 111

171 VT4 Limited (in Liquidation) London Great Britain 100 111
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ProSiebenSat.1 Group as of December 31, 2007

No. Company Location Country Interest in 

percent

via No.

172 VT4 Marketing & Sales N.V. Zaventem Belgium 100 29,171

173 VT4 Network N.V. Zaventem Belgium 100 29,171

174 VSV Beteiligungs- und Verwaltungs GmbH Vienna Austria 100 147

175 wer-weiss-was GmbH Hamburg Germany 74.8 145

176 wetter com AG Singen Germany 73 145

177 Wetter Fernsehen - Meteos GmbH Singen Germany 100 52

Affiliated companies, not consolidated

178 Anadolu Televizyon Ve Radyo Ve Ticaret Anonim SirketiYayincilik Istanbul Turkey 98 133

179 easy 107,5 Stockholm AB Stockholm Sweden 100 130

180 maxdome Verwaltungs GmbH Unterföhring Germany 100 152

181 maxdome GmbH & Co. KG Unterföhring Germany 100 152

182 Merchandising Prag spo. s r o. Prague Czech Republic 100 58

183 PM&S Software GmbH Minsk Belarus  60 76

Associated companies - at equity - 

184 Big Brother AB Stockholm Sweden 50 111

185 Big Brother Kommanditbolag Stockholm Sweden 49 44,184

186 Cahanoves Beheer B.V. (in Liquidation) Leiden The Netherlands 29.63 109,196

187 Hellas Radio Service Ltd. Athens Greece 50 111

188 IP Multimedia (Schweiz) AG Küsnacht Switzerland 23 149

189 lokalisten media GmbH Munich Germany 29.8 145

190 LOVESEARCH DP AB Stockholm Sweden 95.09 44

191 Österjöns Reklamradio AB Visby Sweden 40 127

192 Privatfernsehen in Bayern GmbH & Co. KG Munich Germany 49.9 163

193 Privatfernsehen in Bayern Verwaltungs-GmbH Munich Germany 49.9 163

194 Radio Silkeborg af 1997 A/S Silkeborg Danmark 34 91

195 TV 10 B.V. Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 196

196 TV 10 Holdings LLC Wilmington USA 50 109

197 Veronica/Jetix Text VOF Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 164,196

198 VG Media Gesellschaft zur Verwertung der Urheber- und Leistungsschutzrechte von Medienun-

ternehmen mbH

Berlin Germany 50 1

Other equity interests

199 AFK Aus- und Fortbildungs GmbH für elektronische Medien Munich Germany 12 1,2

200 Berliner Pool TV Produktionsgesellschaft mbH Berlin Germany 63 62

201 Deutscher Fernsehpreis GmbH Cologne Germany 25 1

202 ZeniMax Media Inc. Rockville USA 12.6 111
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Albert J. Dobron, Jr. (from January 1, 2007, to March 6, 2007)

Private Equity Investor Providence Equity Partners, Inc., Barrington/RI/USA

Blue Stone Television, LLC., Delaware/USA - Chairman of the Board of Manager 

Representatives 

Bustos Media Enterprises, LLC., Delaware/USA - Member of the Board of Ma-

nagers

Affinity Direct, LLC, Delaware/USA - Member of the Board of Directors

Hulu, Los Angeles/CA/USA – Board Member [as of October 2007]

Trumper Communication III, Phoenix/AZ/USA – Board Member

Univision Communications, Los Angeles/CA/USA – Board Member

Nextag, Los Angeles/CA/USA – Board Member

Dogan Yayin Holding S.A., Istanbul/Turkey - Supervisory Board Member

[from March to December 2007] 

Axel Springer Digital TV GmbH, Berlin/Germany – Supervisory Board Member 

[from January to December 2007] 

B.Z. Ullstein GmbH, Berlin/Germany – Supervisory Board Member [from Janua-

ry to December 2007]

Dr. Mathias Döpfner (full year under review – resigned as of January 

15, 2008)

Chairman of the Executive Board of Axel Springer AG, Berlin/Germany

dpa Deutsche Presse Agentur GmbH, Hamburg/Germany - Supervisory Board 

Member 

Leipziger Verlags- und Druckereigesellschaft mbH & Co. KG, Leipzig/Germany - 

Supervisory Board Member

Time Warner Inc., New York/NY/USA - Member of the Board of Directors 

Brilliant 310 GmbH, Berlin/Germany - Managing Director

Greg Dyke (full year under review)

Consultant, London/GB

DGCC Ltd., London/GB - Chairman of the Board of Directors

Vine Leisure Ltd., London/GB - Chairman of the Board of Directors

Vine Development Ltd., London/GB - Chairman of the Board of Directors

Brentford Football Club, Brentford/GB - Chairman of the Board of Directors

Brentford FC (Lionel Road) Limited, Brentford/GB - Board Member

Philipp Freise (since March 7, 2007) 
Principal, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd.

A.T.U Autoteile Unger GmbH, Weiden in Oberpfalz/Germany - Supervisory Board 

Member 

Der Grüne Punkt – Duales System Deutschland GmbH, Cologne/Germany – 

Supervisory Board Member

Ulrich Gasse (from March 7, 2007, to July 17, 2007)

Investment Professional, Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH

Hugo Boss AG, Metzingen/Germany - Supervisory Board Member 

[from October to December 2007]

Reinhard Gorenflos (from March 7, 2007, to July 17, 2007)

Partner, Kohlberg Kravis Robert & Co. Ltd.

DGMAE Cranes AG, Dusseldorf/Germany - Supervisory Board Member

DGMAE Holding, Luxembourg/Luxembourg - Supervisory Board Member

DSD GmbH, Cologne/Germany – Supervisory Board Member

A.T.U GmbH, Weiden in Oberpfalz/Germany – Supervisory Board Member

L’Tur, Frankfurt/Germany – Supervisory Board Member

Pages Jaunes SA, Paris/France – Supervisory Board Member
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Supervisory Board

Positions held on supervisory boards and comparable super-
vision authorities pursuant to Section 125 (1) paration 3 of 
German Stock Corporation Act.

Members of the Supervisory Board in fiscal 2007

Götz Mäuser [Chairman] (since March 7, 2007)

Partner, Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH

SBS Broadcasting Holding I B.V., Amsterdam/The Netherlands - Non-Executive 

Director, Vice Chairman

SBS Broadcasting S.a r.l., Luxembourg/Luxembourg - Non-Executive Director

Lord Clive Hollick [Vice-Chairman] (since March 7, 2007)

Partner, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd.

Honeywell International Inc., New York/NY/USA - Supervisory Board Member

Diageo plc, London/GB - Supervisory Board Member

South Bank Board Limited, London/GB - Supervisory Board Member

SBS Broadcasting Holding I B.V., Amsterdam/The Netherlands - Non-Executive 

Director, Chairman

SBS Broadcasting S.a r.l., Luxembourg/Luxembourg - Non-Executive Director

Robin Bell-Jones (since March 7, 2007)

Principal, Permira Advisors LLP

All3Media Holdings LTD, London/GB - Supervisory Board Member

Adam Chesnoff (from January 1, 2007, to March 6, 2007, 

Vice-Chairman)

President and Chief Operating Officer of KSF Corp., Los Angeles/CA/USA

KSF Corp. (dba Saban Capital Group Inc.), Los Angeles/CA/USA - Member of the 

Board of Directors

Bezeq-The Israeli Telecommunication Co., Tel Aviv/Israel - Member of the Board 

of Directors 

Saban Music Group, Inc., Los Angeles/CA/USA - Board Member

German Media Partners Inc. & Univision Communications Inc., Los Angeles/CA/

USA - Director

John P. Connaughton (from January 1, 2007, to March 6, 2007)

Managing Director of Bain Capital LLC, Boston/MA/USA

Epoch Senior Living, Inc., Waltham/MA/USA - Member of the Board of Directors

M/C Acquisition Corp., Boston/MA/USA - Member of the Board of Directors 

The Boston Celtics, Boston Basketball Partners LLC, Boston/MA/USA - 

Member of the Board of Directors 

Vivra, Inc., Burlingame/CA/USA - Member of the Board of Directors 

WMG (Warner Music Group) Acquisition Corp., New York/NY/USA - 

Member of the Board of Directors 

Warner Chilcott Holdings Co. Ltd., Rockaway/NJ/USA - Member of the Board of 

Directors 

Marque Holdings, Inc., Kansas City/MO/USA - Member of the Board of Directors 

Sungard Data Systems, Inc., Wayne/PA/USA - Member of the Board of Directors

Hospital Corporation of America, Nashville/TN/USA - Member of the Board of 

Directors

CRC Health Group, Inc., Cupertino/CA/USA - Member of the Board of Directors

Cumulus Media Partners CMP Susquehanna Holdings Corp., Atlanta/GA/USA - 

Member of the Board of Directors
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Heinz-Joachim Neubürger (since July 17, 2007) 
Managing Director and Senior Advisor, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd.

BMW Group, Munich/Germany - Supervisory Board Member

Christian Nienhaus 
(full year under review – resigned as of January 15, 2008)

Chairman of the Management Board of the Newspapergroup BILD, Eschbach/

Germany

Bild.T-Online.de AG & Co. KG, Berlin/Germany - Chairman of the 

Supervisory Board 

PIN Group AG, Cologne/Germany – Supervisory Board Member 

[September to December]

BZ-Ullstein GmbH, Berlin/Germany – Supervisory Board Member

Stephen G. Pagliuca (from January 1, 2007, to March 6, 2007)

Managing Director of Bain Capital Investors, LLC, Weston/MA/USA

Burger King Holding Inc., Delaware/USA - Member of the Board of Directors

Burger King Corporation, Florida/USA - Member of the Board of Directors

Epoch Senior Living Inc., Delaware/USA - Member of the Board of Directors

Gartner, Inc., Stamford/CT/USA - Member of the Board of Directors

Warner Chilcott Holdings Co. Ltd., Rockaway/NJ/USA - Member of the Board of 

Directors

Brian M. Powers (from January 1, 2007, to March 6, 2007)

Chief Executive Officer of Hellman & Fiedman LLC, San Francisco/CA/USA

Axel Springer AG, Berlin/Germany - Supervisory Board Member

Arieh Saban (from January 1, 2007, to March 6, 2007)

Consultant, Herzelia/srael 

Keshet Broadcasting Ltd., Tel Aviv/Israel - Member of the Board of Directors 

Bezeg-The Israel Telecommunication Corp. Ltd., Tel Aviv/Israel - Member of the 

Board of Directors 

Haim Saban (from January 1, 2007, to March 6, 2007, Chairman)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of KSF Corp., (dba Saban Capital Inc.) 

Los Angeles/CA/USA

German Media Partner L.P., Tortola/British Virgin Islands - Member of the Board 

of Directors

Télévision Francaise 1 SA, Paris/France - Member of the Board of Directors

The DirecTV Group Inc., New York/NY/USA - Member of the Board of Directors 

KSF Corp. (dba Saban Capital Group Inc.), Los Angeles/CA/USA - Member of the 

Board of Directors

Saban Music Group, Inc., Boulogne/France - Director, CEO

Saban Investment Holdings Corp., Los Angeles/CA/USA - Director

Direct TV Group, El Segundo/CA/USA - Board Member

Silke Scheiber (from March 7, 2007, to July 17, 2007)

Principal, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd.

A.T.U Autoteile Unger, GmbH Weiden in Oberpfalz/Germany - Supervisory Board 

Member

Tarkett SA, Nanterre/France – Supervisory Board Member

Patrick Healy (from January 1, 2007, to March 6, 2007)

Senior Managing Director of Hellman & Friedman Europa Ltd, London/GB

Mondrian Investment Partners Ltd., London/GB - Member of the Board of Di-

rectors

The NASDAQ Stock Market Inc., Rockland/MA/USA - Member of the Board of 

Directors

DoubleClick Inc., New York/NY/USA - Non-Executive Member

Gartmore Investments plc., London/GB -  Member of the Board of Directors

VNU N.V., Amsterdam/The Netherlands - Member of the Board of Directors

Johannes P. Huth (since March 7, 2007)

Partner und Head of Europe, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd.

Alliance Boots Ltd., London/GB - Director [as of July 2007]

A.T.U Auto Teile Unger Holding GmbH, Weiden in Operpfalz/Germany – Chairman 

of the Supervisory Board 

Rally Lux Holding One S.a r.l., Luxembourg/Luxembourg – Director

Rally Lux Holding Two S.a r.l., Luxembourg/Luxembourg – Director

KION Holding 1 GmbH, Wiesbaden/Germany - Chairman of the Supervisory Board, 

Chairman of the Personnel Committee, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mem-

ber of Mediation Committee according to Section §27.3 of German Code termi-

nation Act

KKR & Co. Limited, London/GB  – Director

KKR & Co. SAS, Paris/France – President

NXP BV, Eindhoven/The Netherlands – Supervisory Board Member

Zumtobel, Dornbirn/Austria – Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board, De-

puty Chairman of Compensation Committee, Deputy Chairman of Audit Com-

mittee

SBS Broadcasting Holding I B.V., Amsterdam/The Netherlands - Non-Executive 

Director

DSD Steel Group GmbH, Saarlouis/Germany - Chairman of the 

Supervisory Board

Selenia SpA, Turin/Italy - Chairman of the Supervisory Board

MTU Aero Engines, Munich/Germany - Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Winxor Nixdorf, Paderborn/Germany - Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Thomas Krenz (since March 7, 2007) 
Partner, Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH

Ynon Kreiz (from January 1, 2007, to March 6, 2007)

Partner of Benchmark Capital, London/GB 

Smartjog, Paris/France - Member of the Board of Directors 

PlayerX, London/GB - Member of the Board of Directors 

Codemasters Group Ltd., Leamington Spa/GB - Member of the Board 

of Directors 

NASN Limited, Dublin/Ireland - Member of the Board of Directors

Drive Diagnostics Ltd., Moshav Mazor/Israel - Member of the Board of Directors 

Setana Sport Holdings Ltd., Dublin/Ireland - Member of the Board of Directors 

Ricall Limited, London/GB - Member of the Board of Directors

Seth W. Lawry (from January 1, 2007, to March 6, 2007)

Managing Director of Thomas H. Lee Partners LP, Boston/MA/USA 

Warren Music Group Corp., New York/NY/USA – Executive Directorship

Christian Neuss (from March 7, 2007, to July 17, 2007)

Principal, Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH

BorsodChem Handelsges m.b.H., Vienna/Austria - Supervisory Board Member 

[April to December] 
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Harry Sloan (since March 7, 2007)  
Chairman of the Board of Directors und Chief Executive Officer, MGM 

Holdings, Inc., Wilmington/DE/USA

MGM Holdings Inc., Wilmington/DE/USA - Board of Directors, Chairman, Executi-

ve Director; Executive Committee, Chairman, Executive Director

ZeniMax Media, Inc., Wilmington/DE/USA - Board of Directors, Non-Executive Di-

rector

Scott Sperling (from January 1, 2007, to March 6, 2007)

Co-President of  Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P., Wayland/MA/USA  

Fisher Scientific International, Inc., Wilmington/DE/USA  - Member of the Board 

of Directors

Houghton Mifflin Corp., Boston/MA/USA - Member of the Board of Directors

Vertis, Inc., Wilmington/DE/USA - Member of the Board of Directors

Warner Music Group, Inc., Wilmington/DE/USA - Member of the Board of Direc-

tors

Joshua Steiner (from January 1, 2007, to March 6, 2007)

Managing Principal of Quadrangle Group LLC., NewYork/NY/USA

Datanet Communications Group, Inc., Newburgh/NY/USA - Member of the Board 

of Directors

Pathfire, Inc., Roswell/GA/USA - Member of the Board of Directors

Grupo Corporativo Ono, SA, Madrid/Spain - Member of the Board of Directors 

Adrianus Johannes Swartjes (since July 17, 2007) 
CEO, Telegraaf Media Groep N.V., Amsterdam/The Netherlands -

Member of the Supervisory Board

SBS Broadcasting S.a r.l., Luxembourg/Luxembourg - Non-Executive Director

Marinus Maria van Lent (since July 17, 2007)  
President International, Telegraaf Media Groep N.V., Amsterdam/The Nether-

lands

Katrin Wehr-Seiter (since July 17, 2007)

Principal, Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH

Hugo Boss AG, Metzingen/Germany - Supervisory Board Member

SBS Broadcasting Holding I B.V., Amsterdam/The Netherlands - Non-Executive 

Director

SBS Broadcasting S.a r.l., Luxembourg/Luxembourg - Non-Executive Director

Prof. Dr. Harald Wiedmann (since March 7, 2007)

Of Counsel, Gleiss Lutz Hootz Hirsch Partnerschaftsgesellschaft von Rechts-

anwälten, Steuerberatern, Berlin/Germany

Berenberg Bank KG, Hamburg/Germany - Member of the Supervisory Board

Converium AG, Zurich/Switzerland - Supervisory Board Member [until August 

2007]

Wincor Nixdorf AG, Paderborn/Germany - Supervisory Board Member

Praktiker Baumärkte AG, Saarbrücken/Germany - Supervisory Board Member

Merz GmbH & Co. KG, Frankfurt/Germany - Supervisory Board Member

Prime Office AG, Munich/Germany - Supervisory Board Member

[since September 2007]

Executive Board

Guillaume de Posch 
CEO, Management Segments: 

Group Content, German TV, Corporate

FilmFernsehFondsBayern GmbH, Munich/Germany - Member of the Advisory 

Board

Lothar Lanz
CFO, Management Segments: Group Controlling, Finance/Investor Relations, 

Legal Affairs, Human Resources, Regulatory Affairs, Administration  

Siltronic AG, Munich/Germany - Member of the Supervisory Board

Peter Christmann 
Sales and Marketing, Management Segments: Sales Germany, Austria, 

Switzerland, International Sales

IP Multimedia [Switzerland] AG, Küsnacht/Switzerland - Member of the 

Advisory Board 

Sat.1 [Schweiz] AG, Zurich/Switzerland - Chairman of the Advisory Board 

Sat.1 Privatrundfunk und -programmgesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna/Austria - 

Member of the Advisory Board  

SevenOne Media [Switzerland] AG, Küsnacht/Switzerland - Chairman of the 

Board of Directors

Dr. Marcus Englert
New Media, Management Segments: New Media and Diversification, 

Transaction TV, Business Development

wetter.com AG, Singen/Germany - Supervisory Board Member

Patrick Tilleux (since July 2007)

COO, Management Segments: Group Operations, International Free TV, 

International Pay TV, Radio, Print

SBS Broadcasting Group, Amsterdam/The Netherlands - acting CEO

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG
the Executive Board

Unterföhring, March 7, 2008
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To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable reporting principles, 
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, fi-
nancial position and profit or loss of the Group, and the management report of the Group 
includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the posi-
tion of the Group, together with a description of the principal opportunities and risks as-
sociated with the expected development of the Group. 

Unterföhring, March 7, 2008

Guillaume de Posch 
CEO

Responsibility Statement of the Executive Board 

Lothar Lanz 
CFO

Patrick Tillieux
COO

Dr. Marcus Englert
New Media

Peter Christmann
Sales & Marketing
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Auditor‘s Report

We have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by ProSiebenSat.1 Me-
dia Aktiengesellschaft, Unterföhring, comprising the balance sheet, the income state-
ment, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and the notes to the consoli-
dated financial statements, together with the group management report for the business 
year from January 1 to December 31, 2007. The preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements and the group management report in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by 
the EU, and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to § 315a 
Abs. 1 HGB are the responsibility of the parent company`s management. Our responsibi-
lity is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and on the group 
management report based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with § 
317 HGB [Handelsgesetzbuch „German Commercial Code“] and German generally ac-
cepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der 
Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
such that misstatements materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, finan-
cial position and results of operations in the consolidated financial statements in accor-
dance with the applicable financial reporting framework and in the group management 
report are detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and 
the economic and legal environment of the Group and expectations as to possible mis-
statements are taken into account in the determination of audit procedures. The effec-
tiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence supporting 
the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and the group management re-
port are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit 
includes assessing the annual financial statements of those entities included in consoli-
dation, the determination of entities to be included in consolidation, the accounting and 
consolidation principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and group 
management report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opi-
nion.

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consolidated financial statements 
comply with IFRS, as adopted by the EU, the additional requirements of German com-
mercial law pursuant to § 315a Abs. 1 HGB and give a true and fair view of the net assets, 
financial position and results of operations of the Group in accordance with these re-
quirements. The group management report is consistent with the consolidated financial 
statements and as a whole provides a suitable view of the Group’s position and suitably 
presents the opportunities and risks of future development.

Munich, March 10, 2008

KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft
Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft 
 

Kozikowski
(Wirtschaftsprüfer)

Richardt
(Wirtschaftsprüfer)
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The ProSiebenSat.1 Group on the Internet

You can find additional information on the ProSIebenSat.1 Group on our homepage
http://en.prosiebensat1.com/. An updated version of the financial calendar is also 
available.

Forward-looking statements in this Annual Report

The report contains forward-looking statements about expected developments. These 
statements are based on current estimations and involve natural risks and uncertainties. 
Real events may differ from statements published in this report.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION_FINANCIAL CALENDAR AND PRODUCTION CREDITS



It‘s a long, hard road if you want to be “Germany‘s next Top Model - by Heidi Klum“, as a candidates of 

ProSieben‘s weekly hit show will agree. The third season with Heidi Klum was successful across the board: as 

a TV show, online, and in the areas of mobile TV, merchandising and licensing. With this show, the ProSieben-

Sat.1 Group succeeded in extending a strong format into new areas. By tapping new markets, the Company 

gained additional revenue sources outside the traditional TV advertising business.
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